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UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTIONS 13 OR 15(d)
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

Commission file number 1-11071

UGI CORPORATION

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its chaet)

Pennsylvania 23-2668356
(State or Other Jurisdiction of (I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)
Incorporation or Organization)

460 North Gulph Road, King of Prussia, PA 19406
(Address of Principal Executive Offices) (Zip Code)

(610) 337-1000
(Registrant’s telephone number, including area code

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) dfie Act:

Name of each Exchang
Title of Each Class on Which Registered
Common Stock, without par vall New York Stock Exchange, In

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) ¢fie Act: None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a welbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405edb#turities Act.
Yes NoO

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuieed to file reports pursuant to Section 13 orti®acl5(d) of the Act.
YesO NoM

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant:h@9 filed all reports required to be filed by Sexti3 or 15(d) of tt
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preggdi® months (or for such shorter period that thgsteant was required
file such reports), and (2) has been subject th filing requirements for the past 90 days. ¥&s No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant hdmnitted electronically and posted on its corpoiéteb site, if any, eve
Interactive Data File required to be submitted aodted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulatioh §232.405 of this chaptt
during the preceding 12 months (or for such shqréeiod that the registrant was required to sulamit post such files).
YesO NoO

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquélldrs pursuant to Item 405 of RegulationkS(8229.405) is not contain
herein, and will not be contained, to the best efistrants knowledge, in definitive proxy or information tment
incorporated by reference in Part Il of this FatBK or any amendment to this Form 10¥.

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlerge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, m-axxcelerated filer, or a smal
reporting company. See the definitions of “largeederated filer,” “accelerated filer” and “smallegporting company’'in
Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filé Accelerated fileld Non-accelerated file[d Smaller reporting comparl]

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantshell company (as defined in Rule -2 of the Act). Yed NoM™
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The aggregate market value of UGI Corporation Comi@tock held by nomdfiliates of the registrant oRaueale® 31249009
$2,516,319,164.

At November 16, 2009 there were 108,782,302 stafrel&s| Corporation Common Stock issued and outstand

Portions of the Proxy Statement for the Annual Megpbf Shareholders to be held on January 26, 20&0ncorporated |
reference into Part Il of this Form 10-K.
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FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION

Information contained in this Annual Report on Fat®K may contain forwartboking statements within the meaning
Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and $#cf1E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Sstatements use forward-
looking words such as “believe,” “plan,” “anticiggt “continue,” “estimate,” “expect,” “may,” “will, or other similar word
These statements discuss plans, strategies, evetéyelopments that we expect or anticipate withay occur in the future.

A forward-looking statement may include a statemehtthe assumptions or bases underlying the ford@oking
statement. We believe that we have chosen thesenpiens or bases in good faith and that they easanable. However, 1
caution you that actual results almost always ¥eoyn assumed facts or bases, and the differendegebe actual results a
assumed facts or bases can be material, dependitigeocircumstances. When considering forwaaking statements, yi
should keep in mind the following important factevkich could affect our future results and couldsathose results to dif
materially from those expressed in our forwérdking statements: (1) adverse weather conditierslting in reduced demal
(2) cost volatility and availability of propane anther LPG, oil, electricity, and natural gas ane tapacity to transport prod
to our customers; (3) changes in domestic and daréaws and regulations, including safety, tax aoedounting matter
(4) inability to timely recover costs through dtilirate proceedings; (5) the impact of pending aridre legal proceeding
(6) competitive pressures from the same and aligenanergy sources; (7) failure to acquire newtamers thereby reducing
limiting any increase in revenues; (8) liabilityr fenvironmental claims; (9) increased customer ensaion measures due
high energy prices and improvements in energy ieffity and technology resulting in reduced dematd@) édverse lab
relations; (11) large customer, counparty or supplier defaults; (12) liability in excesf insurance coverage for personal in
and property damage arising from explosions andrathtastrophic events, including acts of terroyiggsulting from operatir
hazards and risks incidental to generating andiloliging electricity and transporting, storing adidtributing natural gas a
LPG; (13) political, regulatory and economic coiuatit in the United States and in foreign countriesluding foreign currenc
exchange rate fluctuations, particularly the e(id) capital market conditions, including reducedess to capital markets ¢
interest rate fluctuations; (15) changes in comiyoahiarket prices resulting in significantly higheash collateral requiremer
(16) reduced distributions from subsidiaries; ahd)¢the timing and success of our acquisitions iandstments to grow o
businesses.

These factors are not necessarily all of the ingmirfactors that could cause actual results tediffaterially from thos
expressed in any of our forwalobking statements. Other unknown or unpredictdddtors could also have material adv
effects on future results. We undertake no obligato update publicly any forwaildeking statement whether as a result of
information or future events except as requiredheyfederal securities laws.

PART I
ITEMS 1. AND 2. BUSINESS AND PROPERTIES
CORPORATE OVERVIEW
UGI Corporation is a holding company that, throwmibsidiaries and a joint venture, distributes aratkets enerc

products and related services. We are a domedtiéré@rnational retail distributor of propane andame (which are liquefie
petroleum gases (“LPG")j provider of natural gas and electric serviceugtoregulated local distribution utilities; a gesten
of electricity; a regional marketer of energy condities; and a regional provider of heating, vetitia, air conditioning
refrigeration and electrical contracting servic@ur subsidiaries and joint venture operate priftyip@ the following five
business segments:

*  AmeriGas Propan

e International Propan

e Gas Utility

»  Electric Utility

*  Energy Service
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The AmeriGas Propane segment consists of the peogatribution business of AmeriGas Partners, I(‘RmeriGas
Partners” or the “Partnership”) which is the natiolargest retail propane distributor. The Parthgrs sole general partnel
our subsidiary, AmeriGas Propane, Inc. (“AmeriGaspne” or the “General Partner’Jhe common units of AmeriG
Partners represent limited partner interests iremare limited partnership; they trade on the Newk Stock Exchange unc
the symbol “APU."We have an effective 44% ownership interest inRBgnership; the remaining interest is publiclydh&e:
Note 1 to Consolidated Financial Stateme

The International Propane segment consists of Bf@ Histribution businesses of our wholly owned gliages Antarga:
a French société anonyme (“Antargaz”), Flaga Gmbhl,Austrian corporation (“Flaga”and our joint venture in Chir
Antargaz is one of the largest retail distributof$. PG in France. Flaga is the largest retail LR€ritbutor in Austria and one
the largest retail LPG distributors in the Czeclpi#ic and Slovakia. In China, we participate inLl&G joint venture busine
in the Nantong region.

The Gas Utility segment (“Gas Utility'onsists of the regulated natural gas distributiosinesses of our subsidiary, L
Utilities, Inc. (“UGI Utilities”) and UGI Utilities subsidiaries, UGI Penn Natural Gas, Inc. (“PN@Ad UGI Central Penn G,
Inc. ("CPG"). Gas Utility serves approximately 563,000 customiargastern, northeastern and central Pennsylvai@
Utilities’ natural gas distribution utility is refieed to as “UGI Gas;” PNG’s natural gas distribatidtility is referred to asPNC
Gas;” and CPG'’s natural gas distribution utilityréferred to as “CPG Gas.” The Electric Utility segnt (“Electric Utility”)
consists of the regulated electric distributionibass of UGI Utilities, serving approximately 6200€ustomers in northeast
Pennsylvania. Gas Utility is regulated by the Pgtvagia Public Utility Commission (“PUC"and the Maryland Public Serv
Commission. Electric Utility is regulated by the @U

On October 1, 2008, UGI Utilities completed thewsiion of all of the issued and outstanding sto€lPPL Gas Utilitie
Corporation (“PPL Gas”), the natural gas distribatutility of PPL Corporation (“PPL"and its wholly owned subsidiary, P¢
Fuel Propane, LLC (“Penn Fuel Propandfhmediately following the closing of the acquisitioPenn Fuel Propane sold
retail propane distribution assets to AmeriGas Bnep L.P., an affiliate of UGI. PPL Gas is nhow kmoas CPG. Beginning
the 2009 fiscal year, CPG was included in the ComjzaGas Utility segment and Penn Fuel Propane wdaded in thi
Company’'s AmeriGas Propane segment. See Note driedlidated Financial Statements.

The Energy Services segment consists of enerlgyed businesses conducted by a number of sakisisli Thes
businesses include (i) energy marketing in theeeastegion of the United States under the tradeen@ASMARK @ |
(ii) operating interests in electric generation &s&e Pennsylvania, (iii) operating and owning &una gas liquefaction, stora
and vaporization facility and propaa@- mixing assets, (iv) operating and owning a prop import and storage facility
Chesapeake, Virginia, and (v) managing naturalpg@eline and storage contracts.

Through subsidiaries, UGI Corporation also operaed owns heating, ventilation, air conditioningfrigeration an
electrical contracting service businesses servirsfoeners in the Mid-Atlantic region.

Business Strategy

Our business strategy is to grow the Company bydiog on our core competencies as a marketer atribdior of energ
products and services. We are utilizing our comapetencies from our existing businesses and ouwrradtscope, internatior
experience, extensive asset base and access toneustto accelerate both internal growth and gratmtbugh acquisitions
our existing businesses, as well as in relatedcantblementary businesses. During fiscal year 2@@9ompleted a number
transactions in pursuit of this strategy and comeedrconstruction on a number of larger internaéiperated capital projects.
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Corporate | nformation

UGI Corporation was incorporated in Pennsylvania981. UGI Corporation is not subject to regulatignthe PUC. UC
Corporation is a “holding company” under the Pulbility Holding Company Act of 2005 (“PUHCA 2005"PUHCA 200!
and the implementing regulations of the Federar@n&egulatory Commission (“FERCtive FERC access to certain holc
company books and records and impose certain atogunecordkeeping, and reporting requirements on holding cmes
PUHCA 2005 also provides state utility regulatogmenissions with access to holding company booksrandrds in certa
circumstances. Pursuant to a waiver granted inrdaoce with FERC's regulations on the basis of @Giporations status as
single-state holding company system, UGI Corporationot subject to certain of the accounting, red@eping, and reportit
requirements prescribed by FERC's regulations.

Our executive offices are located at 460 North @GuRoad, King of Prussia, Pennsylvania 19406, andtelephon
number is (610) 337-1000. In this report, the tef@empany” and “UGI,” as well as the terms “our,W&,” and “its,” are
sometimes used as abbreviated references to UGpo€uion or, collectively, UGI Corporation and itonsolidate
subsidiaries. Similarly, the terms “AmeriGas Pam$iieand the “Partnershipdre sometimes used as abbreviated referen
AmeriGas Partners, L.P. or, collectively, AmeriGmtners, L.P. and its subsidiaries and the ter@l“Utilities” is sometime
used as an abbreviated reference to UGI Utilities, or, collectively, UGI Utilities, Inc. and isubsidiaries. The termd-isca
2009” and “Fiscal 2008" refer to the fiscal yeansled September 30, 2009 and September 30, 20@&ctazly.

The Companys corporate website can be found at www.ugicorp.cbime Company makes available free of charge &
website (under the “Investor Relations and Cormofadvernance-SEC Filinggaption) copies of its reports filed or furnis
pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Secwritgchange Act of 1934, including its Annual Reparh Form 1K, its
Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q and its Current Rispon Form 8-K. The Comparg/Principles of Corporate Governar
Code of Ethics for the Chief Executive Officer aBénior Financial Officers, Code of Business Conduatl Ethics fc
Directors, Officers and Employees, and charterghef Corporate Governance, Audit and Compensatiah Managemel
Development Committees of the Board of Directors @so available on the Company’s website, underctption fnvesto
Relations and Corporate Governance-Corporate Gamem All of these documents are also available freehafrge by writin
to Robert W. Krick, Vice President and Treasurdgl Corporation, P.O. Box 858, Valley Forge, PA 1948

AMERIGAS PROPANE
Products, Servicesand Marketing

Our domestic propane distribution business is cotatlthrough AmeriGas Partners. AmeriGas Propanesjsonsible fc
managing the Partnership. The Partnership senme@mately 1.3 million customers in all 50 statesm approximately 1,2(
propane distribution locations. In addition to disiiting propane, the Partnership also sells, lisstand services propa
appliances, including heating systems. In certa@as the Partnership also installs and serviogsape fuel systems for mo
vehicles. Typically, district locations are fourrdsuburban and rural areas where natural gas ieeadily available. Distric
generally consist of an office, appliance showrowratehouse, and service facilities, with one oremt8,000 to 30,000 gall
storage tanks on the premises. As part of its dvieamsportation and distribution infrastructutee Partnership operates a:
interstate carrier in 48 states throughout theinental United States. It is also licensed as eearan the Canadian Provinces
Ontario and Quebec.

The Partnership sells propane primarily to residéntommercial/industrial, motor fuel, agriculturand wholesal
customers. The Partnership distributed over onbomilgallons of propane in Fiscal 2009. Approxinat&9% of the
Partnerships Fiscal 2009 sales (based on gallons sold) wenettil accounts and approximately 11% were to esball
customers. Sales to residential customers in Fi2@09 represented approximately 41% of retail gallosold
commercial/industrial customers 36%; motor fueltomers 13%; and agricultural customers 5%. Trarigpalfons, which ai
largescale deliveries to retail customers other thamdessial, accounted for 5% of Fiscal 2009 retaillggss. No singl
customer represents, or is anticipated to represere than 5% of the Partnership’s consolidatednees.

The Partnership continues to expand its AmeriGalin@gr Exchange (“ACE")program. At September 30, 2009, A
cylinders were available at approximately 27,60@ifdocations throughout the United States, amdase of more than 1(
compared to Fiscal 2008. Sales of our ACE grillirayérs to retailers are included in commercial/stdal sales. The AC
program enables consumers to purchase or exchhamgesmpty propane grill cylinders at various relaéations such as hor
centers, gas stations, mass merchandisers and gt convenience stores. We also supply retai@rslarge propane tan
to enable retailers to replenish customers’ propaitlecylinders directly at the retailer’s locatio
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Residential customers use propane primarily for éndreating, water heating and cooking purposes. Gouial user:
which include motels, hotels, restaurants andlrstares, generally use propane for the same paspas residential custom
Industrial customers use propane to fire furnaaesa cutting gas and in other process applicatOtiger industrial custome
are largescale heating accounts and local gas utility custsnwvho use propane as a supplemental fuel to peskt loa
deliverability requirements. As a motor fuel, propas burned in internal combustion engines thatggmver-theroad vehicle:
forklifts and stationary engines. Agricultural usaslude tobacco curing, chicken brooding and adoging. In its wholesa
operations, the Partnership principally sells pnepto large industrial end-users and other propi#stgbutors.

Retail deliveries of propane are usually made ®tamers by means of bobtail and rack trucks. Pepampumped froi
the bobtail truck, which generally holds 2,400 t6@® gallons of propane, into a stationary storegé on the customes’
premises. The Partnership owns most of these ®tdeadks and leases them to its customers. Theitapéthese tanks rang
from approximately 120 gallons to approximately(Djallons. The Partnership also delivers propaneetail customers
portable cylinders (including ACE propane grill igers) which contain 3.5 to 24 gallons of propa®eme of these deliver
are made to the customer’s location, where emgigasrs are either picked up or replenished in@lac

Propane Supply and Storage

The Partnership has over 250 domestic and intemealtsources of supply, including the spot markeipplies of propat
from the Partnership’sources historically have been readily availableing the year ended September 30, 2009, over &
the Partnershig’ propane supply was purchased under supply agreenvéh terms of 1 to 3 years. The availabilityppbpan:
supply is dependent upon, among other things, eéliergy of winter weather, the price and availapibf competing fuels sui
as natural gas and crude oil, and the amount aadahility of imported supply. Although no assurancan be given th
supplies of propane will be readily available ie fluture, management currently expects to be abéedure adequate supp
during fiscal year 2010. If supply from major sasavere interrupted, however, the cost of procurédacement supplies €
transporting those supplies from alternative larati might be materially higher and, at least orhartderm basis, margil
could be affected. BP Products North America Imel BP Canada Energy Marketing Corp. (collectiveBnterprise Produc
Operating LP and Targa Midstream Services LP, segpproximately 46% of the PartnersBifriscal 2009 propane supj
No other single supplier provided more than 10%hef Partnersh’s total propane supply in Fiscal 2009. In certaipas
however, some suppliers provide more than 50% @fRartnershi requirements. Disruptions in supply in these sueaulc
also have an adverse impact on the Partnership'ginsa

The Partnershig’ supply contracts typically provide for pricingsked upon (i) index formulas using the current
established at a major storage point such as Meahtidi, Texas, or Conway, Kansas, or (ii) posteidgsr at the time
delivery. In addition, some agreements provide maxn and minimum seasonal purchase volume guidelirtess percentage
contract purchases, and the amount of supply odettagfor at fixed prices, will vary from year toareas determined by t
General Partner. The Partnership uses a humbetestiate pipelines, as well as railroad tank cdelyery trucks and barg:
to transport propane from suppliers to storage disttibution facilities. The Partnership stores pape at various stors
facilities and terminals located in strategic ar@a®ss the United States.

Because the Partnerstapirofitability is sensitive to changes in wholesptopane costs, the Partnership generally se
pass on increases in the cost of propane to cussoifieere is no assurance, however, that the RPahipewill always be able
pass on product cost increases fully, particularhen product costs rise rapidly. Product cost iases can be triggered
periods of severe cold weather, supply interrugjoncreases in the prices of base commodities asatrude oil and natu
gas, or other unforeseen events. In Fiscal 20@9P#rtnership experienced significant product oedtictions over Fiscal 20
due to sharp declines in the price of crude oile Theneral Partner has adopted supply acquisitioh praduct cost ris
management practices to reduce the effect of Vityatin selling prices. These practices currentigliide the use of sumn
storage, forward purchases and derivative commaaityuments, such as options and propane pricpsvgee “Managemest’
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &®bults of Operations — Market Risk Disclosures.”
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The following graph shows the average prices opane on the propane spot market during the laiscilfyears at Mo
Belvieu, Texas, a major storage area.
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General I ndustry I nformation

Propane is separated from crude oil during theniredi process and also extracted from natural gasl avellhead gas
processing plants. Propane is normally transpoated stored in a liquid state under moderate preseurefrigeration fc
economy and ease of handling in shipping and Higion. When the pressure is released or the texyeris increased, it
usable as a flammable gas. Propane is colorleso@dmidess; an odorant is added to allow for iteedétn. Propane is cle
burning, producing negligible amounts of pollutamtsen properly consumed.

Competition

Propane competes with other sources of energy, sunwehich are less costly for equivalent energyueal Propar
distributors compete for customers with supplidrslectricity, fuel oil and natural gas, principatin the basis of price, servi
availability and portability. Electricity is a majaompetitor of propane, but propane generally ynja competitive pric
advantage over electricity for space heating, waéating, and cooking. In some areas electricity hwe a competitive pri
advantage or be relatively equivalent in price impane due to government regulated rate caps otrieiy. Additionally, higt
efficiency electric heat pumps have led to a des@aa the cost of electricity for heating. Fuelisilalso a major competitor
propane and is generally less expensive than peofarrnaces and appliances that burn propane etibbperate on fuel oil, al
vice versa, and, therefore, a conversion from omlétb the other requires the installation of newipment. Propane serves
an alternative to natural gas in rural and subuio@as where natural gas is unavailable or portaloif product is require:
Natural gas is generally a less expensive souremefgy than propane, although in areas wherealagas is available, prope
is used for certain industrial and commercial aggiions and as a standby fuel during interruptiansatural gas service. T
gradual expansion of the natismatural gas distribution systems has resultédaravailability of natural gas in some areas

previously depended upon propane. However, naia@pipelines are not present in many regionseo€tiuntry where propa
is sold for heating and cooking purposes.
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For motor fuel customers, propane competes witlolges and diesel fuel as well as electric batteaesl fuel cells
Wholesale propane distribution is a highly competitlow margin business. Propane sales to othail distributors and large-
volume, direct-shipment industrial end-users aregpsensitive and frequently involve a competitiveding process.

The retail propane industry is mature, with onlydest growth in total demand for the product forasééerefore, tr
Partnerships ability to grow within the industry is dependent its ability to acquire other retail distributcasd to achiey
internal growth, which includes expansion of the A@rogram and the Strategic Accounts program (timowhich thi
Partnership encourages large, mldtation propane users to enter into a supply ageeé with it rather than with many sn
suppliers), as well as the success of its salesranlleting programs designed to attract and retastomers. The failure of t
Partnership to retain and grow its customer basddvmave an adverse effect on its long-term results

The domestic propane retail distribution busineshighly competitive. The Partnership competeshia business wit
other large propane marketers, including otherdatlice marketers, and thousands of small indeperougesrators. Some ru
electric cooperatives and fuel oil distributors éaxpanded their businesses to include propangbdisdon and the Partnersi
competes with them as well. The ability to compaftectively depends on providing high quality cuser service, maintainit
competitive retail prices and controlling operataxpenses. The Partnership also offers customeisugagpayment and serv
options, including fixed price and guaranteed ppoegrams.

In Fiscal 2009, the Partnershgpretail propane sales totaled approximately 94dBomigallons. Based on the most rec
annual survey by the American Petroleum Instit@@)7 domestic retail propane sales (annual satestfer than chemic
uses) in the United States totaled approximatedybfllion gallons. Based on LBAS magazine rankings, 2007 sales volun
the ten largest propane companies (including AnesiBartners) represented approximately 43% of darretail sales.

Properties

As of September 30, 2009, the Partnership ownedoajppately 84% of its district locations. On Noveenid 3, 2008, tF
Partnership sold its 600,000 barrel refrigeratdahvaground storage facility located on leased propémtyCalifornia fol
approximately $43 million in cash. See Note 4 to§€idated Financial Statements.

The transportation of propane requires specialempgipment. The trucks and railroad tank cars efilifor this purpos
carry specialized steel tanks that maintain th@ame in a liquefied state. As of September 30, 20@9Partnership operate
transportation fleet with the following assets:

Approximate Quantity & Equipment Type % Owned % Leased
1,61( Trailers 90% 10%
30C Tractors 15% 85%
18C Railroad tank car 0% 10(%
2,48( Bobtail trucks 13% 87%
27C Rack trucks 1% 99%
2,30(C Service and delivery trucl 15% 85%

Other assets owned at September 30, 2009 inclysiedxdmately 858,000 stationary storage tanks wWjflical capacitie
ranging from 121 to 2,000 gallons and approxima&lymillion portable propane cylinders with tygdicapacities of 1 to 1:
gallons. The Partnership also owned approximatglp®large volume tanks with typical capacitiesrafre than 2,000 gallo
which are used for its own storage requirements.
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Trade Names, Trade and Service Marks

The Partnership markets propane principally under‘AmeriGas® ” and “America’s Propane Compafly’ trade name
and related service marks. UGI owns, directly airiectly, all the right, title and interest in th@meriGas” name and relat:
trade and service marks. The General Partner olvnglat, title and interest in the “America’s Prape Companytrade nam
and related service marks. The Partnership haxeuoséve (except for use by UGI, AmeriGas, Inc. dhd General Partne
royalty-free license to use these trade names and relateites marks. UGI and the General Partner each tHeveption t
terminate its respective license agreement (on dins prior notice in the case of UGI), without aly, if the General Partn
is removed as general partner of the Partnershigr dhan for cause. If the General Partner ceasgsrve as the general par
of the Partnership for cause, the General Partagthe option to terminate its license agreemeah ygayment of a fee to U
equal to the fair market value of the licensed éradmes. UGI has a similar termination option; haveUGI must provid
12 months prior notice in addition to paying the fe the General Partner.

Seasonality

Because many customers use propane for heatinggespthe Partnershiptetail sales volume is seasonal. Approximi
65% to 70% of the Partnership’s retail sales voluoeurs, and substantially all of the Partnershgperating income is earn
during the peak heating season from October thrddatcth. As a result of this seasonality, saleshégber in the Partnership’
first and second fiscal quarters (October 1 throMtgiich 31). Cash receipts are generally greateshglthe second and th
fiscal quarters when customers pay for propanehased during the winter heating season.

Sales volume for the Partnership traditionally fliates from year-tgear in response to variations in weather, pr
competition, customer mix and other factors, sushcanservation efforts and general economic canditi For historici
information on national weather statistics, see fistgemens Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditiom &esults ¢
Operations.”

Government Regulation

The Partnership is subject to various federalestaid local environmental, safety and transpordaas and regulatio
governing the storage, distribution and transpiotiabf propane and the operation of bulk storag& ltBrminals. These la)
include, among others, the Resource Conservatioth Racovery Act, the Comprehensive Environmental pBese
Compensation and Liability Act (“CERCLA"the Clean Air Act, the Occupational Safety and tedct, the Homelar
Security Act of 2002, the Emergency Planning andh@ainity Right to Know Act, the Clean Water Act atwimparable sta
statutes. CERCLA imposes joint and several ligbiih certain classes of persons considered to daveibuted to the reles
or threatened release of a “hazardous substant@”the environment without regard to fault or flegality of the origine
conduct. Propane is not a hazardous substancenlithimeaning of federal and most state environahéaws.

All states in which the Partnership operates hal@pted fire safety codes that regulate the stosagk distribution ¢
propane. In some states these laws are adminidbgrethte agencies, and in others they are admiatston a municipal lev
The Partnership conducts training programs to kelgure that its operations are in compliance withlieable government
regulations. With respect to general operationgjoNal Fire Protection Association (“NFPABamphlets No. 54 and No.
which establish a set of rules and procedures gawgrthe safe handling of propane, or comparabjeilegions, have be
adopted by all states in which the Partnership atpsr The most recent editions of NFPA Pamphlet38p.adopted by
majority of states, requires certain stationaryingérs that are filled in place to be gaalified periodically, depending on -
date of manufacture and previous schedule dajuaification of the cylinders. Management believkat the policies at
procedures currently in effect at all of its faods for the handling, storage and distributionpobpane are consistent w
industry standards and are in compliance in alemi@trespects with applicable environmental, leaftd safety laws.

With respect to the transportation of propane bighty the Partnership is subject to regulations pigated under fedel
legislation, including the Federal Motor Carrierf@g Act and the Homeland Security Act of 2002. Ragions under the
statutes cover the security and transportationagitdous materials and are administered by thestli8tates Department
Transportation (“DOT").The Natural Gas Safety Act of 1968 required the D©Tdevelop and enforce minimum sa
regulations for the transportation of gases by Ipipe The DOTS pipeline safety regulations apply to, among othergs, i
propane gas system which supplies 10 or more mgsdl€ustomers or 2 or more commercial customersfa single sour:
and a propane gas system any portion of whichdatéa in a public place. The code requires opesaiball gas systems
provide training and written instructions for emyses, establish written procedures to minimizeh&eards resulting from ¢
pipeline emergencies, and to conduct and keep deauirinspections and testing. Operators are subjethe Pipeline Safe
Improvement Act of 2002, which, among other thingstects employees who provide information tortleenployers or to tt
federal government as to pipeline safety from astv@mployment actions.
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Employees

The Partnership does not directly employ any peysesponsible for managing or operating the Pastmer The Gener
Partner provides these services and is reimbuigeidsfdirect and indirect costs and expensesudict all compensation a
benefit costs. At September 30, 2009, the Genaaeth®r had approximately 5,950 employees, includipgroximately 46
partiime, seasonal and temporary employees, workingpedralf of the Partnership. UGI also performs carfaiancial an
administrative services for the General Partnebamalf of the Partnership and is reimbursed byPégnership.

INTERNATIONAL BUSINESSES

We conduct our international LPG distribution besis principally in Europe through our wholly owngabsidiaries
Antargaz and Flaga. In January 2009, Flaga purchiee50% equity interest in Zentraleuropa LPG kimjd GmbH (“ZLH")it
did not already own from its joint-venture partneérpgas GmbH & Co. KG (“Progas’Pursuant to a purchase agreement ¢
December 18, 2008.

Antargaz operates in France and Flaga operatesdtria, Switzerland, Czech Republic, Slovakia, RdJaHungary an
Romania. During Fiscal 2009, Antargaz sold appragety 290 million gallons of LPG and Flaga sold mpmately
68.5 million gallons of LPG. Our joint venture imi@a sold approximately 11.3 million gallons of LRIGring Fiscal 2009.

ANTARGAZ
Products, Servicesand Marketing

Antargaz’ customer base consists of residential, commeragaicultural and motor fuel customer accounts trest LP(
for space heating, cooking, water heating, probess and transportation. Antargaz sells LPG imdgis, and in small, medit
and large bulk volumes stored in tanks. Sales @ kalRe also made to service stations to accomme@aieles that run on LP
Antargaz sells LPG in cylinders to approximatelyQD® retail outlets, such as supermarkets, indallgilowned stores and ¢
stations. At September 30, 2009, Antargaz had appedely 228,500 bulk customers and approximatebyrbillion cylinder:
in circulation. Approximately 64% of AntargaFiscal 2009 sales (based on volumes) were cyliager small bulk, 15¢
medium bulk, 19% large bulk, and 2% to serviceiatatfor automobiles. Antargaz also engages in edaie sales of LPG a
provides logistic, storage and other services it@-party LPG distributors. No single customer représeor is anticipated
represent, more than 5% of total revenues for Ayatar

Sales to small bulk customers represent the lagpgghent of Antargaddusiness in terms of volume, revenue and
margin. Small bulk customers are primarily resig@rand small business users, such as restauthatsyse LPG mainly fi
heating and cooking. Small bulk customers alsaukelmunicipalities, which use LPG for heating sparenas and swimmi
pools, and the poultry industry for use in chickeaoding.

The principal endssers of cylinders are residential customers wieollG supplied in this form for domestic applicat
such as cooking and heating. Butane cylinders axtedufor approximately 61% of all LPG cylindersdsat Fiscal 2009, wi
propane cylinders accounting for the remainderp&me cylinders are also used to supply fuel foklifiortrucks. The marke
demand for cylinders has been declining, due pilyntr customers gradually changing to other hoosgtlenergy sources 1
heating and cooking, such as natural gas. Antaigaeeking to increase demand for butane and peopginders throuc
marketing and product innovations.
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Medium bulk customers use propane only, and consiily of large residential developments such @assimng project:
hospitals, municipalities and mediwsieed industrial and agricultural enterprises. keaoglk customers are primarily compal
that use LPG in their industrial processes ancelagyicultural companies.

LPG Supply and Storage

Antargaz has an agreement with Totalgaz for theplgupf butane and propane, with pricing based derirationall)
qguoted market prices. Under this agreement, 80%ntdrgaz’requirements for butane are guaranteed until SeéuEe2012 an
15% of its requirements for propane are guaranteeidl September 2010. Requirements are fixed afynaald Antargaz ce
develop other sources of supply. For Fiscal 2008afgaz purchased almost 100% of its butane nesiggproximately 30'
of its propane needs from Totalgaz. Antargaz alschmses propane on the international market and kesser degre
purchases butane on the domestic market, underagreements with international oil and gas tradiogpanies such as Sl
Gas Supply and Trading, STASCO (Shell Trading) &@OL. In addition, purchases are made on the spatket fron
international oil and gas companies such as Te@bevron Oil and to a lesser extent from domesfineges, including thos
operated by BP France and Esso SAF.

Antargaz has 4 primary storage facilities in ogergtincluding 3 that are located at deep sea hafdlities, and 2
secondary storage facilities. It also manages densive logistics and transportation network. Asces seaborne faciliti
allows Antargaz to diversify its LPG supplies thgbumports. LPG stored in primary storage faciitie transported to smal
storage facilities by rail, sea and road. At seeopdtorage facilities, LPG is filled into cylindeor trucks equipped with tar
and then delivered to customers.

Competition

The LPG market in France is mature, with limitetufe growth expected. Sales volumes are affecteatipally by the
severity of the weather and customer migration ltermative energy forms, including natural gas afettricity. Like othe
businesses, it becomes more difficult for Antarg@zpass on product cost increases fully when priodasts rise rapidl
Increased LPG prices may result in slower than etegegrowth due to customer conservation and cuEt®rseeking le
expensive alternative energy sources. France deaisignificant portion of its electricity from rlaar power plants. Due to |
nuclear power plants as well as the regulationledtgcity prices by the French government, elettyiprices in France a
generally less expensive than LPG. As a resulttitity has increasingly become a more significeoinpetitor to LPG i
France than in other countries where we operatadtition, government policies and incentives fiaabr alternative enery
sources can result in customers migrating to ensogyces other than LPG.

Antargaz competes in all of its product marketsaonational level principally with three LPG disuiibn companie
Totalgaz (owned by Total France), Butagaz (ownecbbyiete des Petroles Shell, “Sheklinld Compagnie des Gaz de Pe
Primagaz (an independent supplier owned by SHYV iHgIiNV), as well as with regional competitors, \{tz and Repst
Competitive conditions in the French LPG marketwardergoing change. Some supermarket chain stacksther new mark
entrants are competing in the cylinder market anthfgaz has partnered with one supermarket chatmsmmarket. Antargaz’
competitors are generally affiliates of its LPG gligrs. As a result, its competitors may obtainduat at more competiti
prices.

On October 21, 2009, Antargaz responded to a Seattof Objections issued by the French competitiathority, th
General Division of Competition, Consumption anduet Punishment, in July of 2009. For more inforomatn the inquiry, st
Note 15 to Consolidated Financial Stateme

Seasonality

Because a significant amount of LPG is used fotihgademand is typically higher during the coldeonths of the yee
Approximately 65% to 70% of Antargaz’ retail saldume occurs, and approximately all of Antargaperating income
earned, during the six months from October throMginch.

Sales volume for Antargaz traditionally fluctuafesm year-toyear in response to variations in weather, pricebs Gthe

factors, such as conservation efforts and genarahamic conditions. For historical information oreather statistics f
Antargaz, see “Management’s Discussion and AnabyfsiSnancial Condition and Results of Operations.”
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Government Regulation

Antargaz’business is subject to various laws and regulatidrthe national and European levels with respechatter
such as protection of the environment, the stoeagehandling of hazardous materials and flammalidstances, the discha
of contaminants into the environment and the safépersons and property.

Properties

Antargaz has 4 primary storage facilities in operatTwo of these storage facilities are undergtbuaverns, one is
refrigerated facility, and one is an aerial presdacility. The table below sets forth details atke of these facilities.

Antargaz Antargaz
Storage Capacit- Storage Capacit-

Propane Butane

Ownership % (m3) (1) (m3) (1)
Norgal 52.7 22,60( 8,90(
Geogaz Laver 16.7 17,40( 32,50(
Donges 50.((2) 30,00( 0
Cobogal 15.C 1,30C 45(

(1) Cubic meters
(2) Pursuant to a lor-term contractual arrangement with the owi

The closing of a fifth storage facility, Geovexims started. Antargaz has 26 secondary storadgiéacil2 of which ar
wholly owned. The others are partially owned, tlglojoint ventures.

Employees

At September 30, 2009, Antargaz had approximat€lgdemployees.
FLAGA
Products, Services, Marketing and Storage

Flaga distributes LPG for residential, commerdiadlustrial, and auto gas applications in the follmyvcentral and easte
European countries: Austria, Switzerland, CzechuRép, Slovakia, Poland, Hungary and Romania. Dyfiscal 2009, Flag
sold approximately 68.5 million gallons of LPG. §dais the largest distributor of LPG in Austria aode of the large
distributors of LPG in both the Czech Republic &halvakia.

Flagas customers primarily use LPG for heating, cookimystruction work, industrial processing, forldifind autoga
The retail propane industry in Austria is maturéhwslight declines in overall demand in recentrgeaue primarily to tr
expansion of natural gas and renewable energy esuf@ompetition for customers is based on contexcts as well as «
product prices. Flaga has 19 sales offices througtiee countries it serves. Much of Flag&ylinder business in Austria
conducted through approximately 600 local reseleith whom Flaga has a long business relationdhigts other countrie
Flaga sells cylinders to distributors who resed dylinders to end users under the distribstqricing and terms. Flaga utiliz
approximately 66 storage facilities with 22 of taatorage facilities in the Czech Republic andr?Bustria.

11
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Seasonality and Competition

Because many of Flaga’s customers use LPG forrtgatbles volumes in Flagasales territories are affected princip
by the severity of the weather and traditionallycfuate from year-tgear in response to variations in weather, pricesathe
factors, such as conservation efforts and gene@i@nic conditions. Because Flagairofitability is sensitive to changes
wholesale LPG costs, Flaga generally seeks to pasmcreases in the cost of LPG to customers. Themo assuranc
however, that Flaga will always be able to passpooduct cost increases fully. In parts of Flagaales territories, it
particularly difficult to pass on rapid increaseghe price of LPG due to the low per capita incarheustomers in several of
territories and the intensity of competition. Produaost increases can be triggered by periods \aéreecold weather, supj
interruptions, increases in the prices of base codities such as crude oil and natural gas, or atinéoreseen events. Hi
LPG prices may result in slower than expected dnodde to customer conservation and customers gpdd@s expensi
alternative energy sources. Flaga competes witerdtRG marketers, including competitors locatedtimer eastern Europe
countries, and also competes with providers ofratlerces of energy, principally natural gas, eieity and wood. In many
Flagas sales territories, government policies and ingestthat favor alternative energy sources may lréaucustomer
migrating to energy sources other than LPG.

Government Regulation

Flagas business is subject to various laws and reguisitix both the national and European levels wipeaet to matte
such as protection of the environment and the geaamd handling of hazardous materials and flamensidbstances.

Employees
At September 30, 2009, Flaga had approximatelyesiployees.
GAS UTILITY
Service Area; Revenue Analysis

Gas Utility is authorized to distribute natural gaspproximately 563,000 customers in portiong®mEastern, northeast
and central Pennsylvania counties through itsitdigion system of approximately 11,900 miles of ga&ins. The service al
includes the cities of Allentown, Bethlehem, Eastblarrisburg, Hazleton, Lancaster, Lebanon, ReadBaganton, Wilkes-
Barre, Lock Haven, Pittston, Pottsville and Williggort, Pennsylvania, and the boroughs of Honesdal® Milford
Pennsylvania. Located in Gas UtilisyService area are major production centers foic badustries such as specialty mel
aluminum, glass and paper product manufacturing.

System throughput (the total volume of gas soldrttvansported for customers within Gas Utilitglistribution system) f
Fiscal 2009 was approximately 150 billion cubictfébcf’). System sales of gas accounted for approximately di%ysten
throughput, while gas transported for resident@mmercial and industrial customers (who boughtirtgas from other:
accounted for approximately 56% of system throughpu

Sources of Supply and Pipeline Capacity

Gas Utility meets its service requirements by zitilj a diversemix of natural gas purchase contracts with markegen
producers, along with storage and transportatiovicse contracts. These arrangements enable GagyWbilpurchase gas frc
Gulf Coast, Mid-Continent, Appalachian and Canadianrces. For the transportation and storage famc@as Utility has long-
term agreements with a number of pipeline comparireduding Texas Eastern Transmission Corporati©alumbia Ga
Transmission Corporation, Transcontinental Gas llPipeCorporation, Dominion Transmission, ANR Pipeliand Tenness
Gas Pipeline.

Gas Supply Contracts

During Fiscal 2009, Gas Utility purchased approxeha94 bcf of natural gas for sale to retail cararket custome
(principally comprised of firmresidential, commercial and industrial customerg whrchase their gas from Gas Utility anc
a much lesser extent, residential and small comialecastomers who purchase their gas from altersafpliers) and off-
system sales customers. Approximately 77% of tHermes purchased were supplied under agreementsl@iguppliers. Tt
remaining 23% of gas purchased by Gas Utility wagpBed by approximately 20 producers and marketéas suppl
contracts for Gas Utility are generally no longeart 1 year. Gas Utility also has loteym contracts with suppliers for natt
gas peaking supply during the months of Novembruth March.

12
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Seasonality

Because many of its customers use gas for heatimppes, Gas Utility sales are seasonal. Approein®5% to 70% ¢
Gas Utility’s sales volume is supplied, and appratiely 85% to 90% of Gas Ultility’ operating income is earned, during
peak heating season from October through March.

Competition

Natural gas is a fuel that competes with elecyrieihd oil, and to a lesser extent, with propane ewal. Competitio
among these fuels is primarily a function of theamparative price and the relative cost and efiicyeof fuel utilizatior
equipment. In parts of Gas Utility'service area, electricity may have a competitiiee advantage over natural gas di.
government regulated rate caps on electricity. Rapes for electric utilities serving a significgrtion of Gas Utilitys servic
territory are currently scheduled to expire atehd of 2009 and 2010 which will likely result ireetricity losing all or some
its competitive price advantage. Additionally, higfiiciency electric heat pumps have led to a desgen the cost of heati
with electricity. Government subsidies currentlyda ground source heat pumps over fossil fueledesys. Fuel oil deale
compete for customers in all categories, includimdystrial customers. Gas Utility responds to ttesnpetition with marketir
efforts designed to retain and grow its customseba

In substantially all of its service territories, $Sdtility is the only regulated gas distributiorility having the right, grante
by the PUC or by law, to provide gas distributi@rvices. Since the 1980s, larger commercial andsimil customers ha
been able to purchase gas supplies from entitiber othan natural gas distribution utility companids a result ¢
Pennsylvania’s Natural Gas Choice and Competitiot) &ffective July 1, 1999 all of Gas Utilig/'customers, including ret
core-market customers, have been afforded thisrtymty.

A number of Gas Utilitys commercial and industrial customers have thetylbd switch to an alternate fuel at any t
and, therefore, are served on an interruptiblesbaisder rates which are competitively priced wibpect to the alternate fu
Margin from these customers, therefore, is affettedhe difference or “spread” between the custeimdglivered cost of gi
and the customers’ delivered cost of the alterfizeg as well as the frequency and duration ofrinfations. See Gas Utility
and Electric Utility Regulation and Rates — GadlitytiRates.” Approximately 24% of Gas Utilit’commercial and industr
customersannual throughput volume, including certain custenserved under interruptible rates, have locatiwhish afforc
them the opportunity of seeking transportation isendirectly from interstate pipelines, thereby agping Gas Utility. Tt
majority of customers in this group are served uricBnsportation contracts having 3 to 20 year serimcluded in these tv
customer groups are 25 customers, most of whictamm@ng the 10 largest customers for each of UG| B8B& and CPG
terms of annual volumes. All of these customerseheantracts, 19 of which extend beyond the 201¢afigear. No sing
customer represents, or is anticipated to represere than 5% of Gas Ultility’s total revenues.

Outlook for Gas Service and Supply

Gas Utility anticipates having adequate pipelinpacity and sources of supply available to it to ke full requiremen
of all firm customers on its system through fispadr 2010. Supply mix is diversified, market pricadd delivered pursuant t
number of long-term and shadrm firm transportation and storage arrangementduding transportation contracts held
some of Gas Utility’s larger customers.

During Fiscal 2009, Gas Utility supplied transptida service to 2 major cgeneration installations and 5 elec
generation facilities. Gas Utility continues to gue opportunities to supply natural gas to elecgteiceration projects locatec
its service area. Gas Utility also continues tokseew residential, commercial and industrial custenfor both firm an
interruptible service. In the residential marketteg Gas Utility connected approximately 10,708idential heating custom
during Fiscal 2009. These customers consisted pifimaf (i) customers converting from other energgurces, mainly oil ar
electricity, (ii) existing norheating gas customers who have added gas heastensy/to replace other energy sources an
new home construction customers. As a result ofdgadine in the real estate market, customers fnem home constructis
decreased approximately 24% compared to Fiscal.206& slowdown in new home construction contmirefiscal year 201
in Gas Utility’s service area, customer growth Wil adversely affected.

13
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UGI Utilities continues to monitor and participat@here appropriate, in rulemaking and individualerand tarif
proceedings before FERC affecting the rates andettmes and conditions under which Gas Utility trzorss and stores natu
gas. Among these proceedings are those arisingfagtrtain FERC orders and/or pipeline filings whielate to (i) the pricir
of pipeline services in a competitive energy maplaate; (ii) the flexibility of the terms and conidits of pipeline service tari
and contracts; and (iii) pipelinegequests to increase their base rates, or chaegeetins and conditions of their storage
transportation services.

UGI Utilities’ objective in negotiations with interstate pipelinad natural gas suppliers, and in proceedings &
regulatory agencies, is to assure availabilityugfy, transportation and storage alternativestgesmarket requirements at
lowest cost possible, taking into account the rfeedecurity of supply. Consistent with that objeef UGI Utilities negotiate
the terms of firm transportation capacity on afiglines serving it, arranges for appropriate stor@agd pealshaving resource
negotiates with producers for competitively priggs$ purchases and aggressively participates idategy proceedings relat
to transportation rights and costs of service.

ELECTRIC UTILITY
Service Area; Sales Analysis

Electric Utility supplies electric service to apgpimately 62,000 customers in portions of Luzernd #yoming countie
in northeastern Pennsylvania through a system stimgiof approximately 2,150 miles of transmisséord distribution lines al
13 transmission substations. For Fiscal 2009, aqmiately 54% of sales volume came from residertistomers, 34% fro
commercial customers, and 12% from industrial atiterocustomers. Sales of electricity for residénti@ating purpost
accounted for approximately 19% of total salesleéteicity during Fiscal 2009.

Sources of Supply

In accordance with Electric Utilitg’ default service settlement with the PUC effecfimauary 1, 2010, Electric Utility w
be permitted to recover prudently incurred eleityricosts, including costs to obtain supply to migtcustomersenerg)
requirements, pursuant to a supply plan filed wtign PUC. See “ManagemestDiscussion and Analysis of Financial Condi
and Results of Operations — Market Risk Disclosurasd Note 8 to Consolidated Financial Statementsctit Utility
distributes electricity that it purchases from wdwzlle markets and electricity that customers pgecli@m other suppliers,
any. See “Gas Utility and Electric Utility Regulai and Rates — Electric Utility Rates.”

As of September 30, 2009, 17 of Electric Utilgycustomers have selected an alternative elegtgeiberation supplie
Beginning in 2010, while Electric Utility expecte see an increasing number of customers selecttegnative electricit
generation suppliers, it will continue to provideeegy to the majority of its distribution customéus the foreseeable future.

Competition

As a result of the Electricity Generation Custon@roice and Competition Act (“ECC Act"gll Pennsylvania ret:
electric customers have the ability to choose thlgictric generation supplier. Electric Utility rams the provider of last res
(“POLR") for its customers who do not choose an alternaetréd generation supplier. In Fiscal 2009, Electutility servec
nearly all of the electric customers within its\gee territory and is the only regulated electriitity having the right, granted |
the PUC or by law, to distribute electricity in #srvice territory. Electricity competes with natugas, oil, propane and ot
heating fuels for residential heating purposes.

The terms and conditions under which Electric Ytiprovides POLR service, and rules governing tites that may |
charged for such service, have been establishadseries of PUC-approved settlements (the “POLReBmtnts”). Consister
with the terms of the POLR Settlements, Electridityts total average residential heating customer PCit&srwere increas
in January 2009 by approximately 1.5% over ratesfiact during calendar year 2008. For currentsiasee Gas Utility ant
Electric Utility Regulation and Rates — Electricilifly Rates.” Beginning January 1, 2010, Electric Utility will kmssure
recovery of prudently incurred costs and will nader be subject to the risk that actual costs tocipased power will exce
POLR revenues, but will, however, forego the opyaity to recover revenues in excess of actual costs
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GAS UTILITY AND ELECTRIC UTILITY REGULATION AND RAT ES
Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission Jurisdiction

UGI Utilities’ gas and electric utility operations are subjecteigulation by the PUC as to rates, terms and ciongito
service, accounting matters, issuance of securit@stracts and other arrangements with affilistetties, and various otf
matters.

Electric Transmission and Wholesale Power Sale Rates

FERC has jurisdiction over the rates and terms emmditions of service of electric transmission lities used fa
wholesale or retail choice transactions. Electriitity owns electric transmission facilities thatawithin the control area of t
PJM Interconnection, LLC (“PJM”") and are dispatchedccordance with a FER&pproved open access tariff and assoc
agreements administered by PIJM. PJM is a regioaasmission organization that regulates and coateingeneration sup|
and the wholesale delivery of electricity. Electtiltility receives certain revenues collected by PXMtermined under
formulary rate schedule that is adjusted in Juneaah year to reflect annual changes in ElectritityJts electric transmissit
revenue requirements, when its transmission feesliire used by third parties.

FERC has jurisdiction over the rates and termscamdiitions of service of wholesale sales of eleatapacity and energ
Electric Utility has a tariff on file with FERC pswant to which it may make power sales to wholesatomers at market-
based rates.

Gas Utility Rates

The most recent general base rate increase for G& became effective in 1995. In accordance witktaduton
mechanism, a rate increase for Gas Utility’s retaitemarket customers became effective October 1, 20600gawith ¢
Purchased Gas Cost (“PGG/ariable credit equal to a portion of the margiceiged from customers served under interrug
rates to the extent such interruptible customeescapacity contracted for by UGI Gas for retailezorarket customers.

On August 27, 2009, the PUC approved PNG’'s and GP@te case settlement agreements, which resuftee
$19.75 million base rate operating revenue incréas®NG and a $10 million base rate operating meeeincrease for CP
The increases became effective on August 28, 2009.

The gas service tariffs for UGI Gas, PNG and CP@aio PGC rates applicable to firm retail rate sithes. These PC
rates permit recovery of substantially all of thadently incurred costs of natural gas that UGI,G4$G, and CPG sell to th
customers. PGC rates are reviewed and approvedainy the PUC. UGI Gas, PNG, and CPG may reqgastterly or
under certain conditions, monthly adjustments titecé the actual cost of gas. Quarterly adjustmdy@some effective ¢
1 day's notice to the PUC and are subject to review dutire next annual PGC filing. Each proposed anR@C rate i
required to be filed with the PUC 6 months prioiteeffective date. During this period, the PUQdsohearings to determi
whether the proposed rate reflects a least-fuel procurement policy consistent with thdigation to provide safe, adequ
and reliable service. After completion of theserhmps, the PUC issues an order permitting the ctila of gas costs at lev:
which meet that standard. The PGC mechanism atsadas for an annual reconciliation.

UGI Gas has two PGC rates. PGC (1) is applicabtatall, firm, retail corenarket customers consisting of the reside
and small commercial and industrial classes; PGGs(applicable to firm, contractual, higbad factor customers served
three separate rates. PNG and CPG each have oned®&s@pplicable to all customers. See Note 8 tosGlidated Financi
Statements.

Electric Utility Rates

The most recent general base rate increase fotriglddtility became effective in 1996. Electric iy’ s rates wel
unbundled into distribution, transmission and gatien (POLR or “default service'jomponents in 1998. In accordance
the POLR Settlements, Electric Utility increasedUROrates annually from 2005 through 2009. The iasesimplemente
January 1, 2009 raised total average residentiatifte customer rates by approximately 1.5% oveesrah effect durin
calendar year 2008. Electric Utility is also petetto and has entered into multiple-year fixate POLR contracts with certi
of its customers.
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PUC default service regulations are applicable lextfc Utility’s provision of default service effective JanuarQ10
Electric Utility, consistent with these regulatipmequired a portion of its default service supplier certain customer grot
for the period of January 1, 2010 through April 2014. Electric Utility received approval from tR&JC of (1) default servit
tariff rules applicable for service rendered onafter January 1, 2010, (2) a reconcilable defagivise cost rate recove
mechanism to become effective January 1, 2010a (3an for meeting the pog0B09 requirements of the Alternative Ene
Portfolio Standards Act (“AEPS Act"which requires Electric Utility to directly or ingictly acquire certain percentages o
supplies from designated alternative energy sounoels(4) a reconcilable AEPS Act cost recovery méeshanism to becor
effective January 1, 2010. Under these rules, dtefawvice rates for most customers will be adjdistearterly.

FERC Market Manipulation Rules and Other FERC Enforcement and Regulatory Powers

Both Gas Utility and Electric Utility, and our suttsries UGI Energy Services, Inc. and UGI DevelemmnCompany, a
subject to FERC regulations governing the mannewlhich certain jurisdictional sales or transpodatiare conducte
Section 4A of the Natural Gas Act and Section 22the Federal Power Act prohibit the use or empleghof any manipulati
or deceptive devices or contrivances in connectidth the purchase or sale of natural gas, eleanergy, or natural g
transportation or electric transmission servicdgest to the jurisdiction of FERC. FERC has adoptgllations to impleme
these statutory provisions which apply to intesstaénsportation and sales by the Electric Utiliigd to a much more limit
extent, to certain sales and transportation byGhe Utility that are subject to FERC]urisdiction. Gas Ultility and Elect
Utility are subject to certain other regulationdasbligations for FERGegulated activities. Under provisions of the Eny
Policy Act of 2005 (“EPACT 2005")Electric Utility is subject to certain electric iagility standards established by FERC
administered by an Electric Reliability Organizati¢‘ERO"). Electric Utility anticipates that substantially @aie costs ¢
complying with the ERO standards will be recoveeabrough its PIJM formulary electric transmissiaterschedule.

EPACT 2005 also granted FERC authority to impodestauntial civil penalties for the violation of anggulations, orde
or provisions under the Federal Power Act and NéitGias Act, and clarified FERE authority over certain utility or holdi
company mergers or acquisitions of electric usiitor electric transmitting utility property valuad$10 million or more.

State Tax Surcharge Clauses

UGI Utilities’ gas and electric service tariffs contain statestancharge clauses. The surcharges are recompuestewd
any of the tax rates included in their calculatisa changed. These clauses protect UGI Utilitiesifthe effects of increases
most of the Pennsylvania taxes to which it is sttbje

Utility Franchises

UGI Utilities, PNG and CPG each hold certificatdspablic convenience issued by the PUC and certghandfathe
rights” predating the adoption of the Pennsylvania Pubtitity Code and its predecessor statutes, whicth edichem believe
are adequate to authorize them to carry on theiimless in substantially all of the territories thigh they now render gas
electric service. Under applicable Pennsylvania la@| Utilities, PNG and CPG also have certain t$ghf eminent domain
well as the right to maintain their facilities itreets and highways in their territories.
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Other Government Regulation

In addition to regulation by the PUC and FERC,dhs and electric utility operations of UGI Utilgi@re subject to vario
federal, state and local laws governing environiaemtatters, occupational health and safety, pipediafety and other matte
UGI Utilities is subject to the requirements of fleeeral Resource Conservation and Recovery ACRTCIEA and comparab
state statutes with respect to the release of Haaarsubstances on property owned or operated byJtiGies. See Note 15
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Employees
At September 30, 2009, UGI Utilities had approxietatl, 430 employees.
ENERGY SERVICES

UGI Energy Services, Inc. and its subsidiaries I¢otively, “Energy Services”) operate the energlated business
described below.

Retail Energy Marketing

Energy Services conducts its energy marketing lessiminder the trade name GASMARKEnNergy Services sells natt
gas, liquid fuels and electricity to approximat8lp00 commercial and industrial customers at apprately 25,000 location
Energy Services serves customers in all or portoh®ennsylvania, New Jersey, Delaware, New YorkjoQDMaryland
Virginia, West Virginia, North Carolina and the Bist of Columbia. Energy Services distributes maktgas through the use
the transportation systems of 33 utility systems.

The gas marketing business is a high-revenue, langim business. A majority of Energy Servicesmmodity sales a
made under fixeghrice agreements. Energy Services manages supstyvotatility related to these agreements by (ipgnc
into fixed-price supply arrangements with a diverse groupatdinal gas producers and holders of interstatdipgeapacity, (i
entering into exchangeaded natural gas futures contracts which areagieed by the New York Mercantile Exchange
have nominal credit risk, (iii) entering into ovire-counter natural gas derivative arrangements witjpmaternational bank
and (iv) utilizing supply assets that it owns ormages. Energy Services also bears the risk fonbiag and delivering natul
gas to its customers under various pipelines aildyutompany tariffs. See “ManagemestDiscussion and Analysis
Financial Condition and Results of Operations — héaRisk Disclosures.”

Mid-Stream Assets

Energy Services operates a natural gas liquefacsimmage and vaporization facility in Temple, Peyivania (‘Temple
Facility”), and propane storage and propairemixing stations in Bethlehem, Reading and HaklGreek, Pennsylvania. It a
operates propane storage, rail transshipment tatsniand propanaiw mixing stations in Steelton and Williamsp
Pennsylvania. These assets are used in Energyc8&mnergy peaking business that provides supplementaly, primaril
liquefied natural gas and propane-air mixturegas utilities at times of peak demand.

In Fiscal 2009, Energy Services began construatioa propane air plant in White Deer, Pennsylvaniancrease i
storage and peak capacities. The White Deer proparmant is expected to be in service in Decendfe2009. During Fisc
2009, Energy Services obtained FERC authorizatmmsbegan construction on the expansion of its Tefacility which wil
increase storage capacity fourfold. The Temple [Ba@xpansion is scheduled to be completed dudatendar year 201
Energy Services also manages natural gas pipelshatarage contracts for UGI Utilities, subjecatoompetitive bid process.

Energy Services sells propane to large nailie retailers, including AmeriGas Partners, amdéraller local deale

throughout Virginia and northeast North Carolinanf its propane import and transshipment facildgated in Chesapea
Virginia.
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Electric Generation

We have an approximate 6% (102 megawatt) ownelgh@pest in the Conemaugh generation station (“Geneyh”),a
1,711 megawatt, codired generation station located near Johnstownn®dvania. Conemaugh is owned by a consortiu
energy companies and operated by a unit of RelRasburces, Inc. Energy Services also owns the tdkr8tation located ne
Wilkes-Barre, Pennsylvania, which is a 44-megawatl{fired facility. The output from these generatiorsets is sold und
fixed-term contracts and on the spot market thraagM. Energy Services is in the process of buildriB0Omegawatt natur
gas fueled power plant to replace the Hunlock itgciT his transition from a coal-fired to a natugasfueled facility is expecte
to be completed in fiscal year 2011. The HunlockiBh is expected to be closed during the thirdtguaf fiscal year 2010.

During Fiscal 2009, Energy Services completed thestruction of a landfill gakieled electricity generation plant
Hegins, Pennsylvania with gross generating capa€iiyl megawatts of electricity. Energy Servicesiswand operates the pl
which is expected to qualify for renewable enermgdis. Energy Services is partnering with Binneys#&ith, Inc. and PPL
develop a 15-acre solar panel park to supply 2 matsa of electrical power to Binney & SmithCrayola facility in Easto
Pennsylvania. This solar project is expected todmapleted during fiscal year 2010.

Competition

Energy Services competes with other marketers acal utilities to sell natural gas, liquid fuelsdarelated services
customers in its service area principally on thsidbaf price, customer service and reliability. Fdectricity generatio
Conemaugh and Hunlock Station compete with oth@egsion stations on the PJM interface where salesbased on t

pricing.
Government Regulation

FERC has jurisdiction over the rates and termscamdiitions of service of wholesale sales of eleatepacity and ener
as well as the sales for resale of natural gasrelated storage and transportation services. En®egyices has a tariff on f
with FERC pursuant to which it may make power sédewholesale customers at marketsed rates. Energy Services alsc
marketbased rate authority for power sales to wholesadtomers to the extent that Energy Services pueshaswer in exce
of its retail customer needs. Energy Services aigos electric generation facilities that are witttie control area of PIJM a
are dispatched in accordance with a FE&RProved open access tariff and associated agréemeministered by PIJM. Ene
Services receives certain revenues collected by, BdMrmined under a formulary rate schedule. Bn8ggvices is also subjt
to FERC market manipulation rules and enforcemadtragulatory powers. Se&as Utility and Electric Utility Regulation a
Rates — FERC Market Manipulation Rules and OthéREENnforcement and Regulatory Powers.”

The operation of Hunlock Station generally comphéth the air quality standards of the Pennsylvabigpartment ¢
Environmental Protection (“DEPvith respect to stack emissions. Under the Fedataer Pollution Control Act, Hunlox
Station has a permit from the DEP to discharge miate the North Branch of the Susquehanna Rivée federal Clean A
Act Amendments of 1990 impose emissions limitatifmiscertain compounds, including sulfur dioxidedanitrous oxides. Bo
the Conemaugh Station and the Hunlock Station mreaterial compliance with these current emissitamdards. Ener¢
Services is currently assessing the operationahainpf compliance with pending environmental retjaies related to mercu
emission standards for Conemaugh and Hunlock &tatio

Energy Services is subject to various federalgstad local environmental, safety and transporidaas and regulatio
governing the storage, distribution and transpiotiabf propane and the operation of bulk storag& ltBrminals. These la)
include, among others, the Resource ConservatidriRa&covery Act, CERCLA, the Clean Air Act, the Opational Safety ar
Health Act, the Homeland Security Act of 2002, Breergency Planning and Community Right to Know Aleg Clean Wat
Act and comparable state statutes. CERCLA impasies and several liability on certain classes afspas considered to he
contributed to the release or threatened release“bfzardous substanciito the environment without regard to fault or
legality of the original conduct. Propane is nétaaardous substance within the meaning of fededhzost state environmer
laws.
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Employees
At September 30, 2009, Energy Services and itsidialbes had approximately 200 employees.
HVAC/R

We conduct a heating, ventilation, amnditioning, refrigeration and electrical contiagtservice business through U
HVAC Enterprises, Inc. (“HVAC/R”) serving portionsf eastern Pennsylvania and the Mitdantic region, including tr
Philadelphia suburbs and portions of New Jerseyramthern Delaware. This business serves more 168f000 customers
residential, commercial, industrial and new corgtam markets. During Fiscal 2009, HVAC/R generatgghroximatel
$85 million in revenues and employed approxima#é&§ people.

GLOBAL CLIMATE CHANGE

There is a growing concern, both nationally anérimationally, about climate change and the contibbuof greenhous
gas (“GHG") emissions, most notably carbon dioxide, to globaiming. While some states have adopted laws reggl#te
emission of GHGs for some industry sectors, themirently no federal regulation mandating theiotion of GHG emissiol
in the United States. In June of 2009, the Unit¢ateS House of Representatives passed the Ame@tzan Energy ar
Security Act (“ACES Act”). The ACES Act would est@h an economy-wide GHG cap-atrdde system to reduce Gl
emissions over time. Subsequently, the United Staemate offered a draft of its own climate charitjethe Clean Energy Jo
and American Power Act. While the Senat#ill is based on the ACES Act, there are diffeeenbetween the bills and
legislation can be enacted until a final combindldsapproved by both the House of Representatased the Senate.

In September of 2009, the Environmental Protecfigency issued a final rule establishing an econevde system fc
mandatory reporting of GHG emissions. Facilitiebjsct to the rule, which include our natural gastriiution businesses ¢
our electricity generation facilities, are requitedbegin emissions monitoring in January of 2020 & submit detailed ann
reports beginning in March of 2011. The rule does mequire affected facilities to implement GHG esion controls (
reductions.

Two of the commodities we sell, namely LPG and redtgas, are considered clean alternative fuelgutiek federal Cle:
Air Act Amendments of 1990. We anticipate that thi§ provide us with a competitive advantage ow#rer sources of enert
such as fuel oil and coal, when new climate chaegelations become effective. In addition, we ar¢hie process of refini
and implementing our strategy to identify both @HG emissions and our energy consumption in omldretin a position
comply with new regulations and to take advantdgeng opportunities that may arise from the regafabf such emissions.

BUSINESS SEGMENT INFORMATION
The table stating the amounts of revenues, opgraticome (loss) and identifiable assets attribwetabl each of UGE
reportable business segments, and to the geograggds in which we operate, for the 2009, 200820 fiscal years appe.
in Note 21 to Consolidated Financial Statementhiged in Item 8 of this Report and is incorporatedein by reference.

EMPLOYEES

At September 30, 2009, UGI and its subsidiariesagmtoximately 9,700 employees.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

There are many factors that may affect our busiaesisresults of operations. Additional discussiegarding factors th:
may affect our business and operating resultscisded elsewhere in this Report.

Decreases in the demand for our energy products and services because of warmer-than-normal heating season weather
may adver sely affect our results of operations.

Because many of our customers rely on our energgyats and services to heat their homes and bs&isesur results «
operations are adversely affected by warmer-thamal heating season weather. Weather conditiaae h significant impau
on the demand for our energy products and serf@gelsoth heating and agricultural purposes. Acaugtli, the volume of ou
energy products sold is at its highest during thakpheating season of October through March anlitéstly affected by th
severity of the winter weather. For example, histily, approximately 65% to 70% of AmeriGas Partheannual retai
propane volume, Gas Utility’ natural gas throughput (the total volume of gad ® or transported for customers within
distribution system) and Antargaahnual retail LPG volume has been sold during tieseths. There can be no assurance
normal winter weather in our market areas will adauthe future.

Our holding company structure could limit our ability to pay dividends or debt service.

We are a holding company whose material assetsharstock of our subsidiaries. Our ability to payidkends on ou
common stock and to pay principal and accrued ésteon our debt, if any, depends on the paymedividends to us by ot
principal subsidiaries, AmeriGas, Inc., UGI Ut#is, Inc. and UGI Enterprises, Inc. (including Agtam). Payments to us |
those subsidiaries, in turn, depend upon their @adested results of operations and cash flows amdhe case of AmeriGe
Partners, the provisions of its partnership agregnihe operations of our subsidiaries are affebigdonditions beyond ot
control, including weather, competition in natiorsadd international markets we serve, the costsasailability of propane
butane, natural gas, electricity, and other ensmyces and capital market conditions. The abiftpur subsidiaries to mal
payments to us is also affected by the level okliddness of our subsidiaries, which is substaraia the restrictions ¢
payments to us imposed under the terms of suctbiadeess.

Our profitability is subject to LPG pricing and inventory risk.

The retail LPG business is a “margin-basedsiness in which gross profits are dependent uperexcess of the sal
price over the LPG supply costs. LPG is a commaodity, as such, its unit price is subject to viddtuctuations in response
changes in supply or other market conditions. Wieh# control over these market conditions. Conestly, the unit price ¢
the LPG that our subsidiaries and other marketershase can change rapidly over a short perioohaf. tMost of our domesti
LPG product supply contracts permit suppliers targk posted prices at the time of delivery or tin@ent prices established
major U.S. storage points such as Mont Belvieu,afexr Conway, Kansas. Most of our international LSR@ply contracts ai
based on internationally quoted market prices. Beeaur subsidiariegrofitability is sensitive to changes in wholessigply
costs, it will be adversely affected if we cannas® on increases in cost to our customers. Duertpetitive pricing in thi
industry, our subsidiaries may not be able to jpasproduct cost increases to our customers whettuptaosts rise rapidly, ¢
when our competitors do not raise their produatgsi Finally, market volatility may cause our sdizies to sell LPG at le:
than the price at which they purchased it, whiclu@dversely affect our operating results.

Energy efficiency and technology advances, as well as price induced customer conservation, may result in reduced
demand for our energy products and services.

The trend toward increased conservation and teogieal advances, including installation of improvadulation and th
development of more efficient furnaces and othetihg devices, may reduce the demand for energyugts. Prices for LP(
and natural gas are subject to volatile fluctuationresponse to changes in supply and other madketitions. During perioc
of high energy commaodity costs, our prices gengiialirease which may lead to customer conservafiarduction in deman
could lower our revenues, and therefore, lower et income and adversely affect our cash flowsteStand/or federe
regulation may require mandatory conservation nreaswhich would reduce the demand for our energgyrts. We cannc
predict the materiality of the effect of future senvation measures or the effect that any techiz@bgdvances in heatin
conservation, energy generation or other devicghnfiave on our operations.
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Volatility in credit and capital markets may restrict our ability to grow, increase the likelihood of defaults by our
customers and counterparties and adversely affect our operating results.

The recent volatility in credit and capital marketay create additional risks to our businesseshénftture. We ar
exposed to financial market risk (including refinany risk) resulting from, among other things, ap@sin interest rates, forei
currency exchange rates and conditions in the tcaedi capital markets. Recent developments in thdittmarkets increase o
possible exposure to the liquidity, default andddreisks of our suppliers, counterparties assedatith derivative financie
instruments and our customers. Although we beligna¢ recent financial market conditions, if theyrevéo continue for th
foreseeable future, will not have a significant aonpon our ability to fund our existing operatiosgch market conditions cou
restrict our ability to grow through acquisitiottimit the scope of major capital projects if accessredit and capital markets
limited, or could otherwise adversely affect ouergiing results.

The economic recession, volatility in the stock market and the low interest rate environment may negatively impact our
pension liability.

The economic recession, the recent decline inttiek snarket and the low interest rate environmeviehhad a significar
impact on our pension liability and funded statddditional declines in the stock market and valoatf stocks, combined wil
continued low interest rates, could further impawat pension liability and increase the amount guieed contributions to ot
pension plans.

Supplier defaults may have a negative effect on our operating results.

When the Company enters into fixed-price salesraotg with customers, it typically enters into fixerice purchas
contracts with suppliers. Depending on changehémtarket prices of products compared to the psSeesred in our contrac
with suppliers of LPG and natural gas, a defaulbred or more of our suppliers under such contreatsd cause us to purche
LPG and natural gas at higher prices which woultehanegative impact on our operating results.

We are dependent on our principal propane suppliers, which increases the risks from an interruption in supply and
transportation.

During Fiscal 2009, AmeriGas Propane purchasedoappately 80% of its propane needs from ten supgli supplies
from these sources were interrupted, the cost@tysmg replacement supplies and transporting tisopplies from alternativ
locations might be materially higher and, at leasta shorterm basis, our earnings could be affected. Adaltily, in certair
areas, some of AmeriGas Propangippliers provide more than 50% of its propaqeirements. Disruptions in supply in the
areas could also have an adverse impact on oumgarmntargaz is similarly dependent upon its $igpp. LPG must b
imported to meet demand in France. There is narasse that Antargaz will be able to continue tousegsufficient supplies ¢
LPG to meet demand at prices or within time perib@s$ would allow it to remain competitive.

Changesin commodity market prices may have a negative effect on our liquidity.
Depending on the terms of our contracts with s@ppliand some large customers, as well as our udmafcial
instruments to reduce volatility in the cost of LP&ectricity or natural gas, and for all of oumtmcts with the NYMEX

changes in the market price of LPG, electricity aatlral gas can create margin payment obligafmnte Company or one
its subsidiaries and expose us to an increaseiliguisk.
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Our operations may be adversely affected by competition from other energy sources.

Our energy products and services face competitimm bther energy sources, some of which are lesttydor equivalen
energy value. In addition, we cannot predict thieatfthat the development of alternative energyrasi might have on ol
operations.

Our propane businesses compete for customers agapyliers of electricity, fuel oil and naturalsg&lectricity is a majao
competitor of propane. In the United States, prepgenerally enjoys a competitive price advantager electricity for spac
heating, water heating and cooking. Fuel oil i® @smajor competitor of propane and is generallg kexpensive than propal
Furnaces and appliances that burn propane wilbpetate on fuel oil and vice versa, and, therefaregnversion from one fu
to the other requires the installation of new emept. Our customers generally have an incentiventitch to fuel oil only i
fuel oil becomes significantly less expensive thampane. Except for certain industrial and comnaétapplications, propane
generally not competitive with natural gas in ared®re natural gas pipelines already exist becaaggral gas is generally
less expensive source of energy than propane. fitigl expansion of natural gas distribution systémour service areas h
resulted, and may continue to result, in the abditg of natural gas in some areas that previouspended upon propane.
long as natural gas remains a less expensive esetgge than propane, our propane business wdldastomers in each regi
into which natural gas distribution systems areaexjed. In France, the statemed natural gas monopoly, Gaz de France
in the past extended France’s natural gas grid.

Our natural gas businesses compete primarily weébtecity and fuel oil, and, to a lesser extenithwpropane and coe
Competition among these fuels is primarily a fumctof their comparative price and the relative carstl efficiency of fue
utilization equipment. There can be no assuranaedthr natural gas revenues will not be adversiébected by this competition.

Our ability to increase revenues is adversely affected by the maturity of theretail propane industry.

The retail propane industry in the U.S., France Andtria is mature, with only modest growth in tad@mand for th
product foreseen. Given this limited growth, we eothat year-tgrear industry volumes will be principally affected weathel
patterns. Therefore, our ability to grow within ghi@pane industry is dependent on our ability tfguare other retail distributol
and to achieve internal growth, which includes egian of the ACE and Strategic Accounts prograrasyell as the success
our sales and marketing programs designed to a#irat retain customers. Any failure to retain anol\gour customer bas
would have an adverse effect on our results.

Our ability to grow our businesses will be adversely affected if we are not successful in making acquisitions or
integrating the acquisitions we have made.

One of our strategies is to grow through acquisgio the United States and in international markéte may choose
finance future acquisitions with debt, equity, casha combination of the three. We can give no r@sges that we will fini
attractive acquisition candidates in the futurat tive will be able to acquire such candidates amemically acceptable terrr
that we will be able to finance acquisitions on remmically acceptable terms, that any acquisitioni not be dilutive to
earnings or that any additional debt incurred taifice an acquisition will not affect our abilitygay dividends.

In addition, the restructuring of the energy maskietthe United States and internationally, inahgdihe privatization ¢
government-owned utilities and the sale of utiityned assets, is creating opportunities for, angpsdition from, well-
capitalized competitors, which may affect our d@pito achieve our business strategy.

To the extent we are successful in making acqaissti such acquisitions involve a number of riskgjuding, but no
limited to, the assumption of material liabilitiete diversion of managemestattention from the management of di
operations to the integration of operations, difies in the assimilation and retention of empkseand difficulties in th
assimilation of different cultures and practices well as in the assimilation of broad and geogiagly dispersed personn
and operations. The failure to successfully integracquisitions could have an adverse effect on lmsiness, financi
condition and results of operations.
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Our need to comply with comprehensive, complex, and sometimes unpredictable government regulations may increase
our costs and limit our revenue growth, which may result in reduced earnings.

While we generally refer to our Gas Utility and &léc Utility segments as our “regulated segmentsgre are man
governmental regulations that have an impact orbasmesses. Existing statutes and regulationsbmagvised or reinterpret:
and new laws and regulations may be adopted omhbe@pplicable to the Company which may affect aisitesses in way
that we cannot predict.

Regulators may not allow timely recovery of costs for UGI Utilitiesin the future, which may adversely affect our results
of operations.

In our Gas Ultility and Electric Utility segmentsyrooperations are subject to regulation by the PO PUC, amon
other things, approves the rates that UGI Utilitieesy charge their utility customers, thus impactimg returns that UGI Utilitie
may earn on the assets that are dedicated to tpesations. We expect that PNG and CPG will peciaitii file requests witl
the PUC to increase base rates that each compangeshcustomers. If UGI Utilities is required image proceeding to redu
the rates they charge their utility customers,fad@®l Utilities is unable to obtain approval fomely rate increases from t
PUC, particularly when necessary to cover increazedds, UGI Utilities’revenue growth will be limited and earnings n
decrease.

Our operations, capital expenditures and financial results may be affected by regulatory changes and/or market
responses to global climate change.

There is a growing concern, both nationally ancerimationally, about climate change and the contidbuof GHG
emissions, most notably carbon dioxide, to globarming. In response to this concern, the UnitedteStaHouse o
Representatives passed the American Clean Enedypacurity Act (“ACES Act”) in June of 2009 to dsliah an economy-
wide GHG cap-andrade system to reduce GHG emissions over times&utently, the United States Senate offered a
climate change bill, the Clean Energy Jobs and AcarrPower Act, based on the ACES Act. The propésgidlation include:
a cap-and-trade policy structure in which GHG emoiss from a broad crossection of the economy would be subject tc
overall cap. The legislation establishes mechanfem&HG sources to obtain allowances to emit Gld@isng the course of
year which may be used to cover their own emissioribey can be sold to other sources that do oloténough allowances fi
their own operations.

It is expected that climate change legislation wdhtinue to be a priority in the foreseeable fetand it is anticipated th
federal legislation mandating the reduction of GEI@issions on an economyiele basis may be enacted during calendar
2010. Increased regulation of GHG emissions, eafigdn the electric generation and transportats@etors, could impos
significant additional costs on UGI and our custsnd@he impact of legislation and regulations owilsdepend on a numb
of factors, including (i) what industry sectors waibe impacted, (ii) the timing of required comple, (iii) the overall GHC
emissions cap level, (iv) the allocation of emias&dlowances to specific sources and (v) the castsopportunities associat
with compliance. At this time, we cannot predict #iffect that domestic and international climatenge regulation may ha
on our business, financial condition or resultepérations in the future.

We are subject to operating and litigation risks that may not be covered by insurance.

Our business operations in the U.S. and other degnaresubject to all of the operating hazards and ristismally
incidental to the handling, storage and distributad combustible products, such as LPG, propanenratdral gas, and tt
generation of electricity. As a result, we are stmes a defendant in legal proceedings and litigratirising in the ordinar
course of business. There can be no assuranceuhgtsurance will be adequate to protect us frrmaterial expenses relat
to pending and future claims or that such levelssfirance will be available in the future at eaoiaal prices.

We may be unable to respond effectively to competition, which may adversely affect our operating results.
We may be unable to timely respond to changes withé energy and utility sectors that may resumfrregulatory
initiatives to further increase competition witroar industry. Such regulatory initiatives may cesapportunities for addition:

competitors to enter our markets and, as a resaltmay be unable to maintain our revenues or coatio pursue our curre
business strategy.
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Our net income will decrease if we are required to incur additional costs to comply with new governmental safety,
health, transportation, tax and environmental regulations.

We are subject to extensive and changing intemaljcfederal, state and local safety, health, partation, tax an
environmental laws and regulations governing tbessfe, distribution and transportation of our eggngducts.

New regulations, or a change in the interpretatibexisting regulations, could result in increasegenditures. In additiol
for many of our operations, we are required to iobp@rmits from regulatory authorities. Failuredfatain or comply with thes
permits or applicable laws could result in civildacriminal fines or the cessation of the operationsiolation. Government:
regulations and policies in the United States amefe may provide for subsidies or incentives tst@mers who use alternati
fuels instead of carbon fuels. These subsidiesrarahtives may result in reduced demand for ourggnproducts and services.

We are investigating and remediating contaminagioa number of present and former operating sitélsd U.S., includin
former sites where we or our former subsidiariesrafed manufactured gas plants. We have also estehaims from thirc
parties that allege that we are responsible fotsctus clean up properties where we or our formdysiliaries operated
manufactured gas plant or conducted other opemtiGosts we incur to remediate sites outside oh&gdwania cannot b
recovered in future PUC rate proceedings, and amg may not cover all or even part of these c@sts.actual costs to clei
up these sites may exceed our current estimate®daetors beyond our control, such as:

e the discovery of presently unknown conditio

e changes in environmental laws and regulati

* judicial rejection of our legal defenses to thed-party claims; o

« the insolvency of other responsible parties asitess at which we are involve

In addition, if we discover additional contaminatgtés, we could be required to incur material £osthich would reduc
our net income.

Our international operations could result in increased risks which may negatively affect our business results.

We currently operate LPG distribution businesselBurope through our subsidiaries, Antargaz anddktd we continu
to explore the expansion of our international beisges. As a result, we face risks in doing busiabssad that we do not fa
domestically. Certain aspects inherent in tranggcbusiness internationally could negatively impaat operating result
including:

«  costs and difficulties in staffing and managingmftional operation:
» tariffs and other trade barrie

« difficulties in enforcing contractual right

* longer payment cycle:

« local political and economic conditior

. potentially adverse tax consequences, includiegtrictions on repatriating earnings and the thiafat'double
taxatior”;

« fluctuations in currency exchange rates, whichaffect demand and increase our cc
< internal control and risk management practicesplidies; anc

e regulatory requirements and changes in regulagguirements, including French, Austrian and EU cetitipn laws
that may adversely affect the terms of contracth wiistomers, and stricter regulations applicablthé storage ai
handling of LPG. For additional information see &léb to Consolidated Financial Stateme
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ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.
ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

With the exception of those matters set forth ineNth to Consolidated Financial Statements, nomahtegal proceeding
are pending involving UGI, any of its subsidiaries, any of their properties, and no such proceediage known to t
contemplated by governmental authorities other ttlaims arising in the ordinary course of business.
ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No matter was submitted to a vote of security hadiiring the last fiscal quarter of Fiscal 2009.

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS
Information regarding our executive officers islided in Part Il of this Report and is incorporhta Part | by reference.

PART II:

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT 'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND
ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Information
Our Common Stock is traded on the New York Stockhaxge under the symbol “UGIThe following table sets forth t

high and low sales prices for the Common StockhenNew York Stock Exchange Composite Transactiape s reported
TheWall StreetJournalfor each full quarterly period within the two mastent fiscal years:

2009 Fiscal Yeal High Low

4th Quartel $ 26.9¢ $ 24.3:
3rd Quarte 26.04 22.11
2nd Quarte 27.3¢ 21.13¢
1st Quarte 26.6¢ 18.6¢
2008 Fiscal Yeal High Low
4th Quartel $ 28.6¢ $ 24.3¢
3rd Quarte 28.81 25.02
2nd Quarte 27.4: 23.9¢
1st Quarte 28.1¢ 24.7¢
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Dividends

Quarterly dividends on our Common Stock were pailiscal 2009 and Fiscal 2008 as follows:
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2009 Fiscal Year Amount

4th Quartel $ 0.2000(
3rd Quarte! 0.1925(
2nd Quarte 0.1925(
1st Quarte 0.1925(
2008 Fiscal Year Amount

4th Quartel $ 0.1925(
3rd Quarte! 0.1850(
2nd Quarte 0.1850(
1st Quarte 0.1850(

Record Holders

On November 16, 2009, UGI had 8,053 holders ofndeod Common Stock.
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Year Ended September &

(Millions of dollars, except per share amou 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
FOR THE PERIOD:
Income statement data:
Revenue: $ 5,737.¢ $ 6,648.: $ 5476.¢ $ 5,221( $ 4,888.
Net income $ 258t $ 215t $ 204: $ 176 $ 187t
Earnings per common sha
Basic $ 2.3¢ $ 2.01 $ 1.92 $ 1.67 $ 1.81
Diluted $ 2.3€ $ 1.9¢ $ 1.8¢ $ 1.65 $ 1.77
Cash dividend declared per commonst $ 0.78¢ $ 0.75¢ $ 0.72¢ $ 0.69C $  0.65(
AT PERIOD END:
Balance sheet data:
Total asset $ 6,042.¢ $ 5,685.( $ 5,502. $ 5,080.f $ 4,571!
Capitalization;
Debt:
Bank loans— UGI Utilities $ 154( $ 57.C $ 190.( $ 216.( $ 81.
Bank loans— Antargaz — 70.2 — — —
Bank loans<— other 9.1 9.C 8.¢ 9.4 16.2
Long-term debt (including current
maturities):
AmeriGas Propan 865.€ 933.2 933.1 933.1% 913.t
Antargaz 557.% 537. 544.¢ 483.t 431.1
UGI Utilities 640.( 532.( 512.( 512.( 237.(
Other 69.¢ 66.2 63.5 67.7 62.¢
Total debi 2,296.. 2,205.! 2,252. 2,222 1,741.¢
Minority interests, principally in
AmeriGas Partnet 225.¢ 159.2 1922 139.t 206.:
Common stockholde’ equity 1,591.. 1,417, 1,321.¢ 1,099.¢ 997.¢
Total capitalizatior $ 4,113.( $ 3,782. $ 3,766.! $ 3,461. $ 2,945.¢
Ratio of capitalization:
Total debt 55.€% 58.2% 59.8% 64.2% 59.1%
Minority interests, principally in AmeriGas
Partners 5.5% 4.2% 5.1% 4.C% 7.C%
Common stockholde’ equity 38.7% 37.5% 35.1% 31.8% 33.5%
100.0% 100.(% 100.(% 100.(% 100.(%
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AN D RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financi@ahdition and Results of Operations (“MD&Abiscusses our rest
of operations and our financial condition. MD&A sl be read in conjunction with our ltems 1 & 2,uness and Properties,”
our Item 1A, “Risk Factors” and our Consolidateddicial Statements in Iltem 8 below including “Segmkformation”
included in Note 21 to Consolidated Financial Stagsts.

Executive Overview

Our net income in Fiscal 2009 was $258.5 milliom,irzcrease of 20% over Fiscal 2008 net income d&32 million. A
number of factors contributed to this improved parfance. The most significant contributor to th@liaved performance wa:
substantial year-oveyear decline in LPG commodity costs both in the .Ua8d in our International Propane operati
Commaodity prices for LPG declined precipitouslyvees entered our critical winter heating season anfiist quarter of Fisc
2009 following a significant increase in LPG prickging most of the second half of Fiscal 2008.aA=sult of the declines
LPG commodity prices, our AmeriGas Propane andrhat@nal Propane businesses realized higher tioamai retail uni
margins. Although LPG commodity prices rose mogéstler in Fiscal 2009 from earlier Fiscal 2009 It@vels, U.S. propai
commodity prices at the end of Fiscal 2009 were@pmately 35% lower than at September 30, 2008, nopane prices
Europe at the end of Fiscal 2009 were approxima&&8hp lower than at the end of Fiscal 2008. Alsotdbuating to improve
performance during Fiscal 2009, most of our domesstid international business units experiencedheedhat was, to varyil
degrees, colder than in Fiscal 2008. Our Gas WYtiéisults in Fiscal 2009 were better than in Fi&H18 in large part reflectil
accretive income from the operations of CPG Gaslised) on October 1, 2008. During Fiscal 2009, CP& @nd PNG G
filed separate requests with the PUC to increase bperating revenues. We received PUC approvatofased rates that w
into effect in late August 2009. The combined imses in annual base rate revenues approved t&2%8 million. Due to tt
timing of the new rates, they did not have a matémpact on our Fiscal 2009 results. Results st&li2009 also benefited frt
the Partnership’s November 2008 sale of its Calitot. PG storage facility which increased UGI’'s metome by $10.4 million.

Partially offsetting the previouslyrentioned contributions to our net income in Fi209 were lower results from Ene
Services and Electric Utility, a charge associatétth the Antargaz Competition Authority Matter attte global recessios’
effects on general economic activity in all of dwwsiness units. Lower and less volatile commoditygs for natural gas ant
general decline in demand for electricity due igéapart to the economic recession resulted in d@Aaxtricity prices in Fisc
2009. These lower prices resulted in reduced marfyiim spot sales of electricity. In addition, EmeiServices’electricity
generation volumes were reduced by higher produdigages and electric generation expenses weherhiig Fiscal 2009 di
in part to charges related to obligations assogiatieh its ongoing Hunlock Station repowering pijeElectric Utility result
declined in Fiscal 2009 reflecting the impact of tlecession on volumes sold and higher purchasegrpoosts. Our Fisc
2009 net income was also reduced by a $10.0 millioerge at Antargaz based on our initial assessofeatStatement
Objections received from France’s Competition Auitlyo

The U.S. dollar was stronger versus the euro iodFid009 compared to Fiscal 2008. Although thengteo dollar general
resulted in lower translated International Propaperating results, the effects of the strongeradadin reported Internatior
Propane net income were substantially offset byngyain forward currency contracts used to hedgehpses of dollar-
denominated LPG.

Looking ahead, our results in Fiscal 2010 will bBuenced by a number of factors including heategson temperatu
in our business units, the length and severityhef global recession on economic activity, and theell and volatility c
commodity prices for natural gas, LPG and eledtricAs previously mentioned, the precipitous dezlin LPG commodit
prices principally during the first quarter of Ri$@2009 resulted in higher than normal unit margmsur AmeriGas Propa
and International Propane businesses. We expecht#esage retail unit margins in Fiscal 2010 in taternational Propal
business will be lower than the average unit margéalized in Fiscal 2009 when LPG commaodity prigeslined significantl
entering our critical winter heating season. At igyeServices, sustained low prices for electricggles would continue
negatively impact results. At UGI Utilities, our egkric Utility’s default service settlement with the PUC, whicledpee:
effective January 1, 2010, allows for the recovefyprudently incurred electricity costs but elimies the opportunity fi
Electric Utility to realize revenue in excess otlkicosts on electricity sales. This will resultaimeduction in Electric Utilitys
Fiscal 2010 operating income.
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We believe that each of our business units hascgirif liquidity in the form of revolving credit &lities, letters of cred
and guarantee agreements to fund business oper#&tiothe foreseeable future. Due in large padéddining commodity price
for LPG and natural gas, Fiscal 2009 cash flow wtasnger than Fiscal 2008 as our total investmenivorking capita
principally accounts receivable and inventories;lided. We do not have significant amounts of léegn debt maturing
revolving credit agreements terminating at our mhjgsiness units until late in Fiscal 2011.

Results of Operations

The following analyses compare the Compamgsults of operations for (1) Fiscal 2009 witkdal 2008 and (2) Fis¢
2008 with the year ended September 30, 2007 (“FXa@r").

Fiscal 2009 Compared with Fiscal 2008
Consolidated Results

Variance Favorable

2009 2008 (Unfavorable)
% of % of
Net Total Total
Income Net Net Net Net %
(Millions of dollars) (Loss) Income Income Income Income Change
AmeriGas Propan $ 65 251% $ 43¢ 20&% $ 211 48.1%
International Propan 78.% 30.2% 52.: 24.% 26.C 49.7%
Gas Utility 70.2 27.2% 60.2 28.(% 10.C 16.€%
Electric Utility 8.C 3.1% 13.1 6.1% (5.7 (38.9%
Energy Service 38.1 14.7% 45.2 21.(% (7.2 (15.9%
Corporate & Othe (1.2 (0.4% 0.€ 0.2% (1.9 N.M.
Total $ 258.t 100.(% $ 215t 100.% $ 43.C 20.(%

N.M. — Variance is not meaningful.
Highlights — Fiscal 2009 versus Fiscal 2008

«  Higher unit margins at AmeriGas Propane and Antargflect significant declines in LPG commodityqas$ enterin
our critical heating seasa

. Most of our business units experienced FiscaB2@8atingseason temperatures that were to varying degrddst
than in Fiscal 200¢

*  Fiscal 2009 Gas Utility results include the benefithe CPG Acquisition on October 1, 20

« AmeriGas Partne’ sale of its California LPG storage terminal geredlatet income of $10.4 milliol

e The global economic recession reduced overall legsiactivity in all of our business uni

* International Propane results reflect a $10.0 arilicharge for the Antargaz Competition Authoritytida
«  Energy Service' results were adversely impacted by lower incomefetectricity generatior

*  Electric Utility results were lower reflecting thedfects of higher cost of sales and lower demand assult of th
recession
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Increase
AmeriGas Propane 2009 2008 (Decrease
(Millions of dollars)
Revenue: $ 2,260.: $ 2,815: $ (555.) (19.97%
Total margin (a $ 943.¢ $ 906.¢ $ 36.7 4.0%
Partnership EBITDA (b $ 381. $ 313.( $ 68.4 21.%
Operating incomi $ 300.k $ 235.( $ 65.5 27.%
Retail gallons sold (millions 928.2 993.2 (65.0 (6.5)%
Degree day— % (warmer) than normal (c (2.5)% (3.0% — —

(&) Total margin represents total revenues less toktlaf sales

(b) Partnership EBITDA (earnings before interest expemscome taxes and depreciation and amortizasbould not b
considered as an alternative to net income (asdinator of operating performance) and is not asueaof performant
or financial condition under accounting principksnerally accepted in the United States of Amefidanagement us
Partnership EBITDA as the primary measure of segmasfitability for the AmeriGas Propane segmerge(Note 21 1
Consolidated Financial Statemen

(c) Deviation from average heating degree-daystlie 30-year period 1972000 based upon national weather stati
provided by the National Oceanic and Atmospheriankdstration (“NOAA”) for 335 airports in the United Stat
excluding Alaska. Fiscal 2008 data has been adjusteorrect a NOAA errol

Based upon heating degrday data, average temperatures in our serviceaes during Fiscal 2009 were 2.5% war
than normal compared with temperatures in the préar that were 3.0% warmer than normal. FiscaB2@@ail gallons so
were 6.5% lower than Fiscal 2008 reflecting, amotiter things, the adverse effects of the significtaterioration in gener
economic activity which has occurred over the lestir and continued customer conservation. Durirsga#i2009, avera
wholesale propane commodity prices at Mont Belviegxas, one of the major supply points in the Uare more than 50
lower than such prices in Fiscal 2008. The decreat®e average wholesale commodity prices in Fi2889 reflects the effec
of a precipitous decline in commodity propane ipencipally during the first quarter of Fiscal@0following a substanti
increase in prices during most of the second HaKiscal 2008. Although wholesale propane price&istal 2009 rebound
modestly from prices experienced earlier in theryaaSeptember 30, 2009 such prices remained ripmaitely 35% lower the
at September 30, 2008.

Retail propane revenues declined $463.2 millioRigtal 2009 reflecting a $303.6 million decrease assult of the low
retail volumes sold and a $159.6 million decrease tb lower average selling prices. Wholesale prepavenues declin
$69.5 million reflecting an $83.7 million decredsam lower wholesale selling prices partially offey a $14.2 million increa
from higher wholesale volumes sold. Total costalés decreased $591.8 million to $1,316.5 millicimgpally reflecting th
effects of the previously mentioned lower propaommodity prices and the lower volumes sold.

Total margin was $36.7 million greater in FiscaD20reflecting the beneficial impact of higher thaormal retail un
margins resulting from the previously mentioneddagecline in propane commodity costs that occumeéaharily as we entert
the critical winter heating season in the first f@mof Fiscal 2009. The increase in total proparagin was partially offset |
lower terminal revenue and ancillary sales andrfeeme.

The $68.4 million increase in Fiscal 2009 Partnigr&BITDA reflects the effects of a $39.9 milliomegax gain from th
November 2008 sale of the Partner’s California LPG storage facility and the previgusientioned $36.7 million increase
total margin. These increases were partially offseslightly higher operating and administrativeperses and slightly low
other income. The slightly higher operating and mistrative expenses reflects, in large part, higt@mpensation and ben:
expenses, higher costs associated with facilitynteaance projects and higher litigation and sedfifed liability and casua
charges offset principally by lower vehicle fuelperses (due to lower propane, diesel and gasofinesp and lower Fisc
2009 uncollectible accounts expense.

30




WPD-6

Table of Contents Screening Data
Page 1939 of 2401

Operating income increased $65.5 million in Fis2@b9 reflecting the previously mentioned $68.4 inillincrease i
EBITDA partially offset by slightly higher depretian and amortization expense associated with a@qns and plant ai
equipment expenditures made since the prior year.

Increase
International Propane 2009 (a) 2008 (Decrease
(Millions of euros)
Revenue! € 712.5 € 749.¢ € (37.7) (4.9%
Total margin (b’ € 392.7 € 314.¢ € 77.€ 24.1%
Operating incom: € 116.: € 70.4 € 45.¢ 65.2%
Income before income tax € 95.2 € 48.¢ € 46.5 95.2%
(Millions of dollars)
Revenue: $ 955.¢ $ 1,124¢ $ (169.9 (15.1%
Total margin (b’ $ 525.¢ $ 472.¢ $ 52.¢ 11.2%
Operating incom: $ 151. $ 106.¢ $ 44.¢€ 41.8%
Income before income tax $ 122.( $ 73.C $ 49.C 67.1%
Antargaz retail gallons so 289.c 292.¢ 3.3 (1.1)%
Degree day— % (warmer) than normal (c (2.9% (4.)% — —

(@) Reflects the consolidation of ZLH subsequenFlagas January 2009 acquisition of the 50% of ZLH it diat alread
own.

(b) Total margin represents total revenues less tottl af sales

(c) Deviation from average heating degree daystfe 30-year period 1972000 at more than 30 locations in our Fre
service territory

Based upon heating degree day data, temperaturdstangaz’ service territory were approximately 2.9% warmear
normal during Fiscal 2009 compared with temperatdinat were approximately 4.1% warmer than normugiind Fiscal 200¢
Temperatures in Flaga'service territory were warmer than normal andmearthan Fiscal 2008. Wholesale propane prc
costs declined significantly during late Fiscal 2@thd the first quarter of Fiscal 2009 as we edtéhne critical winter heatir
season. As a result, the average wholesale comynaidite for propane in northwest Europe in Fisda02 was approximate
41% lower than such price in Fiscal 2008. Simileclthes in average wholesale butane prices werergxmed in Fiscal 20C
Antargaz’ Fiscal 2009 retail LPG volumes were slightly lowkan in Fiscal 2008 reflecting the colder FiscaD2@veathe
offset by the effects of the deterioration of gaheconomic conditions in France, customer consemvand competition fro
alternate energy sources.

Our International Propane baserrency results are translated into U.S. dollased upon exchange rates experie
during each of the reporting periods. During Fi@09, the average currency translation rate wa@53der euro compared t
rate of $1.51 per euro during Fiscal 2008. Althoubbk stronger dollar resulted in lower translatatednational Propal
operating results, the effects of the strongeradadin reported International Propane net incomeevseibstantially offset |
gains on forward currency contracts used to hedgehases of dollar-denominated LPG.

International Propane euro-based revenues decr€gsed million or 4.9% in Fiscal 2009 reflecting lomeverage sellir
prices partially offset by an increase in revenfiem the consolidation of ZLH. The lower averagdlisg prices reflect th
previously mentioned year-ovgear decrease in wholesale LPG product costs. $1 dlbllars, revenues declined $169.5 mil
or 15.1% reflecting the previously mentioned tdtalker eurobased revenues and the effects of the stronger dalfar
International Propane’s total cost of sales dee@ds € 320.0 million in Fiscal 2009 from484.9 million in Fiscal 2008,
26.4% decline, principally reflecting the lower perit LPG commodity costs and, to a much lessermgxtbe effects of gai
on forward currency contracts used to hedge puesha$ dollardenominated LPG. On a U.S. dollar basis, cost tds
decreased $222.4 million or 34.1%.
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International Propane euro-based total margin asad €77.8 million or 24.7% in Fiscal 2009 largely refieg the
beneficial impact of higher than normal retail umargins at Antargaz resulting from the rapid ahdrg decline in LP
commodity costs that occurred as we entered theewireating season in the first quarter of Fis€dl®and, to a lesser exte
incremental total margin from the consolidation DfH beginning in January 2009. Also affecting theayoveryeal
comparison was the fact that Antargaz was adversi#écted by lower unit margins in Fiscal 2008 asesult of the rapi
increase in LPG product costs which occurred icdi2008. In U.S. dollars, total margin increas&.$ million or 11.29
reflecting the effects of the stronger dollar eanslated euro base-currency revenues and cosesf sa

International Propane euro-based operating incormeased @5.9 million or 65.2% in Fiscal 2009 principallyflecting
the previously mentioned increase in total margituced by a €.1 million charge related to a French Competitbarthority
Matter (as further described below under “Antar@ampetition Authority Matter”Jand higher operating and administra
costs. The higher operating and administrativescpstcipally resulted from the consolidation of thperations of ZLH and,
a much lesser extent, higher operating expenséstatgaz. On a U.S. dollar basis, operating incimseeased $44.6 million
41.8% reflecting the previously-mentioned increimst.S. dollar-denominated total margin and lowes \Udollardenominate
operating and administrative expenses and depi@tiahd amortization partially offset by the $1tndlion charge related
the Antargaz Competition Authority Matter. Euro-bdsncome before income taxes wa46€5 million (95.3%) greater than
the prior year principally reflecting the higherevpting income and lower average effective interatds on Antargazermr
loan. In U.S. dollars, income before income taxegdased $49.0 million (67.1%) reflecting the bénef the higher dollar-
denominated operating income and lower Antargaerést expense including the effects of the stromtgdiar. Loss fror
International Propane equity investees was high&iscal 2009 due to expenditures associated Wwélanticipated closure of
LPG storage facility.

Gas Utility 2009 2008 Increase

(Millions of dollars)

Revenue: $ 1,241« $ 1,138 $ 102.5 9.C%
Total margin (a $ 387.¢ $ 307.2 $ 80.€ 26.2%
Operating incom: $ 153.t $ 137.¢ $ 15.¢ 11.6%
Income before income tax $ 1112 $ 100.t $ 10.¢ 10.7%
System throughpt— billions of cubic feet“bcf”) 149.5 133.% 16.C 12.(%
Degree day— % colder (warmer) than normal ( 4.1% (2.7% — —

(a) Total margin represents total revenues less tottl af sales

(b) Deviation from average heating degree dayshe 15-year period 1990804 based upon weather statistics provide
the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administratf*NOAA") for airports located within Gas Utili's service territory

Temperatures in the Gas Utility service territogséd upon heating degree days were 4.1% coldemibramal in Fisc:
2009 compared with temperatures that were 2.7% wematiman normal in Fiscal 2008. In Fiscal 2009, GHiity begar
calculating normal degree days using the 15-yeaogd990-2004. Previously, normal degree days wese=d upon recent 30-
year periods. For comparison purposes, the Fid2@8 2veather variance has been recalculated usegédtv 1-year perioc
Total distribution throughput increased 16.0 bcfFigcal 2009 principally reflecting the effects tbe October 1, 2008 CF
Acquisition and increases in core-market volumeslilting from the colder Fiscal 2009 weather andrymaeryear custom
growth. Gas Utility’s core-market customers priradip comprise firm- residential, commercial and usttial (“retail core-
market”) customers who purchase their gas from Gas Ultilitgt, 0 a much lesser extent, residential and somatimercie
customers who purchase their gas from alternatplieup. These increases in system throughput wartafly offset by th
effects on volumes sold and transported due to daeenand from commercial and industrial customersaaesult of tt
deterioration in general economic activity and oostr conservation.
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Gas Utility revenues increased $102.7 million isdail 2009 principally reflecting $187.4 million mfcremental revenu
from CPG Gas largely offset by lower revenues flom-margin off-system sales. Increases or decreiasesail coremarke
revenues and cost of sales principally result fdranges in retail cormmarket volumes and the level of gas costs coll
through the PGC recovery mechanism. Under the R&8Qvery mechanism, Gas Utility records the cogjasf associated w
sales to retail corerarket customers at amounts included in PGC rates difference between actual gas costs and therais
included in rates is deferred on the balance si®atregulatory asset or liability and represemtsuats to be collected from
refunded to customers in a future period. As alteguhis PGC recovery mechanism, increases oregses in the cost of ¢
associated with retail core-market customers haveirect effect on retail core-market margin. Gasityy s cost of gas wi
$853.2 million in Fiscal 2009 compared with $83tillion in Fiscal 2008 principally reflecting inamental cost of sales
$117.0 million associated with CPG Gas partialfisef principally by the cost of sales effect of theer off-system sales.

Gas Utility total margin increased $80.6 millionkiscal 2009 principally reflecting incremental miarfrom CPG Gas ai
higher total core-market margin resulting from tigher core-market volumes sold.

The increase in Gas Utility operating income duriiigcal 2009 principally reflects the previouslyntiened greater tot
margin partially offset by higher operating and ausirative and depreciation expenses, principaligremental expens
associated with CPG Gas, and, to a lesser extagitehpension expense, costs associated with emagatal matters al
greater distribution system maintenance expensesnie before income taxes also increased refledtireg previousl
mentioned higher operating income partially offisgthigher interest expense associated with $108miSenior Notes issui
to finance a portion of the CPG Acquisition.

Electric Utility 2009 2008 Decreast

(Millions of dollars)

Revenue:! $ 138.t $ 139. $ (0.7) (0.5)%
Total margin (a $ 392 % 47.C % (7.7) (16.49%
Operating incom: $ 154 % 244 % (9.0 (36.9%
Income before income tax $ 137 % 224 % (8.7) (38.9%
Distribution sale— millions of kilowatt hours“gwh”) 965.7 1,004.. (38.7) (3.9%

(a) Total margin represents total revenues lesd tost of sales and revenuedated taxes, i.e. Electric Utility gross rece
taxes, of $7.6 million and $7.9 million during Faé@2009 and Fiscal 2008, respectively. For findnsiatement purpost
revenur-related taxes are included” Utility taxes other than income ta” on the Consolidated Statements of Inco

Electric Utility’s kilowatt-hour sales in Fiscal 2009 were lower than in Fif8. Temperatures based upon he
degree days in Electric Utilitg’ service territory were approximately 5.0% coltiean last year resulting in greater sale
Electric Utility’s residential heating customers. These greateis sae more than offset, however, by lower sale
commercial and industrial customers as a resulh®fdeterioration in general economic activity &maer weather-related air-
conditioning sales during the summer of Fiscal 200&withstanding the lower sales, Electric Utilisvenues were about eq
with last year as a result of higher POLR rates gne@ter revenues from spot market sales of etégtrElectric Utility cost o
sales increased to $91.6 million in Fiscal 2009nfi$84.3 million in Fiscal 2008 principally reflesj greater purchased po\
costs.

Electric Utility total margin decreased $7.7 mitliduring Fiscal 2009 principally reflecting the héeg cost of sales and "
effects of the lower sales volumes.
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Electric Utility operating income and income befimeome taxes in Fiscal 2009 were $9.0 million &8d7 million lowe
than in Fiscal 2008, respectively, reflecting thevously mentioned lower total margin and highgemating and administrati
costs including higher customer assistance expargkgreater pension expense.

Increase
Energy Services 2009 2008 (Decrease
(Millions of dollars)
Revenue: $ 1,224 $ 1,619 $ (394.9) (24.9%
Total margin (a $ 126.2 $ 124.1 $ 2.1 1.7%
Operating incom: $ 64.¢ $ 77.% $ (12.5) (16.2)%
Income before income tax $ 646 % 7750 % (12.5) (16.29)%

(&) Total margin represents total revenues less tottlaf sales

Energy Services total revenues declined $394.8amilbr 24.4% in Fiscal 2009 principally reflectirbe effects o
revenues of lower unit prices for natural gas, telgty and propane due to year-owarar declines in such energy comma
prices.

Total margin from Energy Services increased $2llioniin Fiscal 2009 reflecting greater total margirincipally fron
peaking supply services and retail electricity sgartially offset by lower electric generationalomargin. The decrease
electric generation total margin reflects lowertsparket prices for electricity and lower volumes geted due in large part
electricity generation facility outages. The desee@n Energy Servicg operating income and income before income tan
Fiscal 2009 largely reflects the previously mengidrincrease in total margin more than offset byhéigelectric generatic
operating and maintenance costs and charges rdfatetlligations associated with its ongoing Hunldtation repowerir
project, and higher asset management costs. Thea$ecin operating income and income before inctaxes also reflec
greater costs associated with Energy Sersiceteivables securitization facility as a restilhigher amounts needed to ft
futures brokerage account margin calls and grefatglity fees subsequent to the renewal of the seration facility in
April 2009.

Interest Expense and Income TaxegConsolidated interest expense decreased slightBi4d.1 million in Fiscal 2009 frao
$142.5 million in Fiscal 2008 principally due tower International Propane interest expense, ataiile to lower effectiv
interest rates and the stronger U.S. dollar, loinrest on UGI Utilities revolving credit agreemdyorrowings and low:
interest expense on AmeriGas Propane lemm debt largely offset by incremental interegbense on CPG Acquisition de
Our effective income tax rate in Fiscal 2009 wasparable to our rate in Fiscal 2008.

Fiscal 2008 Compared with Fiscal 2007
Consolidated Results

Variance Favorable

2008 2007 (Unfavorable)
% of % of
Total Net Total
Net Net Income Net Net %
(Millions of dollars) Income Income (Loss) Income Income Change
AmeriGas Propan $ 43¢ 204 $ 53z 26.% $ (9.9 (17.5%
International Propan 52.2 24.2% 44.¢ 22.(% 7.4 16.5%
Gas Utility 60.5 28.(% 59.C 28.% 1.3 2.2%
Electric Utility 13.1 6.1% 13.7 6.7% (0.6) (4.9%
Energy Service 45.c 21.% 34.5 16.9% 10.€ 31.2%
Corporate & Othe 0.€ 0.2% (1.0 (0.5)% 1.6 N.M.
Total $ 215t 100.(% $ 204.: 100.% $ 112 5.5%

N.M. — Variance is not meaningful.

34




WPD-6

Table of Contents Screening Data
Page 1943 of 2401

Highlights — Fiscal 2008 versus Fiscal 2007

« Energy Services Fiscal 2008 results benefited fgyeater income from peaking supply and storage geman
services and higher electric generation mai

e Fiscal 2008 International Propane results improgigden by a return to more normal weather compavét the
recor¢-setting warm weather experienced in Fiscal 2!

«  Significant increases in LPG cost during most afcBl 2008 caused all propane businesses to experirorease
conservation and certain of our International Pneplausiness units to experience modest unit magginctions

*  AmeriGas Propane total margin was higher in Fi2088 despite the effects of prigeduced customer conservat
on volumes solc

Increase
AmeriGas Propane 2008 2007 (Decrease
(Millions of dollars)
Revenue! $ 2,815.: $ 2,277. $ 537.¢ 23.€%
Total margin (a $ 906.¢ $ 840.: $ 66.7 7.%%
Partnership EBITDA (b $ 313.( $ 338.7 $ (25.7) (7.€)%
Operating incom: $ 235.( $ 265.¢ $ (30.) (11.%
Retail gallons sold (millions 993.2 1,006." (13.5) (1.39%
Degree day— % (warmer) than normal (c (3.0% (6.5)% — —

(&) Total margin represents total revenues less tottlaf sales

(b) Partnership EBITDA (earnings before interest expemscome taxes and depreciation and amortizasbould not b
considered as an alternative to net income (asdinator of operating performance) and is not asueaof performant
or financial condition under accounting principgsnerally accepted in the United States of Ameiridanagement us
Partnership EBITDA as the primary measure of segmasfitability for the AmeriGas Propane segmerge(Note 21 1
Consolidated Financial Statemen

(c) Deviation from average heating degree-daystlie 30-year period 1972000 based upon national weather stati
provided by the National Oceanic and Atmospheriankdstration (“NOAA”) for 335 airports in the United Stat
excluding Alaska. Fiscal 2008 data has been adjusteorrect a NOAA errol

Based upon heating degree-day data, average tetomgsran AmeriGas Propargeservice territories were 3.0% watri
than normal in Fiscal 2008 compared with tempeesttinat were 6.5% warmer than normal in Fiscal 28@iwithstanding th
slightly colder Fiscal 2008 weather and the fulhilybenefits of acquisitions made in Fiscal 200@irgallons sold were slight
lower reflecting, among other things, customer eovation in response to increasing propane prodosts and a we
economy. The average wholesale propane productatddbnt Belvieu, Texas, increased nearly 50% dufiscal 2008 ov:
the average cost during Fiscal 2007.

Retail propane revenues increased $480.7 milliofrigtal 2008 reflecting a $507.0 million increasee do the highe
average selling prices partially offset by a $2@iBion decrease as a result of the lower retalluuees sold. Wholesale prop:
revenues increased $47.8 million in Fiscal 200&c¢tihg a $55.1 million increase from higher averagholesale selling pric
partially offset by a $7.3 million decrease fromvier wholesale volumes sold. Other revenues incde@9e3 million reflectin
in large part higher fee income. Total cost of satereased $471.1 million to $1,908.3 million iisdal 2008 reflecting high
propane product costs.

Total margin was $66.7 million greater in FiscaD&@rincipally reflecting higher average propanegiraper retail gallo
sold and, to a much lesser extent, higher fee ilrcom
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Partnership EBITDA in Fiscal 2008 was $313.0 millmompared to EBITDA of $338.7 million in Fiscal®Q Fiscal 200
EBITDA includes $46.1 million resulting from thelsaf the Partnership’Arizona storage facility. Excluding the effecfdtas
gain in Fiscal 2007, EBITDA in Fiscal 2008 increcisk20.4 million over Fiscal 2007 principally reftery the previousl
mentioned increase in total margin partially offegta $47.9 million increase in operating and adsiiative expenses. T
increased operating expenses reflect expensesiassbwith acquisitions, increased vehicle fuel angintenance expens
greater general insurance expense and, to a lkessat, higher uncollectible accounts expenseglgmjtributable to the high
revenues.

AmeriGas Propane’ operating income decreased $30.8 million in Fi2688 reflecting the lower EBITDA and higl
depreciation and amortization expense resultingnftive fullyear effects of Fiscal 2007 propane business aitiguts and plar
and equipment expenditures.

Increase
International Propane 2008 2007 (Decrease
(Millions of euros)
Revenue! € 749.¢ € 602.¢ € 147.¢ 24.5%
Total margin (a € 314.¢ € 309.¢ € 5.1 1.6%
Operating incom: € 70.2 € 73.% € (2.9 (4.0%
Income before income tax € 48.¢ € 51.4 € (2.6) (5.0)%
(Millions of dollars)
Revenue: $ 1,124.¢ $ 800.< $ 324.¢ 40.5%
Total margin (a $ 472.¢ $ 411.¢ $ 61.1 14.£%
Operating incom: $ 106.¢ $ 94.% $ 12.2 13.(%
Income before income tax $ 73.C $ 64.1 $ 8.¢ 13.9%
Antargaz retail gallons sold (million 292.¢ 269.1 23.t 8.7%
Degree day— % (warmer) than normal (t (4.)% (21.1% — —

(&) Total margin represents total revenues less tottlaf sales

(b) Deviation from average heating degree dayste 30-year period 1972000 at more than 30 locations in our Fre
service territory

Based upon heating degree-day data, temperatur@atargaz’ service territory were approximately 4.1% warmear
normal during Fiscal 2008 compared with temperattinat were approximately 21.1% warmer than nodnahg Fiscal 200
Temperatures in Flaga'service territory were also warmer than normal significantly colder than the prior year. Priradliyp
as a result of the colder weather, Antargeztail volumes sold increased to 292.6 million ga#l in Fiscal 2008 fro
269.1 million gallons in Fiscal 2007. Flaga alsoareled higher retail gallons sold in Fiscal 200Be Deneficial volume effec
on Antargaz resulting from the colder weather weadially offset by customer conservation in resggoto substantially high
LPG commodity costs, the loss of a lemargin industrial customer and a weaker economg dverage wholesale price
propane in northwest Europe during Fiscal 2008 neasly 35% higher than such average price in Fizgav.

During Fiscal 2008, the average currency transiatade was $1.51 per euro compared to a rate @4$during Fisci
2007. The effects of the weaker dollar on year-gu&r International Propane net income were subatiynoffset, however, t
the impact of losses on forward currency contrastl to purchase dollar denominated LPG.

International propane euro-based revenues increisbti7.4 million principally reflecting higher Antargaand Flag
average selling prices during Fiscal 2008 and fghdn Antargaz and Flaga retail volumes sold. hdéonal Propane’ tota
cost of sales increased to € 434.9 million in HI2EO8 from € 292.6 million in Fiscal 2007, largedflecting the higher parnit
LPG commodity costs, the greater volumes sold &md,much lesser extent, higher losses on forwangtocy contracts.

International Propane total margin increasegl¥million or 1.6% in Fiscal 2008 reflecting thi#éeets of the greater ret
sales of LPG substantially offset by a declinewmrage retail unit margin per gallon primarily dioethe significantly highe
LPG commodity costs and increased competition irfage customer segments at Antargaz. In U.S. dylltotal margi
increased $61.1 million or 14.8% principally refieg the effects of the weaker dollar on translaatb baseurrency revenus
and cost of sales.
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International Propane euro-based operating incoaceedsed €.9 million principally reflecting the previouslyantionet
€ 5.1 million increase in total margin more than effby higher operating and administrative expendes,in large part to tl
effects of the increased sales activity and hidhel costs, and greater depreciation from plant equipment additions. Or
U.S. dollar basis, operating income increased $a@ll®n as the previouslyaentioned $61.1 million increase in total ma
was substantially offset by higher U.S. dollar denmated operating and administrative expenses amtediation an
amortization expense. Euro-based income beforeniectaxes was £.6 million lower than last year primarily reflemg the
lower operating income. In U.S. dollars, incomedbefincome taxes was $8.9 million higher than therpyear reflecting tr
higher operating income slightly offset by gredte6. dollar translated interest expense. Althoutdg#s results, includin
those of ZLH, improved in Fiscal 2008 due in lapget to the colder weather, ZLH continued to exgrece the effects on sa
volumes of customer conservation and competitiomfalternative fuels and other suppliers causddripe part by high ar
increasing LPG commodity costs.

Gas Utility 2008 2007 Increase

(Millions of dollars)

Revenue: $ 1,138.1 $ 1,044.¢ $ 93.4 8.€%
Total margin (a $ 307.2 $ 303.¢ $ 3.8 1.2%
Operating incom: $ 137.¢ $ 136.¢ $ 1.C %
Income before income tax $ 100. $ 96.7 $ 3.8 3.€%
System throughpt— billions of cubic feet*bcf”) 133.% 131.¢ 1.¢ 1.4%
Degree day— % (warmer) than normal (t (2.7% (2.9% — —

(a) Total margin represents total revenues less tottl af sales

(b) Deviation from average heating degree day#h® 15-year period 1992004 based upon weather statistics provided k
National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administrati“ NOAA™) for airports located within Gas Util's service territory

Temperatures in the Gas Utility service territoaséd upon heating degree days were 2.7% warmemntramal in Fisc:
2008 compared with temperatures that were 2.4% watiran normal in Fiscal 2007. Total distributioystem throughpi
increased 1.9 bcf in Fiscal 2008 principally refileg greater interruptible delivery service volum@sincipally volume
associated with low margin cogeneration customars) an increase in the number of Gas Utility comrket custome
partially offset by lower average usage per custothe in large part to priceduced customer conservation and a v
economy.

Gas Utility revenues increased $93.4 million incis2008 principally reflecting a $57.4 million me@se in revenues frc
off-system sales and the effects of higher aveRG@€E rates on retail core-market revenues. GastyJsilicost of sales w
$831.1 million in Fiscal 2008 compared with $74tilion in Fiscal 2007 principally reflecting theegnter offsystem sales a
the increase in average retail core-market PGG.rate

Gas Utility total margin increased $3.8 millionkiscal 2008 primarily reflecting modest increasesierruptible deliver
service and core market total margin.
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The increase in Gas Utility operating income pipadly reflects the previously mentioned $3.8 millilcrease in tot
margin and a $5.3 million increase in other incquaetially offset by modestly higher operating amtnénistrative expense
The higher other income reflects in large part gmeatorage contract fees and a $2.2 million ptstraent benefit ple
curtailment gain. The increase in operating andiadtnative expenses includes, among other thihigger environmental lec
costs and greater uncollectible accounts experasg Udlity income before income taxes also refléotger interest expense

bank loans.

Increase
Electric Utility 2008 2007 (Decrease
(Millions of dollars)
Revenue: $ 139.Z $ 121.¢ $ 17.2 14.2%
Total margin (a $ 47.C % 472 % (0.3 (0.6)%
Operating incom: $ 244 % 26.C % (1.6 (6.2)%
Income before income tax $ 22.4 $ 23.€ $ (1.2 (5.)%
Distribution sale— millions of kilowatt hours“gwh”) 1,004 .. 1,010.¢ (6.2 (0.6)%

(a) Total margin represents total revenues lesd tost of sales and reventedated taxes, i.e. Electric Utility gross rece
taxes, of $7.9 million and $6.9 million during F$@008 and Fiscal 2007, respectively. For finansiatement purpost
revenur-related taxes are included” Utility taxes other than income ta” on the Consolidated Statements of Inco

Electric Utility’s kilowatt-hour sales in Fiscal 28 were about equal to Fiscal 2007 on heasiégson weather that v
slightly warmer and coolingeason weather that was slightly cooler. Electtititirevenues increased $17.3 million principi
as a result of higher POLR rates. Electric Utitityst of sales increased to $84.3 million in Fi208 from $67.8 million in tt
prior year principally reflecting higher per-unitiighased power costs.

Electric Utility total margin in Fiscal 2008 was@li equal to Fiscal 2007 reflecting the effectshaf higher POLR rat
offset principally by the higher per-unit purchagexver costs and higher revenue-related taxes.

The decrease in Fiscal 2008 Electric Utility opegtincome reflects slightly higher operating ardininistrative cos
including higher system maintenance and uncollkctdccounts expense. Income before income taxdsctefthe lowe
operating income partially offset by lower interespense on bank loans.

Energy Services 2008 2007 Increase

(Millions of dollars)

Revenue! $ 1,619t $ 1,336. $ 283.¢ 21.2%
Total margin (a $ 124.1 $ 100.¢ $ 23.2 23.(%
Operating incom: $ 77.% $ 57. $ 19.¢ 34.7%
Income before income tax $ 77.2 $ 57.¢ $ 19.¢ 34.1%

(&) Total margin represents total revenues less tottlaf sales

Notwithstanding retail gas volumes in Fiscal 2008t twere approximately equal to the pry@ar period, Energy Servic
revenues increased $283.4 million principally refileg the effects of higher commodity costs forunat gas and propat
higher electricity spot-market and fixed contragtgs, and higher revenues from peaking supplyicesy

Total margin from Energy Services was $23.2 millldgher in Fiscal 2008 reflecting greater total giarfrom peakin
supply and storage management services, due ingodme expansion of peaking facilities and higbeaking rates charged, ¢
higher electric generation margin resulting in &aart from higher spatiarket and fixed contract prices for electricityFisca
2008 compared with Fiscal 2007. The increase irgn8ervice$ operating income and income before income taxéssica
2008 principally reflects the previously mention23.2 million increase in total margin partiallyfsgit by slightly highe
operating and administrative expenses.

Interest Expense and Income TaxesConsolidated interest expense increased to $14ilibrmin Fiscal 2008 fror
$139.6 million in Fiscal 2007 principally due togher interest expense associated with greater détahip shortermr
borrowings to fund increases in working capitainpipally as a result of higher commodity prices joopane during Fisc
2008 and the effects of foreign exchange on Int@nal Propane interest expense. Our effectivermetax rate in Fiscal 20
was comparable to our rate in Fiscal 2007.
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Financial Condition and Liquidity

We depend on both internal and external sourcdgoidity to provide funds for working capital artd fund capite
requirements. Our shorrm cash requirements not met by cash from opermtare generally satisfied with proceeds !
credit facilities or, in the case of Energy Sersica receivables securitization facility. Theseilitees are further describ:
below. Long-term cash needs are generally met gtréssuance of long-term debt or equity securities.

Our cash and cash equivalents, excluding cashdadlin commaodity futures brokerage accounts thatrestricted fror
withdrawal, totaled $280.1 million at September 3009 compared with $245.2 million of such cash aash equivalents
September 30, 2008. Excluding cash and cash eguigathat reside at UGl'operating subsidiaries, at September 30, 200
2008 UGI had $102.7 million and $97.2 million, respively, of cash and cash equivalents. Such casivailable to pe
dividends on UGI Common Stock and for investmenppses.

The primary sources of U@&'cash and cash equivalents are the dividends thied cash payments made to UGI o
corporate subsidiaries by its principal businestsun

AmeriGas Propane’ability to pay dividends to UGI is dependent uplistributions it receives from AmeriGas Partn
At September 30, 2009, our 44% effective ownershigrest in the Partnership consisted of approéiga4.7 millior
Common Units and combined 2% general partner istereApproximately 45 days after the end of eashali quarter, tf
Partnership distributes all of its Available Casts (defined in the Fourth Amended and Restated Aggae of Limite
Partnership of AmeriGas Partners, the “Partner8igigement”)relating to such fiscal quarter. The ability of thartnership 1
pay distributions depends upon a number of factbhese factors include (1) the level of Partnergdpings; (2) the ca
needs of the Partnershipodperations (including cash needed for maintaimimg increasing operating capacity); (3) chang
operating working capital; and (4) the ability b&tPartnership to borrow under its Credit Agreemientefinance maturing de
and to increase its long-term debt. Some of thastorfs are affected by conditions beyond the Pestif@s control includin
weather, competition in markets it serves, the obpropane and capital market conditions.

During Fiscal 2009, Fiscal 2008 and Fiscal 2007, mrincipal business units paid cash dividends ewadie other ca:
payments to UGI and its subsidiaries as follows:

Year Ended September 2009 2008 2007
(Millions of dollars)

AmeriGas Propan $ 39.: $ 38.¢€ $ 53.¢
UGI Utilities 61.2 68.¢ 40.C
International Propan 39.C 45.¢ 53.t
Energy Service — 18.4 6.1
Total $ 139. $ 171.¢ $ 153.

Dividends from AmeriGas Propane in Fiscal 2009 &istal 2007 include the benefit of ofime $0.17 and $0.25 |
Common Unit increases in the August 2009 and AuB08¥ quarterly distributions resulting from Fis28I09 and Fiscal 20
sales of Partnership storage facilities, respelgtiigee below and Note 4 to Consolidated Finangtatements). Due to gree
cash required for capital project expenditures,rgn&ervices did not pay dividends to UGI in Fis2@09 and received capi
contributions from UGI totaling $46.8 million.

On April 29, 2009, UGB Board of Directors approved an increase in ttatgely dividend rate on UGI Common Stocl
$0.20 per common share or $0.80 per common shaenannual basis. This quarterly dividend reflesisapproximate 4
increase from the previous quarterly dividend @ft80.1925. The new quarterly dividend rate wasaf¥e with the dividen
paid on July 1, 2009 to shareholders of recordwred5, 2009. On April 28, 2009, the General ParsnBoard of Directol
approved a Partnership distribution of $0.67 pem@wn Unit equal to an annual rate of $2.68 per Combinit. This quarterl
distribution reflects an increase of approximate¥ from the previous quarterly distribution rate$8.64 per Common Un
The new quarterly rate was effective with the distiion paid on May 18, 2009 to unitholders of neton May 8, 2009. C
July 27, 2009, the General PartrseBoard of Directors approved a distribution of 880.per Common Unit payable
August 18, 2009 to unitholders of record on AudiBt 2009. This distribution included the regulaadarly distribution c
$0.67 per Common Unit and an additional $0.17 pen@on Unit reflecting a oneme distribution of a portion of the proce
from the Partnership’s November 2008 sale of itif@aia storage facility.
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Long-term Debt and Credit Facilities

The Company’s debt outstanding at September 3® &fi@led $2,296.2 million (including current matiess of longtermr
debt of $94.5 million) compared to $2,205.5 millioh debt outstanding (including current maturitiefslongterm debt c
$81.8 million) at September 30, 2008. Total delistaunding at September 30, 2009 reflects the issuah$108 million of UC
Utilities Senior Notes in conjunction with the CP&quisition. Total debt outstanding at Septembey 3009 principall
consists of $865.6 million of Partnership debt, &82million ( €425.6 million) of International Propane debt, $8illion of
UGI Utilities’ debt, and $13.7 million of other deb

Due to the seasonal nature of the Compabysinesses, operating cash flows are generadiygeist during the second
third fiscal quarters when customers pay for nadtgas, LPG, electricity and other energy productsstimed during the pe
heating season months. Conversely, operating dagls fare generally at their lowest levels during flist and fourth fisci
guarters when the Compasyinvestment in working capital, principally inveries and accounts receivable, is gene
greatest. AmeriGas Propane and UGI Utilities prilpause bank loans to satisfy their seasonal opeyatash flow need
Energy Services uses its Receivables Facility tisfgdts operating cash flow needs. During Fis2@09, Fiscal 2008 and Fis
2007, Antargaz generally funded its operating ¢kt needs without using its revolving credit fatsyil

AmeriGas Partners. AmeriGas Partners’ total debt at September 30, 20€l@des longerm debt comprising $779.7 million
AmeriGas Partners’ Senior Notes, $80.0 million ohétiGas OLP First Mortgage Notes and $5.9 milliérotner longtermr
debt. At September 30, 2009, there were no bormsvioutstanding under AmeriGas OkRevolving credit agreements.
March 2009, AmeriGas OLP repaid $70 million of nratg First Mortgage Notes with cash generated foperations.

AmeriGas OLPS Credit Agreement expires on October 15, 2011 @nbists of (1) a $125 million Revolving Cre
Facility and (2) a $75 million Acquisition Facilitfhe Revolving Credit Facility may be used for Wng capital and genel
purposes of AmeriGas OLP. The Acquisition Facipitpvides AmeriGas OLP with the ability to borrow t@$75 million tc
finance the purchase of propane businesses orpedpasiness assets or, to the extent it is nossd, dor working capital a
general purposes.

In order to provide for increased liquidity prinally for cash collateral requirements, on April 2009, AmeriGas OL
entered into a $75 million unsecured revolving dréatility (‘2009 AmeriGas Supplemental Credit Agment”)with three
major banks. The 2009 AmeriGas Supplemental Cr&dieement expires on July 1, 2010 and permits AGesi OLP t
borrow up to $75 million for working capital andrgeal purposes.

There were no borrowings outstanding under theitcageements at September 30, 2009. Issued asthoding letters
credit under the Revolving Credit Facility, whickeduce the amount available for borrowings, tota#&¥.0 million a
September 30, 2009. AmeriGas OLP’s shertn borrowing needs are seasonal and are typigadistest during the fall a
winter heatingseason months due to the need to fund higher I®felsorking capital. The average daily and peakkbiaar
borrowings outstanding under the credit agreememtsiscal 2009 were $43.8 million and $184.5 miilicespectively. Tt
average daily and peak bank loan borrowings oulstgnunder the AmeriGas OLP Credit Agreement inc&i2008 wer
$39.1 million and $106.0 million, respectively. Thigher peak bank loan borrowings in Fiscal 200fulted from the need
fund counterparty cash collateral obligations asded with derivative financial instruments usedthg Partnership to mane
market price risk associated with fixed sales pgoenmitments to customers. These collateral ohbtigatresulted from tt
precipitous decline in propane commodity priced thezurred early in Fiscal 2009. At September 3MX, the Partnership’
available borrowing capacity under the credit agreets was $238.0 million.

Based upon existing cash balances, cash expectds tgenerated from operations and borrowings aueilande
AmeriGas OLP’s credit agreements, the Partnershipanagement believes that the Partnership wilblle to meet i
anticipated contractual commitments and projectashcneeds during Fiscal 2010. For a more detailscuskion of th
Partnership’s credit facilities, see Note 5 to Gideted Financial Statements.
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International Propane. International Propane’s total debt at SeptembeRB09 includes longerm debt principally comprisit
$556.1 million ( € 380 million) outstanding undentArgaz’ Senior Facilities term loan and $54.1inill ( € 37.0 million]
outstanding under Flaga'term loans. International Propane debt outstgndinSeptember 30, 2009 also includes coml
borrowings of $9.1 million ( € 6.2 million) undeldga’s working capital facilities and $3.6 millign€ 2.5 million) of othe
long-term debt.

Antargaz. Antargaz has a fivgear, floating rate Senior Facilities Agreementtthapires on March 31, 2011. The Se
Facilities Agreement consists of (1) a € 380 milligariable-rate term loan and (2) a5€ million revolving credit facility
Antargaz executed interest rate swap agreemefiits ttoe underlying euribor rate of interest on teem loan at approximate
3.25% for the duration of the loan. The effectiméeiest rate on Antargagerm loan at September 30, 2009 was 3.94%
Senior Facilities Agreement also includes &0&million letter of credit facility. In order to imimize the interest margin it pe
on Senior Facilities Agreement borrowings, in Sayiter 2008 Antargaz borroweds€ million ($70.4 million), the total amot
available under its revolving credit facility, whi@mount remained outstanding at September 30,. 2008 amount is include
in bank loans on the September 30, 2008 Consotid@&édance Sheet. This borrowing was repaid by Aystaron October 2
2008. Excluding this borrowing in September 2008 other amounts were borrowed under Antargazblving credit facilit
during Fiscal 2009 or Fiscal 2008.

The Senior Facilities Agreement restricts the gbif Antargaz to, among other things, incur addiél indebtedness a
make investments. For a more detailed discussiémtdrgaz’ debt, see Note 5 to Consolidated Fireriatements.

Antargaz’ management believes that it will be able to meetaitticipated contractual commitments and projectesi
needs during Fiscal 2010 with cash generated frparations, borrowings under its revolving creditilfty and guarantet
under its letter of credit facility.

Flaga. Flaga has two euro-based, amortizing variabletext® loans. The principal outstanding on the fiestn loan was &0
million ($43.9 million) at September 30, 2009. Rawas effectively fixed the euribor component sfiitterest rate on this te
loan through September 2011 at 3.91% by enteritgydn interest rate swap agreement. The effeatitezdst rate on this te
loan at September 30, 2009 was 4.28%. The secorwtbased variableate term loan, executed in August 2009, ha
outstanding principal balance ofzémillion ($10.2 million) on September 30, 2009.i§’term loan matures in June 2014. F
has effectively fixed the euribor component ofiitgerest rate on this term loan at 2.16% by engeitiio an interest rate sw
agreement. The effective interest rate on this tean at September 30, 2009 was 5.03%.

Flaga has two working capital facilities totaling2@ million. Flaga has a multiurrency working capital facility th
provides for borrowings and issuances of guararttgating € 16 million of which €.1 million ($3.0 million) was outstandi
at September 30, 2009. Flaga also has an € 8 milioro-denominated working capital facility of whi&€ 4.1 million
($6.1 million) was outstanding at September 30,9208sued and outstanding guarantees, which reavaiable borrowing
under the working capital facilities, totaled2€7 million ($3.9 million) at September 30, 2009m8unts outstanding under
working capital facilities are classified as bankrs. During Fiscal 2009 and Fiscal 2008, peak haenk borrowings totaleé
18.6 million and € 6.9 million, respectively. Avge daily bank loan borrowings during Fiscal 2009 &iscal 2008 weré€
11.5 million and € 5.6 million, respectively. Foneore detailed discussion of Flagalebt, see Note 5 to Consolidated Fina
Statements.

Based upon cash generated from operations, borggwinder its working capital facilities and capitahtributions fror
UGI, Flagas management believes it will be able to meet iitticgated contractual commitments and projecteshazeed
during Fiscal 2010.

UGI Utilities. UGI Utilities’ total debt at September 30, 2009littes longterm debt comprising $383 million of Senior N¢

and $257 million of MediunFerm Notes. Total debt outstanding at Septembe2309 also includes $154 million outstanc
under UGI Utilities’ Revolving Credit Agreement.
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UGI Utilities may borrow up to a total of $350 noih under its Revolving Credit Agreement. This agnent expires
August 2011. Amounts outstanding under the Revgh@redit Agreement are classified as bank loangshenConsolidate
Balance Sheets. During Fiscal 2009 and Fiscal 2@@ak bank loan borrowings totaled $312 million #6567 million
respectively. Average daily bank loan borrowingsrev&180.0 million in Fiscal 2009 and $121.0 milliam Fiscal 200¢
Revolving Credit Agreement borrowings were greatdfiscal 2009 due in large part to increases inginadeposits associal
with natural gas futures contracts as a result exflides in wholesale natural gas prices. UGI k#it Revolving Cred
Agreement requires it to maintain a maximum raficConsolidated Debt to Consolidated Total Capial,defined, of 0.65
1.00.

Based upon cash expected to be generated from Mg &hd Electric Utility operations and borrovga available und
its Revolving Credit Agreement, UGI Utilitieshanagement believes that it will be able to meeaitticipated contractual ¢
projected cash commitments during Fiscal 2010.aFmore detailed discussion of UGI Utilities’ lotgrm debt and Revolvil
Credit Agreement, see Note 5 to Consolidated FiaaStatements.

Energy Services.Energy Services has a $200 million receivables hage facility (“Receivables Facility'With an issuer ¢
receivablessacked commercial paper expiring in April 2010haligh the Receivables Facility may terminate piaosuch dal
due to the termination of commitments of the Reailies Facility’s backwp purchasers. Management expects it will exte
replace the Receivables Facility prior to its teration date. Under the Receivables Facility, Enesgivices transfers, on
ongoing basis and without recourse, its trade ausoteceivable to its wholly owned, special purpssésidiary, Enerc
Services Funding Corporation (“ESFCWhich is consolidated for financial statement pwg® ESFC, in turn, has sold,

subject to certain conditions, may from time todisell, an undivided interest in the receivablea tmmmercial paper cond
of a major bank. ESFC was created and has beectisted to isolate its assets from creditors of GpeBervices and |
affiliates, including UGI. At September 30, 2008e toutstanding balance of ESFC trade receivablesh®@.2 million which i
net of $31.3 million that was sold to the commdrpiper conduit and removed from the balance sibretng Fiscal 2009 ar
Fiscal 2008, peak sales of receivables were $188lion and $71.0 million, respectively. The graapeak sales in Fiscal 2C
reflect greater cash needed to fund collateral sitgpon natural gas NYMEX futures accounts duégosharp decline in natu
gas prices. Based upon cash expected to be gethérae operations, borrowings available under iec@&vables Facility ar
capital contributions from UGI for capital projectsanagement believes that Energy Services witlide to meet its anticipat
contractual and projected cash commitments duriagaF2010. For a more detailed discussion of thedr/ables Facility, s
Note 18 to Consolidated Financial Stateme

Cash Flows

Operating Activities. Year-toyear variations in cash flow from operations carsigamificantly affected by changes in opera
working capital especially during periods of vdatenergy commaodity prices. During Fiscal 2009, nwodity prices of LP(
and natural gas decreased significantly compar#ul significant price increases during most of theomid half of Fiscal 20C
The Fiscal 2009 decline in such commodity pricesiited in reduced investments in accounts recedvabtl LPG inventoris
which had the effect of significantly increasinghkdlow from operating activities as further desed below. Antargaz and |
Partnership ended Fiscal 2009 with no bank loanstanding and cash balances of $79.0 million an@.Zhillion,
respectively.

Cash flow provided by operating activities was $66%illion in Fiscal 2009, $464.4 million in Fisc&008 an
$456.2 million in Fiscal 2007. Cash flow from op@émg activities before changes in operating workiogpital wa
$611.7 million in Fiscal 2009, $525.3 million inseal 2008 and $518.4 million in Fiscal 2007. Thgn#icant increase in Fisc
2009 cash flow from operating activities beforerayes in operating working capital reflects the ioyad operating results
Antargaz and the Partnership as well as the effefctlke CPG Acquisition on October 1, 2008. Charigesperating workin
capital provided (used) operating cash flow of $58illion in Fiscal 2009, $(60.9) million in FiscaD08 and $(62.2) million
Fiscal 2007. Cash flow from changes in operatingking capital principally reflects the impacts dfamges in LPG and natu
gas prices on cash receipts from customers asteflén changes in accounts receivable and acailégy revenues; the timir
of purchases and changes in LPG and natural gasspdn our investments in inventories; the timifighatural gas co
recoveries through Gas Utility’PGC recovery mechanism; and the effects of thimgj of payments and changes in purc
price per gallon of LPG and natural gas on accopay@&ble. Significantly greater Fiscal 2009 caghvigled by changes in t
Partnership’s and Antargazccounts receivable and inventories principallyer$ the effects on net cash receipts -
customers and cash expenditures for purchasewveitories resulting from the lower Fiscal 2009 LPi@&es. The significa
increase in cash used to fund changes in accoagtbfe in Fiscal 2009 is principally due to theitigrof payments and low
purchased prices for natural gas and LPG.
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Investing Activities. Investing activity cash flow is principally affectdy expenditures for property, plant and equipmessi
paid for acquisitions of businesses; changes itnicesd cash balances and proceeds from salessefsas\et cash flow used
investing activities was $519.9 million in Fiscad®, $289.5 million in Fiscal 2008 and $223.8 nailliin Fiscal 2007. Tt
primary reason for the increase in cash used hgsiing activities in Fiscal 2009 was business aitijoms, principally the CP
Acquisition, and greater cash expenditures for eryp plant and equipment. Fiscal 2009 capital agjiares were higher d
in large part to Energy Servicesapital project expenditures, increased Gas Utdapital expenditures associated with (
Gas, and greater Partnership capital expenditigsscated with a system software replacement grdjéscal 2009 investir
activity cash flows also reflect a reduction intriesed cash in natural gas futures brokerage atsoof $63.3 million compar:
with an increase of $57.5 million in Fiscal 200&atiges in restricted cash in futures brokerageustsare the result of t
timing of settlement of natural gas futures cortsamnd changes in natural gas prices. During F&@@9 and Fiscal 2007, 1
Partnership received $42.4 million and $49.0 millicespectively, in cash proceeds from the salgsagane storage facilities.

Financing Activities. Cash flow used by financing activities was $114iion, $180.1 million and $178.5 million in Fisc
2009, Fiscal 2008 and Fiscal 2007, respectivelyar@hs in cash flow from financing activities arearily due to issuanc
and repayments of longrm debt; net bank loan borrowings; dividends distfibutions on UGI Common Stock and Ameri
Partners Common Units and issuances of UGI and #&@asrPartners equity instruments.

Fiscal 2009 issuances of long-term debt includé83$iillion of MediumTerm Notes issued by UGI Utilities to financ
portion of the CPG Acquisition and a7@million ($10.0) term loan issued by Flaga to fumgortion of the ZLH acquisitic
During Fiscal 2009, AmeriGas OLP repaid $70 millminmaturing First Mortgage Notes using cash geedrrom operatior
and Flaga made scheduled repayments &fn€illion ($8.4) on its term loan. Changes in bdokns during Fiscal 20t
principally reflect $97 million of net borrowingy JGI Utilities offset in large part by Antarga@ctober 2008 repayment of
€ 50 million ($70.4 million) revolving credit facilitloan borrowed in September 2008.

Capital Expenditures

In the following table, we present capital expemdis (which exclude acquisitions but include capiases) by ot
business segments for Fiscal 2009, Fiscal 2008-awdl 2007. We also provide amounts we expegbénd in Fiscal 2010. V
expect to finance Fiscal 2010 capital expenditygacipally from cash generated by operations, dwimgs under crec
facilities and cash on hand.

Year Ended September 30 2010 2009 2008 2007
(Millions of dollars) (estimate’

AmeriGas Propan $ 82.C $ 78.1 $ 62.€ $ 73.€
International Propan 78.€ 76.2 75.C 64.2
Gas Utility 71.1 73.€ 58.2 66.2
Electric Utility 12.¢ 5.3 6.C 7.2
Energy Service 106.€ 66.2 30.7 10.7
Other 3.C 14 1.4 0.9

$ 354.2 $ 301.5 $ 234.2 $ 223.1

The increases in Energy Servicesipital expenditures in Fiscal 2008, Fiscal 2008 &iscal 2010 principally refle
capital expenditures related to electric generatidfiG storage and peaking assets projects. Thdaagr&tectric Utility capite
expenditures in Fiscal 2010 reflect increased edgtst transmission capacity associated with addisi to electric generati
capacity in its service territory. Energy Servic€&scal 2009 capital expenditures were financedaigd part by capit
contributions from UGI. Energy Serviceskpenditures in Fiscal 2010 principally relatingit® Hunlock Station repoweril
project and an LNG storage expansion project ape@rd to be financed from capital contributionsnfrUGI and ban
borrowings. In addition, during Fiscal 2011 andcBis2012 Energy Services expects to spend a tdtapproximatel
$90 million associated with these projects whichoant is expected to be similarly financed. AmeriGa®pane capit
expenditures in Fiscal 2009 and Fiscal 2010 inckxjgenditures associated with a system softwatagement.
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Contractual Cash Obligations and Commitments

The Company has contractual cash obligations tégnd beyond Fiscal 2009. Such obligations inclsdbedule
repayments of long-term debt, interest on long-tdixed-rate debt, operating lease payments, unconditignathas
obligations for pipeline capacity, pipeline trangption and natural gas storage services and camenits to purchase natt
gas, LPG and electricity, capital expenditures @advative financial instruments. The following klpresents contractual ci
obligations under agreements existing as of Seped®, 2009:

Payments Due by Peric

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal

(Millions of dollars) Total 2010 2011-2012 20132014 Thereaftel
Long-term debt (a $ 2,133. $ 94.t $ 654.k $ 139.7 $ 1,244
Interest on lon-term fixed rate debt ( 805.4 126.€ 200.¢ 172.2 305.¢
Operating lease 230.t 61.t 86.(C 49.¢ 33.2
AmeriGas Propane supply contra 50.t 50.t — — —
International Propane supply contra 238.¢ 238.¢ — — —
Energy Services supply contra 545.2 436.4 108.¢ — —
Gas Utility and Electric Utility supply

storage and transportation contre 558.( 218.¢ 182.% 101.C 55.4
Derivative financial instruments ( 31.1 25.4 5.7 — —
Other purchase obligations ( 48.3 43.€ 4.7 — —
Total $ 4,641( $ 1,296. $ 1,243. $ 462.7 $ 1,638

(a) Based upon stated maturity dai
(b) Based upon stated interest rates adjusted forftbet® of interest rate swag

(c) Represents the sum of amounts due from us if derésdinancial instrument liabilities were settlatl the September {
2009 amounts reflected in the Consolidated Bal&@iezet (but excluding amounts associated with isteste swaps

(d) Includes material capital expenditure obligatic

Components of other noncurrent liabilities includedur Consolidated Balance Sheet at Septembe2@@) principall
comprise refundable tank and cylinder depositsifether described in Note 2 to Consolidated FinahStatements under 1
caption “Refundable Tank and Cylinder Depositslijigation, property and casualty liabilities andligations unde
environmental remediation agreements (see Note fA&)sion and other postaployment benefit liabilities recorded
accordance with accounting guidance relating toleyeg retirement plans (see Note 7); and liabgditissociated with execut
compensation plans (see Note 13). These liabiliies not included in the table of Contractual C&iligations an
Commitments because they are estimates of futyma@ats and not contractually fixed as to timingaorount. In addition, w
have committed to invest over the next several yy@atotal of up to $25 million in a limited partskip that will focus o
investments in the alternative energy sector.

Significant Acquisitions and Dispositions

On October 1, 2008, UGI Utilities acquired all betissued and outstanding stock of PPL Gas Usliierporation (no
named UGI Central Penn Gas, Inc., “CPG"), the ratgas distribution utility of PPL (the “CPG Acqitien”), for casl
consideration of $303.0 million less a final workicapital adjustment of $9.7 million. Immediateftea the closing of the CF
Acquisition, CPG’s wholly owned subsidiary Penn Feeopane, LLC (now named UGI Central Penn, LLCPFC), its retai
propane distributor, sold its assets to AmeriGasPdar cash consideration of $33.6 million less @alfiworking capite
adjustment of $1.4 million (the “Penn Fuels Acquisi”). CPG distributes natural gas to approximately 76,0@§tomers i
eastern and central Pennsylvania, and also distsboatural gas to several hundred customers itiopsrof one Marylan
county. CPP sold propane to customers principallgastern Pennsylvania. UGI Utilities funded theGCAcquisition with
combination of $120 million cash contributed by U@ September 25, 2008, proceeds from the issuah&i08 millior
principal amount of 6.375% Senior Notes due 2018 approximately $75.0 million of borrowings undeGU Utilities’
Revolving Credit Agreement. AmeriGas OLP funded dlquisition of the assets of CPP with borrowingdar the AmeriGe
Credit Agreement, and UGI Utilities used the $33iion of cash proceeds from the sale of the assétCPP to reduce
revolving credit agreement borrowings.

44




WPD-6

Table of Contents Screening Data
Page 1953 of 2401

On November 13, 2008, AmeriGas OLP sold its 600 0@0el refrigerated abovground LPG storage facility located
leased property in California for net cash proceefd$42.4 million. The Company recorded an aftec-gain on the sale
$10.4 million or $0.10 per diluted share.

On January 29, 2009, Flaga purchased the 50% eigtafest in ZLH it did not already own from itsgbventure partne
Progas GmbH & Co. KG (“Progas”), pursuant to a pase agreement dated December 18, 2008. ZLH dit#shPG in the
Czech Republic, Hungary, Poland, Slovakia and Ramdie cash purchase price for the 50% equityéstevas not material.

Antargaz Competition Authority Matter

In June 2005, officials from France’s General Disof Competition, Consumption and Fraud PunishnfddGCCRF")
conducted an unannounced inspection of, and olatalneuments from, Antargaheadquarters building. Antargaz did not f
any further contact with the DGCCRF regarding thistter until February 2007, when it received aeleftom the DGCCR
requesting documents and information relating tatafgaz’ pricing policies and practices. In March 2007, aaghin ir
August 2007, the DGCCRF requested additional in&diom from Antargaz and three joint ventures inchhit participates. |
July 2008, France’s Autorité de la concurrence (fpetition Authority”) interviewed Mr. Varagne, as President of Anta
and President of the industry association, Comign¢ais du Butane et du Propane, about compeftiaetices in the LP
cylinder market in France.

On July 21, 2009, Antargaz received a Statemen®Olofections from the Competition Authority with resp to th
investigation of Antargaz by the DGCCRF. A Statetr@fnObjections (“Statement’is part of French competition proceedi
and generally follows an investigation under Fresompetition laws. The Statement sets forth the @siition Authority’s
findings; it is not a judgment or final decisiorhdl Statement alleges that Antargaz engaged inicenmé-competitive practice
in violation of French and European Union civil quetition laws related to the cylinder market durthg period from 19¢
through 2004. The alleged violations occurred ppalty during periods prior to March 31, 2004, whd! first obtained
controlling interest in Antargaz.

We have completed our review of the Statement gé@ions and the related evidence and filed outteniresponse wi
the Competition Authority on October 21, 2009. Tampetition Authority will undertake a review of femgaz’response ar
begin preparation of its final pleading on the rigi This process is anticipated to take severaltinsosnd Antargaz will ha'
the opportunity to prepare a response to the CatigreAuthority’s final pleading. Based on an assessment of tleniatior
contained in the Statement, during the quarter @rddme 30, 2009 we recorded a provision of $10lRomi( € 7.1 million)
related to this matter which amount is reflectedtiner income, net on the Fiscal 2009 Consolid&tedement of Income. T
final resolution could result in payment of an amiosignificantly different from the amount we haeeorded. We are unable
predict the timing of the final resolution of thisatter (see Note 15 to the Consolidated Finan¢ak8ents).

Pension Plans

As of September 30, 2009, we sponsor two definetfitepension plans (“Pension Plan$dy employees hired prior
January 1, 2009 of UGI, UGI Utilities, PNG, CPG awdtain of UGI5 other domestic wholly owned subsidiaries. In tolad,
Antargaz employees are covered by certain defiremefit pension and postretirement plans the plassets and bene
obligations of which are not material.
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Effective December 31, 2008, we merged two of ammestic defined benefit pension plans. As a rasfulhe merger, wn
were required under U.S. generally accepted actmumirinciples (“GAAP”) to remeasure the combineds assets al
benefit obligations as of December 31, 2008. Asesult of the remeasurement, Fiscal 2009 pensiorerese increas:
approximately $4.2 million for the period subseduenthe remeasurement due to the amortizatiorctafagial losses resultil
from the general decline in the financial markeisity Fiscal 2008 and Fiscal 2009 and a lower distoate. The fair value
Pension Plansassets totaled $276.4 million and $241.0 milliolseptember 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively. AteBeiper 3(
2009 and 2008, the underfunded position of PenBlans, defined as the excess of the projected beridigations (“PBOS)
over the Pension Plans’ assets, was $145.6 maliwh$59.6 million, respectively.

We believe we are in compliance with regulationgegning defined benefit pension plans, includingdtoyee Retireme
Income Security Act of 1974 (“ERISA’fules and regulations. We anticipate that we wellrbquired to make contributions
the Pension Plans during Fiscal 2010 but we doerpéect such contributions to be material. Reepension costs associe
with Pension Plans in Fiscal 2009 was $8.1 millidansion cost associated with Pension Plans imlF2010 is expected to
approximately $11.5 million.

GAAP guidance associated with pension and othetrgggement plans generally requires recognitionaof asset «
liability in the statement of financial positionflecting the funded status of pension and othetrpti;ement benefit plans w
current year changes recognized in shareholaepsity unless such amounts are subject to regylagmovery. In accordan
with this guidance, through September 30, 2009 weetrecorded cumulative after-tax charges to Com@tmckholders’
Equity of $81.5 million in order to reflect the fded status of these plans. For a more detailedigbgan of the Pension Pl:
and other postretirement benefit plans, see NéteCbnsolidated Financial Statements.

Related Party Transactions

During Fiscal 2009, Fiscal 2008 and Fiscal 2007,dieenot enter into any relatguhrty transactions that had a mate
effect on our financial condition, results of ogeras or cash flows.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

UGI primarily enters into guarantee arrangementdeimalf of our consolidated subsidiaries. Thesarg@ments are r
subject to the recognition and measurement guideriang to guarantees under GAAP.

We do not have any offalance sheet arrangements that are expected ¢oshaaterial effect on our financial conditi
change in financial condition, revenues or expensssilts of operations, liquidity, capital expdndes or capital resources.

Utility Requlatory Matters

Gas Utility

On January 28, 2009, PNG and CPG filed separateests] with the PUC to increase base operating uveseiy
$38.1 million annually for PNG and $19.6 millionrarally for CPG to fund system improvements and afjens necessary
maintain safe and reliable natural gas servicearatgy assistance for low income customers as ageinergy conservati
programs for all customers. On July 2, 2009, PN@ @®G each filed joint settlement petitions witle tRUC based (
agreements with the opposing parties regardingahaested base operating revenue increases. Ons2igu2009, the PL
approved the settlement agreements which resufteal $19.8 million base operating revenue increasePNG Gas and
$10.0 million base operating revenue increase RG@as. The increases became effective August@®®, &nd did not have
material effect on Fiscal 2009 results.

Electric Utility

As a result of Pennsylvania’s ECC Act, all of EtectJtility’ s customers are permitted to acquire their eléattrfoom
entities other than Electric Utility. Electric Utif remains the POLR for its customers that areseotved by an alternate elec
generation provider. The terms and conditions umdech Electric Utility provides POLR service, andes governing the rat
that may be charged for such service through Deee®ib 2009, were established in a series of PUoapd settlemen
(collectively, the “POLR Settlement”), the late$twhich became effective June 23, 2006.
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In accordance with the POLR Settlement, Electriditytmay increase its POLR rates up to certainiténthrougi
December 31, 2009. Consistent with the terms of RBELR Settlement, Electric Utility increased its I[FOrates effectiv
January 1, 2009, which increased the average ocastrésidential heating customer by approximateb¥dlover such costs
effect during calendar year 2008. Effective Jandar008, Electric Utility increased its POLR ratekich increased tl
average cost to a residential heating customerppyoaimately 5.5% over such costs in effect durgadendar year 20C
Effective January 1, 2007, Electric Utility increalsthe average cost to a residential heating custdy approximately 35
over such costs in effect during calendar year 2006

On July 17, 2008, the PUC approved Electric Utiitdefault service procurement, implementation amdingency plan
as modified by the terms of a May 2, 2008 settlemfied in accordance with the PUCdefault service regulations. Th
plans do not affect Electric Utilitg’ existing POLR settlement effective through Decein81, 2009. The approved plans spe
how Electric Utility will solicit and acquire defttuservice supplies for residential customers fog period January 1, 2C
through May 31, 2014, and for commercial and indaiscustomers for the period January 1, 2010 thhoay 31, 201
(collectively, the “Settlement Term”JGI Utilities filed a rate plan on August 29, 20fa8 the Settlement Term. On January
2009, the PUC approved a settlement of the rateyfthat provides for Electric Utility to fully rewer its default service cos
On October 1, 2009, UGI Utilities filed a defaultrgice plan to establish procurement rules applécad the period aft
May 31, 2011 for its commercial and industrial onsérs.

Because Electric Utility will be assured the reagvef prudently incurred costs during the Settlem®&erm, beginnin
January 1, 2010 Electric Utility will no longer Iseibject to the risk that actual costs for purchgseder will exceed POL
revenues. However, beginning January 1, 2010, iidedtility will forego the opportunity to recoverevenues in excess
actual costs as currently permitted under the PGERIement. This will result in a reduction in Bléc Utility’ s Fiscal 201
operating income.

Manufactured Gas Plants

UGI Utilities

CPG is party to a Consent Order and Agreement (“CIEA") with the DEP requiring CPG to perform a specifieddl o
activities associated with environmental investatand remediation work at certain properties eniisylvania on whic
manufactured gas plant (“MGP”) related facilitiesere operated (“CPG MGP Propertiesi)d to plug a minimum number
non-producing natural gas wells per year. In addjtPNG is a party to a MulSite Remediation Consent Order and Agree
with the Pennsylvania Department of Environmentadtéttion (“PNG-COA”"). The PNGZOA requires PNG to perfol
annually a specified level of activities associatétth environmental investigation and remediatioorkvat certain properties
which MGP-related facilities were operated (“PNG R@roperties”).Under these agreements, environmental expenc
relating to the CPG MGP Properties and the PNG NR&dperties are capped at $1.8 million and $1.lignillrespectively, i
any calendar year. The CR@A terminates at the end of 2011 for the MGP Prtigseand at the end of 2013 for well plugc
activities. The PNG-COA terminates in 2019 but rbayterminated by either party effective at the ehdny twoyear perio
beginning with the original effective date in Mar2®04. At September 30, 2009, our accrued liagditior environment
investigation and remediation costs related toa@R&-COA and the PNGOA totaled $25.0 million. In accordance with GA
related to rate-regulated entities, we have reebedsociated regulatory assets totaling $25.0anilli

From the late 1800s through the nii@lo0s, UGI Utilities and its former subsidiariesn®al and operated a numbe
MGPs prior to the general availability of naturalsg Some constituents of coal tars and other residfithe manufactured ¢
process are today considered hazardous substamdesthe Superfund Law and may be present on the sf former MGP
Between 1882 and 1953, UGI Utilities owned the Istof subsidiary gas companies in Pennsylvania dselmere and al:
operated the businesses of some gas companies agidemment. Pursuant to the requirements of thdicPulility Holding
Company Act of 1935, by the early 1950s UGI Ugigidivested all of its utility operations othernheertain Pennsylvar
operations, including those which now constitutel Bas and Electric Utility.
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UGI Utilities does not expect its costs for invgation and remediation of hazardous substancesratsiylvania MGP siti
to be material to its results of operations becdu&d Gas is currently permitted to include in ratdgough future base ri
proceedings, a fivgear average of such prudently incurred remediatimsts. At September 30, 2009 and 2008, neither
Gas’ undiscounted nor its accrued liability for Bammental investigation and cleanup costs was nadte

UGI Utilities has been notified of several sitesside Pennsylvania on which private parties allt§ePs were formerl
owned or operated by it or owned or operated byfotsner subsidiaries. Such parties are investigatine extent ¢
environmental contamination or performing enviromtaéremediation. UGI Utilities is currently lititjag three claims agair
it relating to out-of-state sites.

Management believes that under applicable law UG@lItigs should not be liable in those instancesninich a forme
subsidiary owned or operated an MGP. There could&eever, significant future costs of an uncerimount associated w
environmental damage caused by MGPs outside Pefaméyl that UGI Utilities directly operated, or thaere owned ¢
operated by former subsidiaries of UGI Utilitiesaifcourt were to conclude that (1) the subsid&aggparate corporate fc
should be disregarded or (2) UGI Utilities shouldmnsidered to have been an operator because afritluct with respect
its subsidiary’s MGP.

For additional information on the MGP sites outsidléennsylvania currently subject to thjpdrty claims or litigation, s
Note 15 to Consolidated Financial Stateme

AmeriGas OLP

By letter dated March 6, 2008, the New York Statep@&tment of Environmental Conservation (“DEGfiptified
AmeriGas OLP that DEC had placed property ownethkyPartnership in Saranac Lake, New York on itgi&ey of Inactivt
Hazardous Waste Disposal Sites. A site charactemzatudy performed by DEC disclosed contaminatielated to forme
MGP operations on the site. DEC has classifiecsiteeas a significant threat to public health ariemment with further actic
required. The Partnership has researched the yistothe site and its ownership interest in the.sithe Partnership
reviewed the preliminary site characterization gtpcepared by the DEC, the extent of contaminadiod the possible exister
of other potentially responsible parties. The Raghip has communicated the results of its resear@EC and is awaiting
response before doing any additional investigatiBecause of the preliminary nature of availableirmmental informatior
the ultimate amount of expected clean up costsatdmnreasonably estimated.

We cannot predict with certainty the final resudfsany of the MGP actions described above. Howeitas, reasonab
possible that some of them could be resolved umédolp to us and result in losses in excess of tEEmbamMounts. We are ung
to estimate any possible losses in excess of redoathounts. Although we currently believe, aftenstdtation with counse
that damages or settlements, if any, recoveretidplaintiffs in such claims or actions will notveaa material adverse effect
our financial position, damages or settlements ¢cad material to our operating results or cash $law future perioc
depending on the nature and timing of future dgwelents with respect to these matters and the amaidrfuture operatir
results and cash flows.

Market Risk Disclosures

Our primary market risk exposures are (1) commogitge risk; (2) interest rate risk; and (3) foreigurrency exchan
rate risk. Although we use derivative financial amnmodity instruments to reduce market price aiskociated with forecas
transactions, we do not use derivative financial e@mmodity instruments for speculative or tradingposes.
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Commaodity Price Risk

The risk associated with fluctuations in the prittes Partnership and our International Propaneatiosis pay for LPG
principally a result of market forces reflectingadiges in supply and demand for propane and otleggrcommodities. The
profitability is sensitive to changes in LPG supplysts. Increases in supply costs are generallyegasn to customers. 1
Partnership and International Propane may not, kiewealways be able to pass through product caseases fully or on
timely basis, particularly when product costs rig@idly. In order to reduce the volatility of LPGarket price risk, tr
Partnership uses contracts for the forward purcloassle of propane, propane fixed-price supplheagrents, and over-the-
counter derivative commodity instruments includprice swap and option contracts. In addition, Agaarhedges a portion
its future U.S. dollar denominated LPG product pases through the use of forward foreign exchaogé&acts. Antargaz m.
from time-totime enter into other contracts, similar to thosediby the Partnership. Flaga has used and magearBative
commodity instruments to reduce market risk assediavith a portion of its LPG purchases. Over-thenter derivativ
commodity instruments utilized to hedge forecagt@éthases of propane are generally settled atagiqoirof the contract.

Gas Utility’s tariffs contain clauses that permit recovery lbbathe prudently incurred costs of natural gasalls to it
customers. The recovery clauses provide for a gieradjustment for the difference between the tatabunts actually collect
from customers through PGC rates and the recovei@its incurred. Because of this ratemaking méstmarthere is limite
commodity price risk associated with our Gas Utiliiperations. Gas Utility uses derivative finandr@truments comprisir
futures contracts traded on the New York Mercarifkehange (“NYMEX")to reduce volatility in the cost of gas it purchs
for its retail coremarket customers. The cost of these derivativenfiiz instruments, net of any associated gain®ssds, i
included in Gas Utility’s PGC recovery mechanism.

Electric Utility purchases its electric power neddsm electricity suppliers under fixgakice energy contracts and, t
much lesser extent, on the spot market. Wholesatefor electricity can be volatile especiallyidg periods of high dema
or tight supply. Electric Utility’s fixedsrice contracts with electricity suppliers mitigatest risks associated with the PC
service rate limits in effect through December 2008th respect to its existing fixepkice power contracts, should any of
counterparties fail to provide electric power untlex terms of such contracts, any increases irctisé of replacement pow
could negatively impact Electric Utility resultsi brder to reduce this nonperformance risk, Eleditility has diversified it
purchases across several suppliers and enteredbilatieral collateral arrangements with certaintioém. As previous
mentioned, on January 22, 2009, the PUC approssdtiement of a rate filing that provides for Etecttility to fully recove
its default service costs beginning January 1, 2&Hgause Electric Utility will be assured the nemxy of prudently incurre
costs during the Settlement Term, beginning Janlia®010, Electric Utility will no longer be subjet the risk that actu
costs for purchased power will exceed POLR revenues

In order to manage market price risk relating tbssantially all of Energy Services’ fixgatice sales contracts for natt
gas, Energy Services purchases over-the-counteescithnge-traded natural gas futures contractersinto fixedprice
supply arrangements. Energy Services’ exchdraged natural gas and electricity futures consrace traded on the NYME
and have nominal credit risk. Although Energy Segsi fixedprice supply arrangements mitigate most risks agtat with it
fixed-price sales contracts, should any of the naturalsg@pliers under these arrangements fail to parforcreases, if any,
the cost of replacement natural gas would adversebact Energy Servicesesults. In order to reduce this risk of supj
nonperformance, Energy Services has diversifieputghases across a number of suppliers. Energsgc8srhas entered ir
and may continue to enter into fixpdice sales agreements for a portion of its propsaies. In order to manage the me
price risk relating to substantially all of its &eprice sales contracts for propane, Energy Sengoésrs into price swap a
option contracts.

UGID has entered into fixegrice sales agreements for a portion of the eldttrexpected to be generated by its ele
generation assets. In the event that these gemerasisets would not be able to produce all of thetricity needed to supg
electricity under these agreements, UGID would dguired to purchase such electricity on the spaketaor under contra
with other electricity suppliers. Accordingly, ireses in the cost of replacement power could neggtimpact the Company’
results.

Because our business units have product cost mamgsgeprograms with contracts that include colldtarad margil

deposit requirement provisions, rapid declinesatural gas and LPG product costs can require osinbsis units to post ce
collateral with counterparties or make margin dé&pads brokerage accounts.
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Electric Utility obtains financial transmission hig (“FTRs”) through an annual PJM Interconnect{ti®JM”) auctior
process and, to a lesser extent, by purchasesraghind®JM auctions. Energy Services purchases RdRsonomically heds
certain transmission costs that may be associaithdite fixed-price electricity sales contracts. PJM is a redidramsmissio
organization that coordinates the movement of wdadéeelectricity in all or parts of 14 eastern amdwestern states. FTRs
financial instruments that entitle the holder toeige compensation for electricity transmissiongsstion charges that res
when there is insufficient electricity transmissicapacity on the electricity transmission grid.hélagh FTRs are economice
effective as hedges of congestion charges, theyotlourrently qualify for hedge accounting treatmen

Interest Rate Ris

We have both fixed-rate and variable-rate debt.ngba in interest rates impact the cash flows ofabéerate debt bt
generally do not impact their fair value. Conveysehanges in interest rates impact the fair valuixed-rate debt but do n
impact their cash flows.

Our variable-rate debt includes borrowings underefitBas OLP’s credit agreements, UGI UtilitidRevolving Cred|
Agreement and a substantial portion of Antargazl Blagas debt. These debt agreements have interest hateare general
indexed to short-term market interest rates. Aatgas effectively fixed the underlying euriboreist rate on its variablate
debt through March 2011 and Flaga has fixed theedyidg euribor interest rate on a substantial iparbf its term loar
through their scheduled maturity dates through uke of interest rate swaps. At September 30, 20@92808, combine
borrowings outstanding under these agreements,udirg Antargaz’ and Flaga’'s effectively fixedte debt, totale
approximately $163.1 million and $137.8 millionspectively. Excluding the fixed portions of Antazrgand Flaga’s variable-
rate debt, and based upon weighted average bomgewintstanding under variablate agreements during Fiscal 2009
Fiscal 2008, an increase in shtetm interest rates of 100 basis points (1%) wdwdde increased our Fiscal 2009 and F
2008 interest expense by $2.3 million and $1.9iom|lrespectively. The remainder of our debt ouiditag is subject to fixe
rates of interest. A 100 basis point increase inketainterest rates would result in decreases énfdlir value of this fixedate
debt of $91.0 million and $74.0 million at Septem®®, 2009 and 2008, respectively. A 100 basis tpdécrease in mark
interest rates would result in increases in the failue of this fixedate debt of $100.7 million and $81.4 million
September 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

Our longterm debt associated with our domestic businessggpically issued at fixed rates of interest bagpdn marke
rates for debt having similar terms and creditnggi As these lonterm debt issues mature, we may refinance suchwigh
new debt having interest rates reflecting tiearent market conditions. This debt may have &erést rate that is more or |
than the refinanced debt. In order to reduce isteae risk associated with near- to medium- tiemacasted issuances of fixed-
rate debt, from time to time we enter into interas¢ protection agreements.

Foreign Currency Exchange Rate R

Our primary currency exchange rate risk is assediatith the U.S. dollar versus the euro. The Udlad value of ou
foreign-denominated assets and liabilities will fluctuatthvehanges in the associated foreign currency axgé rates. We u
derivative instruments to hedge portions of ourimeéstments in foreign subsidiaries (“net invesitrigedges”)Realized gair
or losses remain in accumulated other compreherisa@me until such foreign operations are liquidatAt September 3
2009, the fair value of unsettled net investmerdges was a loss of $5.7 million, which is includadforeign currenc
exchange rate risk in the table below. With respecur net investments in Flaga and Antargaz,% ti@cline in the value
the euro versus the U.S. dollar, excluding thectffef any net investment hedges, would reduce #ugjregate net book va
by approximately $61.9 million, which amount woule reflected in other comprehensive income.

Derivative Financial Instrument Credit Ri:

We are exposed to risk of loss in the event of edimpmance by our derivative financial instrumeatigterparties. Oi
derivative financial instrument counterparties pifrally comprise major energy companies and maj@. ldnd internation
financial institutions. We maintain credit policiasth regard to our counterparties that we beliesduce overall credit ris
These policies include evaluating and monitoring counterpartiesfinancial condition, including their credit ratinganc
entering into agreements with counterparties thategn credit limits. Certain of these agreements foa the posting
collateral by the counterparty or by the Companyhim form of letters of credit, parental guaranteesash. Additionally, o
natural gas and electricity exchangaded futures contracts which are guaranteed byNMMEX generally require ca
deposits in margin accounts. At September 30, 2049 2008, restricted cash in brokerage accounaetb®$7.0 million an
$70.3 million, respectively.
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The following table summarizes the fair values oisettled market risk sensitive derivative instrutaeassets ai
(liabilities) held at September 30, 2009 and 200& table also includes the changes in fair vaiaé would result if there we
a 10% adverse change in (1) the market price of BRE& gasoline; (2) the market price of natural gasthe market price
electricity and electricity transmission congestiranges; (4) the three-month LIBOR and the thee ninemonth Euriba
and; (5) the value of the euro versus the U.Sadollhe fair value of Gas Utility’'s exchantraded natural gas futures contr:
comprising losses $23.3 million at September 3@82ére excluded from the table below because asycaged net gains
losses are included in Gas Utility’s PGC recoveschanism. There were no such contracts at Septe3b2009.

Asset (Liability)

Change ir
Fair Value Fair Value
(Millions of dollars)
September 30, 200
LPG commaodity price ris $ 12.2 $ (14.9
FTR price risk 2.C (0.3
Natural gas commodity price ri (0.9 (13.6)
Gasoline price risl 0.1 (0.2
Electricity commodity price ris (3.9 2.7
Interest rate risl (34.9 (6.0
Foreign currency exchange rate r (5.7) (18.2)
September 30, 200
LPG commaodity price ris $ (3.7 $ (29.2)
FTR price risk 5.7 (0.6)
Natural gas commaodity price ri (29.7) (21.7)
Electricity commodity price ris (0.7) (0.2
Interest rate ris| 9.1 9.9
Foreign currency exchange rate r 3.4 (19.5)

Because our derivative instruments, other than FaiR$ gasoline futures contracts, generally quai$yhedges unc
GAAP, we expect that changes in the fair value ef\dtive instruments used to manage commodityreogy or interest ra
market risk would be substantially offset by gainsosses on the associated anticipated transaction

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of financial statements and reldtecdlosures in compliance with accounting prinegpgenerally accept
in the United States of America requires the selacind application of accounting principles appiate to the relevant fac
and circumstances of the Compangperations and the use of estimates made by rearge. The Company has identified
following critical accounting policies and estimatbat are most important to the portrayal of tlen@anys financial conditio
and results of operations. Changes in these pslae estimates could have a material effect oritla@cial statements. T
application of these accounting policies and edesaecessarily requires managengentbst subjective or complex judgme
regarding estimates and projected outcomes ofdutwents which could have a material impact onfittencial statemeni
Management has reviewed these critical accountatigips, and the estimates and assumptions asedondth them, with th
Companys Audit Committee. In addition, management hasesged the following disclosures regarding the apitn of thes
critical accounting policies and estimates with it Committee.
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Litigation Accruals and Environmental Remediation Liabilities. We are involved in litigation regarding pendingiaia ant
legal actions that arise in the normal course oflmusinesses. In addition, UGI Utilities and itsnfer subsidiaries owned ¢
operated a number of MGPs in Pennsylvania and Blseyand PNG Gas and CPG Gas owned and operatedker of MG
sites located in Pennsylvania, at which hazardabstances may be present. In accordance with atogurinciples general
accepted in the United States of America, the Camypastablishes reserves for pending claims andl lagions o
environmental remediation obligations when it islgable that a liability exists and the amount arge of amounts can
reasonably estimated. Reasonable estimates invohreagement judgments based on a broad range ofmiation and pric
experience. These judgments are reviewed quarsriyore information is received and the amountsrved are updated
necessary. Such estimated reserves may differ iahterom the actual liability and such reserveayrthange materially
more information becomes available and estimatselrves are adjusted.

Regulatory Assets and Liabilities.Gas Utility and Electric Utility are subject to tdgtion by the PUC. In accordance v
accounting guidance associated with na&gulated entities, we record the effects of ratilation in our financial statements
regulatory assets or regulatory liabilities. We tamwnally assess whether the regulatory assetsratmple of future recovery
evaluating the regulatory environment, recent caters and public statements issued by the PUCtenstatus of any pendi
deregulation legislation. If future recovery of udgjory assets ceases to be probable, the eliminafi those regulatory ass
would adversely impact our results of operationd aash flows. As of September 30, 2009, our regnjatassets totals
$141.5 million. See Notes 2 and 8 to the Consaddi&inancial Statements.

Depreciation and Amortization of Long-lived Assets.We compute depreciation on UGI Utilitiegroperty, plant ar
equipment on a straiglitie basis over the average remaining lives ofatsous classes of depreciable property and orothe
property, plant and equipment on a strailyg-basis over estimated useful lives generalhgiiag from 2 to 40 years. We a
use amortization methods and determine asset vafuatangible assets other than goodwill usingsoeable assumptions ¢
projections. Changes in the estimated useful lofgzroperty, plant and equipment and changes anijible asset amortizati
methods or values could have a material effectunresults of operations. As of September 30, 2@09,net property, pla
and equipment totaled $2,903.6 million and we reéedrdepreciation expense of $180.2 million duringc&l 2009. As ¢
September 30, 2009, our net intangible assets tihargoodwill totaled $165.5 million and we recedidntangible amortizatic
expense of $18.4 million during Fiscal 2009.

Purchase Price Allocations.From time to time, the Company enters into matdvigdiness combinations. In accordance
accounting guidance associated with business catibits, the purchase price is allocated to theouariassets acquired ¢
liabilities assumed at their estimated fair valbair values of assets acquired and liabilities m&sliare based upon availe
information and we may involve an independent tlmedty to perform appraisals. Estimating fair valwan be complex a
subject to significant business judgment and mashronly impacts property, plant and equipment amengible asse!
including those with indefinite lives. Generallygvhave, if necessary, up to one year from the atini date to finalize tt
purchase price allocation.

Impairment of Goodwill. Certain of the Compang’ business units have goodwill resulting from pasgh busine:
combinations. In accordance with GAAP, each of mporting units with goodwill is required to penfiorimpairment tes
annually or whenever events or circumstances itelittzat the value of goodwill may be impaired. hdey to perform the:
impairment tests, management must determine thertieg unit’s fair value using quoted market prices or, in @hsence (
guoted market prices, valuation techniques whighdiscounted estimates of future cash flows todreetated by the reporti
unit. These cash flow estimates involve managernueigiments based on a broad range of informationhéstdrical results. T
the extent estimated cash flows are revised dowshviae reporting unit may be required to write doahor a portion of it
goodwill which would adversely impact our result$ operations. As of September 30, 2009, our goddwatalec
$1,582.3 million. We did not record any impairmeotgoodwill in Fiscal 2009, Fiscal 2008 or Fis2807.
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Pension Plan AssumptionsThe cost of providing benefits under our Pensi@nPlis dependent on historical information ¢
as employee age, length of service, level of comsation and the actual rate of return on plan assetaddition, certai
assumptions relating to the future are used torchite pension expense including the discount ratelied to benef
obligations, the expected rate of return on plaetssand the rate of compensation increase, antbrgsoAssets of the Pens
Plans are held in trust and consist principallygbity and fixed income mutual funds. Changes @an@Essumptions as well
fluctuations in actual equity or fixed income marketurns could have a material impact on futunespen costs. We believe 1
two most critical assumptions are (1) the expecttd of return on plan assets and (2) the discoatet A decrease in t
expected rate of return on Pension Plans ass&@ bésis points to a rate of 8.0% would resultrinrerease in préax pensio
cost of approximately $1.5 million in Fiscal 201 .decrease in the discount rate of 50 basis pdnis rate of 5.0% wou
result in an increase in pre-tax pension cost pf@pmately $2.4 million in Fiscal 2010.

Income Taxes.We use the asset and liability method of accourfiingncome taxes. Under this method, income tgpease i
recognized for the amount of taxes payable or aHbte for the current year and for deferred takilities and assets for t
future tax consequences of events that have beegmized in our financial statements or tax retuRr#or to Fiscal 2008, v
established liabilities for tarelated contingencies when we believed it was pblebthat a liability had been incurred and
amount could be reasonably estimated. In Fisca82@@ adopted new guidance which establishes stasidlar recognition ar
measurement of positions taken or expected to kenthy an entity in its tax returns. Positions takg an entity in its te
returns must satisfy a more-likely-thant recognition threshold assuming the position bél examined by tax authorities w
full knowledge of relevant information. We use asgtions, judgments and estimates to determine owret provision fc
income taxes. We also use assumptions, judgmendtestimates to determine our deferred tax assetdiailities and an
valuation allowance to be recorded against a deddiax asset. Our assumptions, judgments and éstimaative to the curre
provision for income tax give consideration to emtrtax laws, our interpretation of current taxdaand possible outcomes
current and future audits conducted by foreign @mhestic tax authorities. Changes in tax law oriotarpretation of such a
the resolution of current and future tax audits Idosignificantly impact the amounts provided forcame taxes in o
consolidated financial statements. Our assumptipiigments and estimates relative to the amourteéérred income tax
take into account estimates of the amount of futaxeble income. Actual taxable income or futurénestes of taxable incor
could render our current assumptions, judgmentseatichates inaccurate. Changes in the assumpjigiggnents and estima
mentioned above could cause our actual income ltfigations to differ significantly from our estinest. As of September !
2009, our net deferred tax liabilities totaled $47fillion.

Newly Adopted and Recently Issued Accounting Pronccements

See Note 3 to Consolidated Financial Statementa fbscussion of the effects of accounting guidameeadopted in Fisc
2009, Fiscal 2008 and Fiscal 2007 as well as rgcmsued accounting guidance not yet adopted.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES A BOUT MARKET RISK

“Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Ketr Risk” are contained in Item 7 - Managemsriiscussion ar
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Ggiems under the caption “Market Risk Disclosurastl are incorporat
herein by reference.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Managemens Annual Report on Internal Control Over Finandraporting and the financial statements and fina
statement schedules referred to in the Index aoedadbn page F-2 of this Report are incorporatedihday reference.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON AC COUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE

None.
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ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

@)

(b)

©

The Company’s management, with the padttgm of the Compang’ Chief Executive Officer and Chief Finan
Officer, evaluated the effectiveness of the Compamljsclosure controls and procedures as of theoétige perio
covered by this Report. Based on that evaluatiom,Ghief Executive Officer and Chief Financial O conclude
that the Company’ disclosure controls and procedures as of theaérttie period covered by this Report w
designed and functioning effectively to provides@aable assurance that the information requirdzktdisclosed k
the Company in reports filed under the Securitigshange Act of 1934, as amended, is (i) recordedcgssel
summarized and reported within the time period<ifipd in the SEGCS rules and forms and (ii) accumulated
communicated to our management, including the Chiefcutive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, agpropriat
to allow timely decisions regarding disclost

For “Management’s Report on Internal Cohtower Financial Reporting”see Item 8 of this Report (whi
information is incorporated herein by referen:

No change in the Compa’s internal control over financial reporting ocoedrduring the Company’most recel
fiscal quarter that has materially affected, oreasonably likely to materially affect, the Companinternal contre
over financial reporting

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.
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In accordance with General Instruction G(3), ancegx as set forth below, the information requirgdtems 10, 11, 12, :
and 14 is incorporated in this Report by referetocthe following portions of UGE Proxy Statement, which will be filed w
the Securities and Exchange Commission by Decefrihe2009.

Item 10.

Item 11.

Item 12.

Item 13.

Item 14.

Information

Captions of Proxy Statement
Incorporated by Reference

Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Govaoea

The Code of Ethics for the Chief Executive Offiead
Senior Financial Officers of UGI Corporation is dable
without charge on the Company’s website,
www.ugicorp.com or by writing to Robert W. Krick,iéé
President and Treasurer, UGI Corporation, P. O. &
Valley Forge, PA 1948:

Executive Compensation

Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and
Management and Related Stockholder Mat

Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and

Director Independence

Principal Accountant Fees and Services

55

Election of Directors — Nominees; Corporate
Governance; Communications with the Board;
Board Committees and Meeting Attendance;
Securities Ownership of Management — Section 16
(a) — Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance;
Report of the Audit Committee of the Board of
Directors

Compensation of Directors; Report of the
Compensation and Management Development
Committee of the Board of Directors; Compensation
Discussion and Analysis; Compensation of
Executive Officers; Compensation Committee
Interlocks and Insider Participatit

Securities Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners;
Securities Ownership of Managem:

Election of Directors — Board Committees and
Meeting Attendance; Policy for Approval of Related
Person Transactior

The Independent Registered Public
Accountants
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Equity Compensation Table

The following table sets forth information as oétend of Fiscal 2009 with respect to compensatianspunder which ol
equity securities are authorized for issuance.

Number of securities
Number of securities to be Weighted average remaining available for future

issued upon exercise of exercise price of issuance under equity
outstanding options, outstanding options compensation plans
warrants and rights ~ warrants and rights (excluding securities reflecte(
Plan category (a) (b) in column (a)) (c)
Equity compensation plans approved by
security holder: 7,287,66i(1) $23.07
878,42(2) $0 5,576,93!
Equity compensation plans not approved
security holder: 213,8243) $11.7¢ 0
Total 8,379,92 $22.744) 5,576,93

(1) Represents 7,287,668 stock options undefl®& Stock Option and Dividend Equivalent Plan,2080 Directors'Stock
Option Plan, the 2000 Stock Incentive Plan andufdd Corporation 2004 Omnibus Equity CompensaticenPAmende
and Restated as of December 5, 2(

(2) Represents 878,427 phantom share units under theCdfporation 2004 Omnibus Equity Compensation Famendel
and Restated as of December 5, 2!

(3) Column (a) represents 213,825 stock optiordeuthe 1992 and 2002 N@ualified Stock Option Plans. Under the 1
and 2002 NorQualified Stock Option Plans, the option exercigeeis not less than 100% of the fair market valfiehe
Companys common stock on the date of grant. Generallyippptbecome exercisable in three equal annualllimssats
beginning on the first anniversary of the granted&ll options are notransferable and generally exercisable only v
the holder is employed by the Company or an affiliavith exceptions for exercise following retiremedisability an
death. Options are subject to adjustment in theteoErecapitalization, stock splits, mergers atfaeo similar corpora
transactions affecting the Compis common stock

(4) Weightec-average exercise price of outstanding options;uebed phantom share uni
The information concerning the Company’s executiffieers required by Item 10 is set forth below.

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Name Age Position

Lon R. Greenber 59  Chairman and Chief Executive Offic

John L. Walst 54  President and Chief Operating Offic

Davinder S. Athwa 42  Vice Presiden— Accounting and Financial Control and Chief RiskiGdi
Eugene V.N. Bisse 56 President and Chief Executive Officer, AmeriGaspRre, Inc

Bradley C. Hall 56 Vice Presiden— New Business Developme

Peter Kelly 52  Vice Presiden— Finance and Chief Financial Offic

Robert H. Knaus 56 Vice President and General Counsel and Assistanegey

Francois Varagn 54  Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive OfficeAntargaz

All officers, except Mr. Varagne, are elected fooree-yeaterm at the organizational meetings of the respedioards ¢
Directors held each year. Mr. Varagne was appoiate@€hairman of the Board of Antargaz on Januar2@65. His term (
office is five years.

There are no family relationships between any efdfiicers or between any of the officers and ainhe directors.
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Lon R. Greenberg

Mr. Greenberg was elected Chairman of the Boadictors of UGI effective August 1, 1996, havingel elected Chi
Executive Officer effective August 1, 1995. He htid office of President of UGI from 1994 to 206t was elected Direct
of UGI and UGI Utilities in July 1994. He was eledta Director of AmeriGas Propane, Inc. in 1994 hasd been Chairm
since 1996. He also served as President and Ckhexfuiive Officer of AmeriGas Propane (1996 to 200@). Greenberg wi
Senior Vice President —tegal and Corporate Development (1989 to 1994).jditeed the Company in 1980 as Corpo
Development Counsel. Mr. Greenberg also servehemoard of directors and the compensation comendfeAqua Americi
Inc.

John L. Walsh

Mr. Walsh is President and Chief Operating Offieexd a Director (since April 2005). He is also ViCkairman an
Director of AmeriGas Propane, Inc., and Directoirge/Chairman, (since April 2005), President andeClixecutive Office
(since July 2009) of UGI Utilities, Inc. He previly served as Chief Executive of the Industrial &pecial Products divisis
and executive director of BOC Group PLC, an indaktrases company (20@B05). From 1986 to 2001, he held various st
management positions with the BOC Group. Priowinifi)g BOC Group, Mr. Walsh was a Vice PresidentU@!’'s industria
gas division prior to its sale to BOC Group in 19B8om 1981 until 1986, Mr. Walsh held several ngamaent positions wi
affiliates of UGI.

Davinder S. Athwal

Mr. Athwal is Vice President —Accounting and Financial Control and Chief Risk i€df (since January 2009).
previously served as the Global Mergers & Acquisii Controller of Nortel Networks, Inc., a globalpglier o
telecommunications equipment and solutions, a jposib which he served since 2007. Mr. Athwal sdras Director, Glob
Revenue Governance for Nortel Networks, Inc. froB0& through 2007. Mr. Athwal served in both accmgmtand risl
management roles for IBM Corporation, a globallegrated innovation and technology company (2003065).

Eugene V.N. Bissell

Mr. Bissell is President, Chief Executive Officerdaa Director of AmeriGas Propane, Inc. (since 2090), having servt
as Senior Vice President — Sales and Marketing {1692000) and Vice President Sales and Operations (1995 to 19
Previously, he was Vice President - Distributord &abrication, BOC Gases (1995), having been ViesiBent —Nationa
Sales (1993 to 1995) and Regional Vice Presidemttt®rn Region) for Distributor and Cylinder Gagagision, BOC Gase
(1989 to 1993). From 1981 to 1987, Mr. Bissell heddious positions with the Company and its suldsids, including Directa
Corporate Development. Mr. Bissell is a memberh& Board of Directors of the National Propane Gasogiation and
member of the Kalamazoo College Board of Trustees.

Bradley C. Hall

Mr. Hall is Vice President —New Business Development (since October 1994). He serves as President of |
Enterprises, Inc. (since 1994). He joined the Camgpga 1982 and held various positions in UGI Ui#, Inc., including Vic
President — Marketing and Rates.

Peter Kelly

Mr. Kelly is Vice President —Finance and Chief Financial Officer (since Septen@®®7). He previously served
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officd Agere Systems, Inc., a global manufacturesemiconductors,
position in which he served from 2005 to 2007. Kelly served as Executive Vice Presid@ibbal Operations for Age
Systems, Inc. (2001 to 2005). Mr. Kelly currentnses on the board of directors and the audit angpensation committees
Plexus Corp., an electronics manufacturing sencoaspany.
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Robert H. Knauss

Mr. Knauss was elected Vice President and Genarah€:l and Assistant Secretary on September 33, 239previousl|
served as Vice President Law and Associate General Counsel of AmeriGas Rreplmc. (1996 to 2003), and Group Cou
— Propane of UGI (1989 to 1996). He joined the Comgpian1985. Previously, Mr. Knauss was an assoa@atthe firm o
Ballard, Spahr, Andrews & Ingersoll in Philadelphia

Francois Varagne
Mr. Varagne is Chairman of the Board and Chief Htiee Officer of Antargaz (since 2001). Before joip Antargaz
Mr. Varagne was Chairman of the Board and Chiefchtee Officer of VIA GTI, a common carrier in Frea (1998 to 2001
Prior to that, Mr. Varagne was Chairman of the Bloand Chief Executive Officer of Brink’France, a funds carrier (199
1998).
PART IV:
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
(a) Documents filed as part of this report:
(1) Financial Statements:
Included under Item 8 are the following financitements and supplementary data:
Management's Report on Internal Control over FimariReporting
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounfinm
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of September 30,a8102008
Consolidated Statements of Income for the years@&@dptember 30, 2009, 2008 and 2007
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yeaded September 30, 2009, 2008 and 2007
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equitytfieryears ended September 30, 2009, 2008 and 2007
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(2) Financial Statement Schedules
| — Condensed Financial Information of Registrant (Re@ompany’
Il — Valuation and Qualifying Accounts for the years eth&eptember 30, 2009, 2008 and 2
We have omitted all other financial statement solesibecause the required information is (1) nesgni

(2) not present in amounts sufficient to requirbrsission of the schedule; or (3) included elsewliere
financial statements or related notes.
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The exhibits filed as part of this report are affes (exhibits incorporated by reference are sethfwith
the name of the registrant, the type of report gilstration number or last date of the periodvibich it

was filed, and the exhibit number in such filing):

Incorporation by Reference

Exhibit No. Exhibit Registrant Filing Exhibit
3.1 (Second) Amended and Restated Articles of UGl Form 10-Q 3.1
Incorporation of the Company as amended through (6/30/05)
June 6, 200!
3.2 Bylaws of UGI as amended through September 28, UGl Form 8-K 3.2
2004 (9/28/04)
4 Instruments defining the rights of security holders
including indentures. (The Company agrees to fartd
the Commission upon request a copy of any instrimen
defining the rights of holders of long-term debt no
required to be filed pursuant to ltem 601(b)(4) of
Regulation -K)
4.1 The description of the Company’s Common Stock UGl Form 8-B/A 3.(4)
contained in the Company’s registration statemiéed f (4/17/96)
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as aptt
4.2 UGI’s (Second) Amended and Restated Atrticles of
Incorporation and Bylaws referred to in 3.1 and 3.2
above
4.3 Fourth Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited  AmeriGas Form 10-Q 3.1
Partnership of AmeriGas Partners, L.P. dated as of  Partners, L.F (6/30/09)
July 27, 200¢
4.4 Indenture, dated May 3, 2005, by and among AmeriGas AmeriGas Form 8-K 4.1
Partners, L.P., a Delaware limited partnership, Partners, L.F (5/3/05)
AmeriGas Finance Corp., a Delaware corporation, and
Wachovia Bank, National Association, as trus
4.t Indenture, dated January 26, 2006, by and among AmeriGas Form 8-K 4.1
AmeriGas Partners, L.P., a Delaware limited Partners, L.F (1/26/06)
partnership, AP Eagle Finance Corp., a Delaware
corporation, and U.S. Bank National Association, as
trustee
4.€ Indenture, dated as of August 1, 1993, by and bestwe Utilities Registration 4(c)

UGI Utilities, Inc., as Issuer, and U.S. Bank Natb
Association, as successor trustee, incorporated by
reference to the Registration Statement on Form S-3
filed on April 8, 1994
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4.7 Supplemental Indenture, dated as of September 15, Utilities Form 8-K 4.2
2006, by and between UGI Utilities, Inc., as Issaed (9/12/06)
U.S. Bank National Association, successor trusiee t
Wachovia Bank, National Associatis
4.8 Form of Fixed Rate Medium-Term Note Utilities Form 8-K 4(i)
(8/26/94)
4.¢ Form of Fixed Rate Series B Medium-Term Note Utilities Form 8-K 4(i)
(8/1/96)
4.1( Form of Floating Rate Series B Medium-Term Note Utilities Form 8-K A4(ii)
(8/1/96)
411 Officer’s Certificate establishing Medium-Term Nste Utilities Form 8-K 4(iv)
Series (8/26/94)
4.1z Form of Officer’s Certificate establishing Series B Utilities Form 8-K 4(iv)
Mediun-Term Notes under the Indentt (8/1/96)
413 Form of Officers’ Certificate establishing Series C Utilities Form 8-K 4.2
Mediun-Term Notes under the Indentt (5/21/02)
414 Forms of Floating Rate and Fixed Rate Series C Utilities Form 8-K 41
Mediunm-Term Notes (5/21/02)
10.1%* UGI Corporation 2004 Omnibus Equity Compensation  UGI Form 8-K 10.1
Plan Amended and Restated as of December 5, (3/27/07)
*10.2*%* UGI Corporation 2004 Omnibus Equity Compensation
Plan Amended and Restated as of December 5, 2006 —
Terms and Conditions as amended and restated
effective January 1, 20(
10.2* UGI Corporation 2004 Omnibus Equity Compensation  UGI Form 10-K 10.6¢€
Plan Sub-Plan for French Employees effective (9/30/06)
December 6, 200
10.4+* UGI Corporation Amended and Restated 2004 UGl Form 10-Q 10.1
Omnibus Equity Compensation Plan Sub-Plan for (6/30/08)
French Employees and Corporate Officers effective
May 20, 200¢
*10.5%* UGI Corporation Amended and Restated Directors’
Deferred Compensation Plan as of January 1,
10.e+* UGI Corporation 2000 Directors’ Stock Option Plan UGl Form 10-K 10.1:
Amended and Restated as of May 24, 2 (9/30/06)
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10.7** UGI Corporation 1997 Stock Option and Dividt UGl Form 10-K 10.12(C
Equivalent Plan Amended and Restated as of May (9/30/06)
24, 200&
10.6+* UGI Corporation 2000 Stock Incentive Plan UGl Form 10-K 10.1¢
Amended and Restated as of May 24, 2 (9/30/06)
10.¢+* UGI Corporation 2009 Deferral Plan UGl Form 8-K 10.1
(12/12/08)
10.10* UGI Corporation Senior Executive Employee UGl Form 10-Q 10.1
Severance Plan as in effect as of January 1, (3/31/08)
*10.11** UGI Corporation Supplemental Executive

Retirement Plan and Supplemental Savings Plan,
as Amended and Restated effective January 1,

2009

10.12+* UGI Corporation Executive Annual Bonus Plan UGl Form 10-K 10.¢
effective as of October 1, 20! (9/30/07)

10.13* AmeriGas Propane, Inc. 2000 Long-Term AmeriGas Form 10-K 10.7
Incentive Plan on Behalf of AmeriGas Partners,  Partners, L.P. (9/30/08)
L.P., as amended and restated effective January 1,
2005

10.1¢* AmeriGas Propane, Inc. Discretionary Lohgrm AmeriGas Form 10-K 10.€
Incentive Plan for Non-Executive Key Employees Partners, L.P. (9/30/08)

effective July 1, 2000 and Amended as of
January 1, 200

10.15%* AmeriGas Propane, Inc. Non-Qualified Deferred AmeriGas Form 10-K 10.4¢
Compensation Plan, as amended and restated Partners, L.P. (9/30/08)
effective January 1, 20(

10.1€x* AmeriGas Propane, Inc. Senior Executive AmeriGas Form 10-K 10.1z
Employee Severance Plan, as in effect January 1, Partners, L.P. (9/30/09)
2008

10.17** AmeriGas Propane, Inc. Executive Employee AmeriGas Form 10-K 10.4
Severance Plan, as in effect January 1, : Partners, L.F (9/30/08)

10.1¢&* AmeriGas Propane, Inc. Supplemental Executive ~ AmeriGas Form 10-K 10.2¢
Retirement Plan, as Amended July 30, 2 Partners, L.F (9/30/07)

10.1¢* AmeriGas Propane, Inc. Executive Annual Bonus  AmeriGas Form 10-K 10.1¢
Plan, effective as of October 1, 2C Partners, L.F (9/30/07)

*10.2C+* Summary of Antargaz Supplemental Retirement

Plans effective as of September 1, 2

10.27** UGI Corporation 2004 Omnibus Equity UGl Form 10-Q 10.7
Compensation Plan Stock Unit Grant Letter for (3/31/09)
Non Employee Directors, dated January 1, 2

10.2z%* UGI Corporation 2004 Omnibus Equity UGl Form 10-Q 10.¢
Compensation Plan Stock Unit Grant Letter for (3/31/09)

UGI Employees, dated January 1, 2(
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*10.23+* UGI Corporation 2004 Omnibus Equity
Compensation Plan Stock Unit Grant Letter for
Utilities Employees, dated January 1, 2

10.2¢* UGI Corporation 2004 Omnibus Equity UGl Form 10-Q 10.4
Compensation Plan Nonqualified Stock Option (3/31/09)
Grant Letter for Non Employee Directors, dated
January 1, 200

10.28** UGI Corporation 2004 Omnibus Equity UGl Form 10-Q 10.t
Compensation Plan Nonqualified Stock Option (3/31/09)
Grant Letter for UGI Employees, dated January
1, 2009

10.2¢* UGI Corporation 2004 Omnibus Equity UGl Form 10-Q 10.z
Compensation Plan Nonqualified Stock Option (3/31/09)

Grant Letter for AmeriGas Employees, dated
January 1, 200

10.27** UGI Corporation 2004 Omnibus Equity UGl Form 10-Q 10.€
Compensation Plan Nonqualified Stock Option (3/31/09)
Grant Letter for Utilities Employees, dated
January 1, 200

10.2¢&* UGI Corporation 2004 Omnibus Equity UGl Form 10-Q 10.1
Compensation Plan Performance Unit Grant L (3/31/09)
for UGI Employees, dated January 1, 2I

10.2¢* UGI Corporation 2004 Omnibus Equity UGl Form 10-Q 10.z
Compensation Plan Performance Unit Grant L (3/31/09)
for UGI Utilities Employees, dated January 1,
2009

10.30+* AmeriGas Propane, Inc. 2000 Long-Term AmeriGas Form 10-Q 10.2
Incentive Plan on Behalf of AmeriGas Partners,  Partners, L.P. (3/31/09)

L.P., as amended and restated effective January 1,
2005, Restricted Unit Grant Letter dated as of
January 1, 200

*10.31** Description of oral compensation arrangements
for Messrs. Greenberg, Kelly, Knauss and Wi

10.32* Description of oral compensation arrangement for  AmeriGas Form 10-K 10.22
Mr. Bissell Partners, L.F (9/30/09)

10.33* Summary of Director Compensation as of Octc UGl Form 10-K 10.22
1, 2006 (9/30/06)

10.3¢* Form of Change in Control Agreement Amended UGl Form 10-Q 10.z
and Restated as of May 12, 2008 for Messrs. (6/30/08)
Greenberg, Kelly, Knauss and Wa

10.38** Form of Change in Control Agreement Amended  AmeriGas Form 10-Q 10.1
and Restated as of May 12, 2008 for Mr. Bis Partners, L.F (6/30/08)
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10.3¢** Form of Confidentiality and Post-Employment AmeriGas Form 10-Q 10.:
Activities Agreement with AmeriGas Propane, Partners, L.P. (3/31/05)
Inc. for Mr. Bissell
10.37** Form of Confidentiality and Post-Employment AmeriGas Form 10-K 10.2¢
Activities Agreement with AmeriGas Propane, Partners, L.P. (9/30/09)
Inc. for Mr. Knaus:
10.3¢ Trademark License Agreement dated April 19, AmeriGas Form 10-Q 10.€
1995 among UGI Corporation, AmeriGas, Inc., Partners, L.P. (3/31/95)

AmeriGas Propane, Inc., AmeriGas Partners, L.P.
and AmeriGas Propane, L.

10.3¢ Trademark License Agreement, dated April 19, AmeriGas Form 10-Q 10.7
1995 among AmeriGas Propane, Inc., AmeriGas Partners, L.P. (3/31/95)
Partners, L.P. and AmeriGas Propane,

10.4( Credit Agreement, dated as of April 17, 2009, AmeriGas Form 8-K 10.1
among AmeriGas Propane, L.P., as Borrower, Partners, L.P. (4/17/09)

AmeriGas Propane, Inc., as Guarantor, Petrolane
Incorporated, as Guarantor, Citizens Bank of
Pennsylvania, as Syndication Agent, JPMorgan
Chase, N.A., as Documentation Agent and
Wachovia Bank, National Association, as
Administrative Agen

10.41 Restricted Subsidiary Guarantee by the Restricted AmeriGas Form 8-K 10.:
Subsidiaries of AmeriGas Propane, L.P., as Partners, L.P. (7/20/09)
Guarantors, for the benefit of Wachovia Bank,
National Association and the Banks, dated ¢

April 17, 2009
10.4: Form of Joinder No. 1 to Restricted Subsidiary AmeriGas Form 8-K 10.z
Guarantee, dated as of July 20, 2009, by Partners, L.P. (7/20/09)

AmeriGas Eagle Propane, L.P. and AmeriGas
Eagle Parts & Service Inc. for the benefit of
Wachovia Bank, National Association and the
Banks (as definec

10.4: Credit Agreement dated as of November 6, 2006  AmeriGas Form 8-K 10.1
among AmeriGas Propane, L.P., as Borrower, Partners, L.P. (11/6/06)
AmeriGas Propane, Inc., as Guarantor, Petrolane
Incorporated, as Guarantor, Citigroup Global
Markets Inc., as Syndication Agent, J.P. Morgan
Securities Inc. and Credit Suisse Securities
(USA) LLC, as Co-Documentation Agents,
Wachovia Bank, National Association, as Agent,
Issuing Bank and Swing Line Bank, and the other
financial institutions party there

10.4¢ Restricted Subsidiary Guarantee by the Restricted AmeriGas Form 10-K 10.z
Subsidiaries of AmeriGas Propane, L.P., as Partners, L.P. (9/30/06)
Guarantors, for the benefit of Wachovia Bank,
National Association and the Banks dated ¢
November 6, 200
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10.4¢ Form of Joinder No. 2 to Restricted Subsidiary AmeriGas Form 8-K 10.1
Guarantee, dated as of July 20, 2009, by Partners, L.P. (7/20/09)

AmeriGas Eagle Propane, L.P. and AmeriGas
Eagle Parts & Service Inc. for the benefit of
Wachovia Bank, National Association and the
Banks (as definec

10.4¢ Release of Liens and Termination of Security AmeriGas Form 10-K 10.:
Documents dated as of November 6, 2006 by and Partners, L.P. (9/30/06)
among AmeriGas Propane, Inc., Petrolane
Incorporated, AmeriGas Propane, L.P., AmeriGas
Propane Parts & Service, Inc. and Wachovia
Bank, National Association, as Collateral Agent
for the Secured Creditors, pursuant to the
Intercreditor and Agency Agreement dated as of

April 19, 1995
10.45 Credit Agreement, dated as of August 11, 2006, Utilities Form 8-K 10.1
among UGI Utilities, Inc., as borrower, and (8/11/06)

Citibank, N.A., as agent, Wachovia Bank,
National Association, as syndication agent,
Citizens Bank of Pennsylvania, Credit Suisse,
Cayman Islands Branch, Deutsche Bank AG New
York Branch, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A.,
Mellon Bank, N.A., PNC Bank, National
Association, and the other financial institutions
from time to time parties there

10.4¢ Receivables Purchase Agreement, dated as of UGl Form 10-Q 10.1:
November 30, 2001, as amended through (3/31/09)
including Amendment No. 7 thereto dated April
23, 2009, by and among UGI Energy Services,
Inc., as servicer, Energy Services Funding
Corporation, as seller, Market Street Funding,
LLC, as issuer, and PNC Bank, National
Association, as administrat

10.4¢ Amendment No. 7, dated April 23, 2009, to UGl Form 10-Q 10.1z
Receivables Purchase Agreement, dated as of (3/31/09)
November 30, 2001 (as amended, supplemen
modified from time to time), by and among UGI
Energy Services, Inc., as servicer, Energy Ser
Funding Corporation, as seller, Market Street
Funding, LLC, as issuer, and PNC Bank, National
Association, as administrat

10.5C Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated as of UGl Form 10-Q 10.1¢
November 30, 2001, as amended through (3/31/09)
including Amendment No. 2 thereto dated
September 5, 2006, by and between UGI Energy
Services, Inc. and Energy Services Funding

Corporatior
10.51 Senior Facilities Agreement dated December 7, UGl Form 10-Q 10.1
2005 by and among AGZ Holding, as Borrower (12/31/05)

and Guarantor, Antargaz, as Borrower and
Guarantor, Calyon, as Mandated Lead Arranger,
Facility Agent and Security Agent and the
Financial Institutions named there
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10.52 Amendment Agreement dated October 6, 2008 to UGl Form 10-K 10.6%(a)
Senior Facilities Agreement dated December 7, (9/30/08)
2005 by and among AGZ Holding, Antargaz,
Calyon and the Financial Institutions named
therein
10.5: Pledge of Financial Instruments Account relating UGl Form 10-Q 10.z
to Financial Instruments held by AGZ Holding in (12/31/05)
Antargaz, dated December 7, 2005, by and among
AGZ Holding, as Pledgor, Calyon, as Security
Agent, and the Lende
10.5¢ Pledge of Financial Instruments Account relating UGl Form 10-Q 10.:
to Financial Instruments held by Antargaz in (12/31/05)
certain subsidiary companies, dated December 7,
2005, by and among Antargaz, as Pledgor,
Calyon, as Security Agent, and the Revolving
Lenders
10.5¢ Letter of Undertakings dated December 7, 2005, UGl Form 10-Q 10.4
by UGI Bordeaux Holding to AGZ Holding, the (12/31/05)
Parent of Antargaz, and Calyon, the Facility
Agent, acting on behalf of the Lenders, (as del
within the Senior Facilities Agreemet
10.5¢ Security Agreement for the Assignment of UGl Form 10-Q 10.7
Receivables dated as of December 7, 2005 by and (12/31/05)
among AGZ Holding, as Assignor, Calyon, as
Security Agent, and the Lenders named the
10.5% Security Agreement for the Assignment of UGl Form 10-Q 10.¢
Receivables dated as of December 7, 2005 by and (12/31/05)
among Antargaz, as Assignor, Calyon, as Security
Agent, and the Lenders named thel
10.5¢ Seller’s Guarantee dated February 16, 2001 ai UGl Form 10-Q 10.t
Elf Antar France, EIf Aquitaine and AGZ Holdii (3/31/04)
10.5¢ Purchase Agreement dated January 30, 2001 and AmeriGas Form 8-K 10.1
Amended and Restated on August 7, 2001 by and Partners, L.P. (8/8/01)
among Columbia Energy Group, Columbia
Propane Corporation, Columbia Propane, L.P.
Holdings, Inc., AmeriGas Propane, L.P.,
AmeriGas Partners, L.P., and AmeriGas Propane,
Inc.
10.6(C Columbia Energy Group Payment Guaranty dated AmeriGas Form 10-K 10.4:
April 5, 1999 Partners, L.F (9/30/01)
10.61 Purchase Agreement by and among Columbia  National Propane  Form 8-K 10.t

Propane, L.P., CP Holdings, Inc., Columbia Partners, L.P. (4/19/99)
Propane Corporation, National Propane Partners,

L.P., National Propane Corporation, National

Propane SPG, Inc., and Triarc Companies, Inc.

dated as of April 5, 199
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10.62 Stock Purchase Agreement by and between PPL Utilities Form 8-K 10.1
Corporation, as Seller, and UGI Utilities, Inc., as (3/5/08)
Buyer, dated as of March 5, 20

10.6: Amendment dated May 2, 2008 to the Stock Purchase Utilities Form 10-Q 10.z
Agreement by and between PPL Corporation, as Seller (3/31/08)
and UGI Utilities, Inc., as Buyer, dated as of Mak;
2008

10.6¢ Purchase and Sale Agreement by and between So UGl Form 8-K 10.1
Union Company, as Seller, and UGI Corporation, as (1/26/06)
Buyer, dated as of January 26, 2(

10.6¢ Gas Service Delivery and Supply Agreement between  Utilities Form 10-K 10.3:
Utilities and UGI Energy Services, Inc. dated AugLy (9/30/04)
2004

10.6¢€ Service Agreement (Rate FSS) dated as of Novem UGl Form 10-K 10.t
1989 between Utilities and Columbia, as modified (9/30/95)
pursuant to the orders of the Federal Energy Remyl
Commission at Docket No. RS92-5-000 reported at
Columbia Gas Transmission Corp., 64 FERC 161,060
(1993), order on rehearing, 64 FERC 161,365 (1

10.67% Storage Transportation Service Agreement (Rate Utilities Form 10-K 10.2¢
Schedule SST) between Utilities and Columbia dated (9/30/02)
November 1, 1993, as modified pursuant to orde
the Federal Energy Regulatory Commiss

10.6¢ Amendment No. 1 dated November 1, 2004, to the Utilities Form 10-K 10.2¢
Service Agreement (Rate FSS) dated as of Novem (9/30/04)
1989 between Utilities and Columbia, as modified
pursuant to the orders of the Federal Energy Regul
Commission at Docket No. RS92-5-000 reported at
Columbia Gas Transmission Corp., 64 FERC 161,060
(1993), order on rehearing, 64 FERC 161,365 (1

10.6¢ Firm Transportation Service Agreement (Rate Utilities Form 10-K 10.3¢
Schedule FTS) between Utilities and Columbia Gas (9/30/04)
Transmission dated November 1, 2(

10.7¢ Service Agreement (Rate FSS) dated August 16, 2004 Utilities Form 8-K 10.4
between Columbia Gas Transmission Corporation and (8/24/06)
PG Energy

10.71 Service Agreement (Rate SST) dated August 16, 2004 Utilities Form 8-K 10.t
between Columbia Gas Transmission Corporation and (8/24/06)

PG Energy
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10.7z FSS Service Agreement No. 49789, dated Utilities Form 8-K 10.z
November 20, 1995, by and between Columbia (10/1/08)

Transmission Corporation and UGI Central Penn Gas,
Inc. (as successor to Penn Fuel Gas,

10.7: FSS Service Agreement No. 49791, dated Utilities Form 8-K 10.z
November 20, 1995, by and between Columbia (10/1/08)
Transmission Corporation and UGI Central Penn Gas,
Inc. (as successor to Penn Fuel Gas,

10.7¢ FSS Service Agreement No. 80935, dated as of Utilities Form 10-Q 10.z
October 29, 2004, by and between Columbia Gas (3/31/09)
Transmission, LLC and UGI Central Penn Gas,

10.7¢ SST Service Agreement No. 49788, dated Utilities Form 8-K 10.t
November 20, 1995, by and between Columbia (10/1/08)

Transmission Corporation and UGI Central Penn Gas,
Inc. (as successor to Penn Fuel Gas,

10.7¢ SST Service Agreement No. 49790, dated Utilities Form 8-K 10.€
November 20, 1995, by and between Columbia (10/1/08)
Transmission Corporation and UGI Central Penn Gas,
Inc. (as successor to Penn Fuel Gas,

10.73 SST Service Agreement No. 80934, dated as of Utilities Form 10-Q 10.4
October 29, 2004, by and between Columbia Gas (3/31/09)
Transmission, LLC and UGI Central Penn Gas,

10.7¢ No-Notice Transportation Service Agreement (Rate Utilities Form 10-K 10.2%
Schedule CDS) between Utilities and Texas Eastern (9/30/02)

Transmission dated February 23, 1999, as modified
pursuant to various orders of the Federal Energy
Regulatory Commissio

10.7¢ No-Notice Transportation Service Agreement (Rate Utilities Form 10-K 10.2¢
Schedule CDS) between Utilities and Texas Eastern (9/30/02)
Transmission dated October 31, 2000, as modified
pursuant to various orders of the Federal Energy
Regulatory Commissio

10.8( Firm Transportation Service Agreement (Rate Utilities Form 10-K 10.2¢
Schedule FT-1) between Utilities and Texas Eastern (9/30/02)
Transmission dated June 15, 1999, as modified
pursuant to various orders of the Federal Energy
Regulatory Commissio

10.81 Service Agreement for comprehensive delivery servic UGl Form 10-K 10.41
(Rate CDS) dated February 23, 1999 between UGI (9/30/00)
Utilities, Inc. and Texas Eastern Transmission
Corporatior
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10.8: Amendment No. 1 dated November 1, 2004, to the No- Utilities Form 10-K 10.3(
Notice Transportation Service Agreement (F (9/30/04)

Schedule CDS) between UGI Utilities and Texas
Eastern Transmission dated February 23, 1999, as
modified pursuant to various orders of the Federal
Energy Regulatory Commissic

10.8: Amendment No. 1 dated November 1, 2004, to the Utilities Form 10-K 10.3:
Firm Transportation Service Agreement (Rate (9/30/04)
Schedule FT-1) between Utilities and Texas Eastern
Transmission dated June 15, 1999, as modified
pursuant to various orders of the Federal Energy
Regulatory Commissio

10.8¢ Firm Transportation Service Agreement (Rate Utilities Form 10-K 10.31
Schedule FT) between Utilities and Transcontinental (9/30/02)
Gas Pipe Line dated October 1, 1996, as modified
pursuant to various orders of the Federal Energy
Regulatory Commissio

10.8¢ Amendment dated March 20, 2007 to the Firm Utilities Form 8-K 10.1
Transportation Service Agreement (Rate Schedule FT) (3/20/07)
dated October 1, 1996 between UGI Utilities and
Transcontinental Gas Pipe Line Corporation, as
modified pursuant to various orders of the Federal
Energy Regulatory Commissic

10.8¢ Firm Transportation Service Agreement (Rate FT) Utilities Form 8-K 10.7
dated February 1, 1992 between Transcontinental Gas (8/24/06)
Pipe Line Corporation and PG Energy (as successor t
Pennsylvania Gas and Water Compe

10.8i Firm Transportation Service Agreement (Rate FT) Utilities Form 8-K 10.€
dated July 10, 1997 between Transcontinental Gaes Pi (8/24/06)
Line Corporation and PG Ener
10.8¢ Firm Storage and Delivery Service Agreement (Rate  Utilities Form 8-K 10.¢
GSS) dated July 1, 1996 between Transcontinental Ga (8/24/06)
Pipe Line Corporation and PG Enel
14 Code of Ethics for principal executive, financiaba UGl Form 10-K 14
accounting officer: (9/30/03)
*21 Subsidiaries of the Registre
*23 Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers |
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*

*%

*31.1

*31.2

*32

Filed herewith

As required by Item 14(a)(3), this exhibit is idéietl as a compensatory plan or arrangerr

Certification by the Chief Executive Officer relagito

the Registrant’'s Report on Form KOfor the fiscal yea
ended September 30, 2009 pursuant to Section 302 of
the Sarbane«Oxley Act of 200z

Certification by the Chief Financial Officer reliagj to

the Registrant’'s Report on Form KOfor the fiscal yea
ended September 30, 2009 pursuant to Section 302 of
the Sarbane«Oxley Act of 200z

Certification by the Chief Executive Officer andeth
Chief Financial Officer relating to the Registrant’
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2009, pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regygthas duly caus
this Report to be signed on its behalf by the usideed, thereunto duly authorized.

UGI CORPORATION
Date: November 20, 2009 By: /s/ Peter Kelly

Peter Kelly
Vice Presiden— Finance and Chief Financial Offic

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, this Report has been signed belowovember 2!
2009, by the following persons on behalf of the iRegnt in the capacities indicated.

Signature Title

/sl Lon R. Greenberg Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Lon R. Greenber (Principal Executive Officer) and Director

/s/ John L. Walsh President and Chief Operating Officer

John L. Walst (Principal Operating Officer) and Director

/sl Peter Kelly Vice President — Finance, Chief Financial Officer
Peter Kelly (Principal Financial Officer)

/s/ Davinder S. Athwal Vice President — Accounting and Financial Control,
Davinder S. Athwa Chief Risk Officer (Principal Accounting Officer)

/s/ Stephen D. Ban Director

Stephen D. Ba

/s/ Richard C. Gozon Director
Richard C. Gozol

/s/ Ernest E. Jones Director
Ernest E. Jone

/s/ Anne Pol Director
Anne Pol
/s/ M. Shawn Puccio Director

M. Shawn Puccit

/sl Marvin O. Schlanger Director
Marvin O. Schlange

/s/ Roger B. Vincent Director
Roger B. Vincen
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UGI CORPORATION
INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT

SCHEDULES
Pages

Managemer's Report on Internal Control over Financial Repay F-3
Financial Statement
Report of Independent Registered Public AccourfEing F-4
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of September 30,&0D200¢ F-5
Consolidated Statements of Income for the yearse®#ptember 30, 2009, 2008 and 2 F-6
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the ye@ded September 30, 2009, 2008 and : F-7
Consolidated Statements of Stockhol’ Equity for the years ended September 30, 2009, 2008007 F-8
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statem F-9to F-51
Financial Statement Schedul
For the years ended September 30, 2009, 2008 &t
| — Condensed Financial Information of Registrant (Re@ompany’ S-1to &3
Il — Valuation and Qualifying Accoun S-4to &5

We have omitted all other financial statement salexibecause the required information is eithenét)present; (2) not pres
in amounts sufficient to require submission of $hbedule; or (3) included elsewhere in the findratetements or related not
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Report of Management
Financial Statements

The Companys consolidated financial statements and other fighrinformation contained in this Annual Report
prepared by management, which is responsible & fhirness, integrity and objectivity. The condated financial statemel
and related information were prepared in accordamite accounting principles generally accepted hie tUnited States
America and include amounts that are based on neamagt’s best judgments and estimates.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors ismgmsed of three members, none of whom is an emgloyehe
Company. This Committee is responsible for (i) seeing the financial reporting process and the @wa®gof internal contr
and (ii) monitoring the independence and perforreaotthe Compang’ independent registered public accounting firm
internal auditors. The Committee is also respossfbl maintaining direct channels of communicatanong the Board
Directors, management, and both the independersteegd public accounting firm and the internalitard.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, our independent regitpublic accounting firm, is engaged to perforudits of ou
consolidated financial statements. These audits pgrformed in accordance with the standards of Rablic Compan
Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Ouripendent registered public accounting firm wasmyiwerestricted access
all financial records and related data, includinigutes of all meetings of the Board of Directorsl @ommittees of the Boa
The Company believes that all representations ntadhe independent registered public accounting filuring their audi
were valid and appropriate.

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Finangdal Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and taiaimg adequate internal control over financigbaing for the
Company. In order to evaluate the effectivenessiteirnal control over financial reporting, as ragdi by Section 404 of t
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, management has cordl@cteassessment, including testing, of the Comgaimgérnal contre
over financial reporting, using the criteria indmal Control —ntegrated Framework, issued by the Committee @hSpring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“COSOviawaork”).

Internal control over financial reporting refers toe process, designed under the supervision amiicipation o
management including our Chief Executive Officed aur Chief Financial Officer, to provide reasorgibut not absolut
assurance regarding the reliability of financigbaging and the preparation of financial statemdatsexternal purposes
accordance with accounting principles generallyepted in the United States of America and inclyatdgicies and procedur
that, among other things, provide reasonable asserdhat assets are safeguarded and that transaaie executed
accordance with managementauthorization and are properly recorded to pertné preparation of reliable financ
information. Because of its inherent limitationgiternal control over financial reporting may noteyent or dete
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluatibreffectiveness to future periods are subjecth risk that controls mi
become inadequate due to changing conditions eotd¢igree of compliance with the policies or proceslimay deteriorate.

Based on its assessment, management has conchatetie Company maintained effective internal adrtwer financie
reporting as of September 30, 2009, based on tHeQCEramework.

/sl Lon R. Greenberg
Chief Executive Office

/sl Peter Kelly
Chief Financial Officel

/sl Davinder S. Athwal
Chief Accounting Office
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of U®tgdration:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated bzdasheets and the related consolidated stateméniscame
stockholders’equity and cash flows present fairly, in all madkriespects, the financial position of UGI Corpmnatand it:
subsidiaries at September 30, 2009 and 2008, ancktults of their operations and their cash flawsach of the three years
the period ended September 30, 2009 in conformity \ccounting principles generally accepted in tted States
America. In addition, in our opinion, the financg&htement schedules listed in the index appeamagr Item 15 (a)(2) prest
fairly, in all material respects, the informatiogt $orth therein when read in conjunction with tkeéted consolidated financ
statements. Also in our opinion, the Company maiet in all material respects, effective intereahtrol over financi:
reporting as of September 30, 2009 based on eriestablished in Internal Control 4ategrated Framework issued by
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Tread®ommission (COSO). The Compasmyhanagement is responsible
these financial statements and financial staterseimedules, for maintaining effective internal cohtver financial reportini
and for its assessment of the effectiveness ofriatecontrol over financial reporting included inakbhgemens Report o
Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our r@sgibility is to express opinions on these finahsiatements, on the financ
statement schedules and the Compsuirgternal control over financial reporting basedaur integrated audits. We condut
our audits in accordance with the standards oPtific Company Accounting Oversight Board (Unitedt&s). Those standa
require that we plan and perform the audits to inbteasonable assurance about whether the finasicitdments are free
material misstatement and whether effective infezoatrol over financial reporting was maintainedall material respects. C
audits of the financial statements included exanginon a test basis, evidence supporting the armcamd disclosures in t
financial statements, assessing the accountingiptas used and significant estimates made by neamagt, and evaluating 1
overall financial statement presentation. Our ausfit internal control over financial reporting indied obtaining &
understanding of internal control over financigbaogting, assessing the risk that a material weakmassts, and testing a
evaluating the design and operating effectivendsimternal control based on the assessed risk. &ugiits also include
performing such other procedures as we consideesgssary in the circumstances. We believe thataodits provide
reasonable basis for our opinions.

As discussed in Note 3 to the consolidated findrat@ements, the Company has adopted new accgugtildance fc
uncertain tax positions effective October 1, 2007.

A companys internal control over financial reporting is @@ess designed to provide reasonable assuranaeliregshe
reliability of financial reporting and the prepaoat of financial statements for external purposesdécordance with genere
accepted accounting principles. A companiyternal control over financial reporting inclsdose policies and procedures
(i) pertain to the maintenance of records thate@sonable detail, accurately and fairly refleet ttansactions and dispositis
of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reastmabsurance that transactions are recorded assaggdo permit preparati
of financial statements in accordance with gengradicepted accounting principles, and that receipts expenditures of t
company are being made only in accordance withoaiztitions of management and directors of the cawppand (iii) provids
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or tidetlction of unauthorized acquisition, use, opakstion of the company’
assets that could have a material effect on ttaniial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtyver financial reporting may not prevent or detamisstatements. Als
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness titufe periods are subject to the risk that contmésy become inadequ
because of changes in conditions, or that the degfreompliance with the policies or procedures meteriorate.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
November 20, 200
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UGI CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(Millions of dollars)

September 3(
2009 2008
ASSETS
Current assetl
Cash and cash equivalel $ 280.1 $ 2452
Restricted cas 7.C 70.2
Accounts receivable (less allowances for doubttabants of $38.3 and $40.8,
respectively’ 405.¢ 488.(
Accrued utility revenue 21.C 20.t
Inventories 363.2 400.¢
Deferred income taxe 34.t 27.5
Utility regulatory asset 19.€ 16.C
Derivative financial instrumen 20.: 12.7
Prepaid expenses and other current a: 33.5 57.3
Total current asse 1,185.: 1,338.¢
Property, plant and equipme
Utilities 2,056.¢ 1,669.(
Non-utility 2,635.! 2,295.¢
4,692. 3,964.¢
Accumulated depreciation and amortizat (1,788.9) (1,515.)
Net property, plant, and equipme 2,903.¢ 2,449
Goodwill 1,582.: 1,489.
Intangible assets, n 165.t 155.C
Other asset 206.1 252.%
Total asset $ 6,042.¢ $ 5,685.(
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities
Current maturities of lor-term debt $ 94.t $ 81.¢
Bank loans 163.1 136.4
Accounts payabl 334.¢ 461.¢
Employee compensation and benefits acc 89.¢ 76.2
Deposits and advanc 159.¢ 164.¢
Derivative financial instrumen 37.t 103.2
Other current liabilitie: 217.¢ 159.¢
Total current liabilities 1,097.: 1,184.:
Debt and other liabilitie
Long-term debt 2,038.¢ 1,987.:
Deferred income taxe 504.¢ 491.(
Deferred investment tax cred 5.7 6.C
Other noncurrent liabilitie 579.% 439.¢
Total liabilities 4,225.¢ 4,108.:
Commitments and contingencies (note
Minority interests, principally in AmeriGas Partsi 225.¢ 159.2
Common stockholde’ equity
Common Stock, without par value (authorized — 300,000 shares; issued —
115,261,294 and 115,247,694 shares, respecti 875.¢ 858.:
Retained earning 804.: 630.¢
Accumulated other comprehensive | (38.9 (15.2)

1,641.( 1,474.(
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Treasury stock, at co g49.6§0ree“i"9 Data(56 7)
Total common stockholde’ equity 1,501 . 298198 :félﬂfi',
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity $ 6,042.¢ $ 5,685.(

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsistents.
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UGI CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(Millions of dollars, except per share amounts)

Year Ended September &

2009 2008 2007
Revenue!
Utilities $ 1,379 $ 1277 $ 1,166.¢
Non-utility and other 4,358.: 5,370. 4,310..
5,737.¢ 6,648.. 5,476.¢
Costs and Expens
Cost of sales (excluding depreciation shown beli
Utilities 944.¢ 915. 809.2
Non-utility and othel 2,725.¢ 3,829.: 2,921.¢
Operating and administrative expen 1,220.( 1,157.: 1,055.¢
Utility taxes other than income tax 16.€ 18.: 17.7
Depreciatior 180.2 163.¢ 150.€
Amortization 20.7 20.€ 18.€
Other income, ne (55.9 (41.6) (77.9)
5,052.¢ 6,063.( 4,895.¢
Operating Incom 685.3 585.2 581.:
Loss from equity investet (3.2 (2.9 (3.9
Interest expens (141.7) (142.5) (139.6)
Income before Income Taxes and Minority Inter 541.1 439.¢ 437.¢
Income taxe: (159.7) (134.%) (126.7%)
Minority interests, principally in AmeriGas Partsi (123.5) (89.9) (106.9)
Net Income $ 258.t $ 215t $ 2042
Earnings Per Common Sha
Basic $ 2.3¢€ $ 2.01 $ 1.92
Diluted $ 2.3€ $ 1.9¢ $ 1.8¢
Average common shares outstanding (millio
Basic 108.52! 107.39¢ 106.45:
Diluted 109.33¢ 108.52: 107.94:

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsistents.
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UGI CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Millions of dollars)

Year Ended September &

2009 2008 2007
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income $ 258.t $ 215k $ 204.:
Reconcile to net cash provided by operating a@ivi
Depreciation and amortizatic 200.¢ 184.¢ 169.2
Gains on sales of Partnership storage facil (39.9 — (46.7)
Minority interests principally in AmeriGas Partnt 123t 89.¢ 106.¢
Deferred income taxes, n 26.¢ (0.9 27.1
Provision for uncollectible accour 34.1 37.1 26.7
Stoclk-based compensation expel 11.4 11.¢ 9.1
Net change in settled accumulated other comprebheirstome (21.0 (3.9 21.t
Other, ne 17.4 (8.6) (0.3
Net change in
Accounts receivable and accrued utility rever 79.5 (22.2) (80.5)
Inventories 67.C (42.9) (9.2
Utility deferred fuel costs, net of changes in utied derivative 10.c 21.t (25.7)
Accounts payabl (146.7) (6.0 30.:
Other current asse 30.: (28.5) 4.€
Other current liabilitie: 12.2 16.€ 18.2
Net cash provided by operating activit 665.( 464.. 456.2
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Expenditures for property, plant and equipn (301.%) (232.7) (223.])
Acquisitions of businesses, net of cash acqt (322.¢ 1.3 (78.9)
Net (costs of) proceeds from disposals of as (0.2) 11.€ 3.2
Net proceeds from sales of Partnership LPG stdiagities 42.4 — 49.C
PG Energy acquisition working capital adjustm — — 23.7
Decrease (increase) in restricted ¢ 63.2 (57.5) 14
Other, ne (1.2 (10.5) 0.8
Net cash used by investing activit (519.9 (289.5) (223.9)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividends on UGI Common Stoc (85.]) (80.9) (76.9)
Distributions on AmeriGas Partners publicly heldh@oon Units (90.9 (80.9) (85.0
Issuances of del 118.( 34.C 20.C
Repayments of del (82.2) (15.9) (30.6)
Increase (decrease) in bank lo 13.1 (60.9) (27.€)
Issuances of UGI Common Sto 10.¢ 20.€ 16.4
Other 1.2 3.4 5.1
Net cash used by financing activiti (114.6) (180.7) (178.5)
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CAS 4.4 (1.4) 11.7
Cash and cash equivalents increase (decr $ 34¢ % 6.6 $ 65.€
Cash and cash equivaler
End of yeal $ 280.1 $ 2452 $ 251.¢
Beginning of yea 245.2 251.¢ 186.2
Increase (decreas $ 34¢ % 6.6 $ 65.€

SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Cash paid for
Interest $ 136.2 $ 144.¢
Income taxe: $ 130.Z $ 134.¢

1243
93.t

8 &H
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UGI CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS'’ EQUITY
(Millions of dollars, except per share amounts)

Accumulatec
Other

Common Retainec Comprehensiv Treasury
Stock Earnings Income (Loss Stock Total

Balance September 30, 20 $ 807.t $ 370.C $ B8 $ (74.7) 1,099.¢
Net income 204.: 204.:
Net loss on derivative instruments (net of tax 663 (12.3) (12.7)
Reclassification of net losses on derivative insiats (net

of tax of $20.8 30.1 30.1
Foreign currency translation adjustments (net »fofa$9.4) 53.7 53.7
Comprehensive incorr 204.: 72.7 277.C
Adjustment to initially apply new accounting fornsgon anc

postretirement benefits (net of tax of $7 (11.2) (11.2
Cash dividends on Common Stock ($0.723 per sl (76.8) (76.¢)
Common Stock issue

Employee and director pla 10.2 8.5 18.7

Dividend reinvestment pla 1.€ 0.7 2.3
Excess tax benefits realized on eg-based compensatic 3.7 3.7
Stoclk-based compensation expel 8.€ 8.6
Balance September 30, 20 831.¢ 497.F 57.7 (64.9) 1,321.¢
Net income 215.t 215t
Cumulative effect from initial adoption of new acering

for uncertain tax positior (2.2 (2.2
Net loss on derivative instruments (net of tax 21 $) (34.9) (34.9
Reclassification of net gains on derivative instemts (net o

tax of $2.1) (3.9 (3.1
Benefit plans, principally actuarial losses (netaf of $20.3 (28.5) (28.5)
Reclassifications of benefit plans actuarial loss®s prior

service costs (net of tax of $0. 0.2 0.2
Foreign currency translation adjustments (net »fofa$1.2) (6.€) (6.€)
Comprehensive incorr 214.: (72.9) 141.¢
Cash dividends on Common Stock ($0.755 per sl (80.9) (80.9)
Common Stock issue

Employee and director pla 11.2 8.1 19.:

Dividend reinvestment pla 1.7 0.5 2.2
Excess tax benefits realized on eg-based compensatic 34 34
Stocl-based compensation expel 10.4 10.4
Balance September 30, 20 858.< 630.¢ (15.2) (56.%) 1,417
Net income 258.t 258.t
Net loss on derivative instruments (net of tax 82 3) (127.9) (127.9)
Reclassification of net losses on derivative insteats (net

of tax of $78.6 116.2 116.2
Benefit plans, principally actuarial losses (netaf of $31.1 (44.9) (44.9)
Reclassifications of benefit plans actuarial loss®s prior

service costs (net of tax of $1. 2.3 2.3
Foreign currency translation adjustments (net »fofa$8.4) 29.t 29.F
Comprehensive incorr 258.F (23.7) 234.¢
Cash dividends on Common Stock ($0.785 per sl (85.1) (85.7)
Common Stock issue

Employee and director pla 2.¢ 5.9 8.8

Dividend reinvestment pla 1.€ 0.8 24
Excess tax benefits realized on eg-based compensatic 2.¢ 2.8
Stocl-based compensation expel 9.¢ 9.9
Balance September 30, 20 $ 875.t $ 804.: $ (389 $ (49.6) 1,591.c

See accompanying notes to consolidated financ#tsients.
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UGI Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Millions of dollars and euros, except per shar@ants and where indicated otherwise)

Index to Notes

Note 1 — Nature of Operations

Note 2 — Significant Accounting Policies

Note 3 — Accounting Changes

Note 4 — Acquisitions and Dispositions

Note 5 — Debt

Note 6 — Income Taxes

Note 7 — Employee Retirement Plans

Note 8 — Utility Regulatory Assets and Liabilitiesand Regulatory Matters
Note 9 — Inventories

Note 10 — Property, Plant and Equipment

Note 11 — Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Note 12 — Series Preferred Stock

Note 13 — Common Stock and Equity-Based Compensatio

Note 14 — Partnership Distributions

Note 15 — Commitments and Contingencies

Note 16 — Fair Value Measurements

Note 17 — Disclosures About Derivative Instrumentsiedging Activities and Other Financial Instruments
Note 18 — Energy Services Accounts Receivable Seitization Facility
Note 19 — Other Income, Net

Note 20 — Quarterly Data (unaudited)

Note 21 — Segment Information

Note 1— Nature of Operations

UGI Corporation (“UGI"), incorporated in Pennsylvania in 1991, is a holdaognpany that, through subsidiaries
affiliates, distributes and markets energy produaatd related services. In the United States, we amah operate (1) a ret
propane marketing and distribution business; (R)nahgas and electric distribution utilities; @gctricity generation facilitie
and (4) energy marketing and services businessgsrnationally, we market and distribute propanel ather liquefie
petroleum gases (“LPG'h France, central and eastern Europe and Chinaréfée to UGI and its consolidated subsidie
collectively as “the Company” or “we.”

We conduct a domestic propane marketing and digiob business through AmeriGas Partners, L.AmMEgriGas
Partners”), a publicly traded limited partnershapd its principal operating subsidiaries AmeriGaspRne, L.P. (AmeriGa:
OLP") and AmeriGas OLP’s subsidiary, AmeriGas Ea@mpane, L.P. (together with AmeriGas OLP, tl@pératin
Partnerships”). AmeriGas Partners and the Operdadnerships are Delaware limited partnerships!’ §@holly owne:
second-tier subsidiary AmeriGas Propane, Inc. ({@eneral Partner’serves as the general partner of AmeriGas Partre
AmeriGas OLP. We refer to AmeriGas Partners andutssidiaries together as “the Partnerslaipd the General Partner anc
subsidiaries, including the Partnership, as “Amas®ropane.At September 30, 2009, the General Partner helb dnere
partner interest and 42.9% limited partner inteiregtmeriGas Partners, and an effective 44.4% osliprinterest in AmeriGi
OLP. Our limited partnership interest in AmeriGaartRers comprises 24,691,209 AmeriGas Partners @umbnits
(“Common Units"). The remaining 56.1% interest in AmeriGas Partnemmprises 32,355,179 Common Units held by
general public as limited partner interests.

Our wholly owned subsidiary UGI Enterprises, If&Enterprises”)through subsidiaries (1) conducts an LPG distrdn
business in France (“Antargaz”); (2) conducts arGL#istribution business in central and eastern pir@’Flaga”); anc
(3) participates in an LPG joinenture business in the Nantong region of China.r&¥er to our foreign operations collectiv
as “International PropaneThrough other subsidiaries, Enterprises also casdac energy marketing and services bus
primarily in the Mid-Atlantic region of the Unite8tates (collectively, “Energy Services”). Energynéees’ wholly ownec
subsidiary, UGI Development Company (“UGID”), owingerests in electricity generation facilities lt®@in Pennsylvania.
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UGI Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Millions of dollars and euros, except per shar@ants and where indicated otherwise)

Our natural gas and electric distribution utilitysinesses are conducted through our wholly owndxidiary UG
Utilities, Inc. (“UGI Utilities”) and its subsidig@s UGI Penn Natural Gas, Inc. (“PNGand UGI Central Penn Gas, |
(“CPG"). UGI Utilities, PNG and CPG own and operate natgad distribution utilities in eastern, northeastam centr:
Pennsylvania. UGI Utilities also owns and operageselectric distribution utility in northeastern ridgylvania (Electric
Utility”). UGI Utilities’ natural gas distributionutility is referred to as “UGI Gas;” PNG’'natural gas distribution utility
referred to as “PNG Gas;” and CPG'’s natural gasiligion utility is referred to as “CPG GadJGI Gas, PNG Gas and C|
Gas are collectively referred to as “Gas UtilityGas Utility is subject to regulation by the Penmayia Public Utility
Commission (“PUC")and the Maryland Public Service Commission, andtile Utility is subject to regulation by the PL
Gas Utility and Electric Utility are collectiveleferred to as “Utilities.”

Note 2— Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

Our consolidated financial statements are preparegccordance with accounting principles generaltgepted in tf
United States of America (“GAAP").

The preparation of financial statements in accordamith GAAP requires management to make estinatdsassumptiol
that affect the reported amounts of assets, ltads|i revenue, expenses and costs. These estiaratémsed on managemeant’
knowledge of current events, historical experieand various other assumptions that are believdzbtoeasonable under
circumstances. Accordingly, actual results may ifferént from these estimates and assumptions.

Certain prior-year amounts have been reclassifiembhform to the current year presentation.
Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include tmants of UGI and its controlled subsidiary comparwhich, exce|
for the Partnership, are majority owned. We refioetgeneral public’s interests in the Partnershiph @ther partiesinterests i
consolidated but less than 100% owned subsidiasesiinority interests. We eliminate all significamtercompany accour
and transactions when we consolidate. Investmentsiginess entities in which we do not have contvat have significa
influence over operating or financial policies, aeounted for under the equity method of accognéind our proportions
share of income or loss is recorded in loss fromitggnvestees on the Consolidated Statements afne. Undistributed n
earnings of our equity investees included in cadatéd retained earnings were not material at Sspde 30, 2009. Investme
in business entities that are not publicly traded &here we hold less than 20% of voting rightsaeounted for using the ¢
method. Such investments are recorded in othetsaasd totaled $55.0 and $53.2 at September 3®, &9 2008, respective

On January 29, 2009, Flaga purchased for cash demasion the 50% equity interest in ZentraleuroggGLHolding:
GmbH (“ZLH") it did not already own from its jointenture partner, Progas GmbH & Co. KG. As a reshé, operations
ZLH are consolidated with those of the Company leigig in January 2009.

Effects of Regulation

UGI Utilities accounts for the financial effectsrefgulation in accordance with the Financial AcamgStandards Boargl’
(“FASB’s") guidance on regulated entities whose rates argmissito recover the costs of providing serviceadoordance wit
this guidance, incurred costs that would othenbiseeharged to expense are capitalized and recersleggulatory assets wt
it is probable that the incurred costs will be nemred in rates in the future. Similarly, we recagniegulatory liabilities when
is probable that regulators will require customefiunds through future rates or when revenue isct@t from customers {
expenditures that have not yet been incurred. Géperegulatory assets are amortized into expemgkregulatory liabilitie
are amortized into income over the period authdrizgthe regulator.

For additional information regarding the effectsate-regulation on our utility operations, seed\®t
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UGI Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Millions of dollars and euros, except per shar@ants and where indicated otherwise)

Fair Value Measurements

We apply fair value measurements to certain assetdiabilities, principally commodity, foreign eency and interest re
derivative instruments. We adopted new accountiniglamce with respect to determining fair value reaments effecti
October 1, 2008. The new guidance defines fairevals the price that would be received to sell aetagr paid to transfel
liability (an exit price) in an orderly transactibetween market participants at the measuremeet @iae new guidance clarif
that fair value should be based upon assumptiatsnlarket participants would use when pricing aseter liability, includin
assumptions about risk and risks inherent in valnatechniques and inputs to valuations. This idekinot only the cre:
standing of counterparties and credit enhancentaritslso the impact of our own nonperformance askour liabilities. Th
new guidance requires fair value measurements donas that the transaction occurs in the principatket for the asset
liability or in the absence of a principal markitie most advantageous market for the asset ofityaithe market for which tt
reporting entity would be able to maximize the amtaeceived or minimize the amount paid). We evialuhe need for cret
adjustments to our derivative instrument fair valireaccordance with the requirements noted atféweh adjustments were
material to the fair values of our derivative instrents.

We use the following fair value hierarchy, whichaopitizes the inputs to valuation techniques usedneasure fair vall
into three broad levels:

. Level 1 —Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets fenfital assets and liabilities that we have thétalo acces
at the measurement date. Instruments categorizieelviel 1 consist of our exchar-traded commodity futures contrac

. Level 2 —Inputs other than quoted prices included within ¢lel that are either directly or indirectly obsdrleafor the
asset or liability, including quoted prices for dan assets or liabilities in active markets, qubf@ices for identical «
similar assets or liabilities in inactive markatguts other than quoted prices that are observablthe asset or liabilit
and inputs that are derived from observable matkéd by correlation or other means. Instrumentsgmaized in Level
include nonexchange traded derivatives such as over the cocatemodity price swap and option contracts, irgeratt
swaps and interest rate protection agreementsjgforeurrency forward contracts and financial traizsion right
(“FTR<").

. Level 3 —Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability idihg situations where there is little, if any, ketractivity fol
the asset or liability. We did not have any defixafinancial instruments categorized as Level Segptember 30, 200

The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priotityquoted prices in active markets (Level 1) amel lowest priority t
unobservable data (Level 3). In some cases, thetdnp measure fair value might fall into differdavels of the fair valt
hierarchy. The lowest level input that is signific&o a fair value measurement in its entirety deiees the applicable level
the fair value hierarchy. Assessing the signifiean€ a particular input to the fair value measunetrie its entirety require
judgment, considering factors specific to the assdiability. The adoption of the new fair valueidance effective October
2008 did not have a material impact on the findnstatements. See Note 16 for additional informatan fair valu
measurements.

Derivative | nstruments

We account for derivative instruments and hedgictiviéies in accordance with guidance provided bg FASB whicl
requires that all derivative instruments be recogthias either assets or liabilities and measuréalratalue. The accounting 1
changes in fair value depends upon the purposeeofi¢rivative instrument and whether it is desigdatnd qualifies for hed
accounting.

Substantially all of our derivative financial instnents are designated and qualify as cash flowdsdg net investme
hedges or, in the case of natural gas derivativenfiial instruments used by Gas Utility, are inelidh deferred fuel costs
accordance with FASB guidance regarding accourfingateregulated entities. For cash flow hedges, changéei fair valu
of the derivative financial instruments are recorde accumulated other comprehensive income (“AQCIS the exter
effective at offsetting changes in the hedged itantjl earnings are affected by the hedged item. di¢eontinue cash flo
hedge accounting if the occurrence of the foredastnsaction is determined to be no longer prahabhins and losses on
investment hedges are included in AOCI until suokeifjn operations are liquidated. Certain of ourivdg¢ive financia
instruments, although generally effective as heddesiot qualify for hedge accounting treatmentai@jes in the fair values
these derivative instruments are reflected in nebine. Cash flows from derivative financial instents, other than r
investment hedges, are included in cash flows foperating activities. Cash flows from net investineedges are included
cash flows from investing activities.
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For a more detailed description of the derivativiriuments we use, our accounting for derivativas objectives for usir
them and related supplemental information requineGAAP, see Note 17.

Foreign Currency Trandation

Balance sheets of international subsidiaries amdnmestments in international LPG joint ventures ianslated into U.
dollars using the exchange rate at the balance slaée Income statements and equity investeetseare translated into U
dollars using an average exchange rate for eaatieg period. Where the local currency is the ftiowal currency, translatic
adjustments are recorded in other comprehensivariac Where the local currency is not the functianarency, translatic
adjustments are recorded in net income.

Revenue Recognition

Revenues from the sale of LPG are recognized jdtigi upon delivery. Energy Services records reesnwhen ener
products are delivered or services are providenisbomers. Revenues from the sale of appliancesgugment are recogniz
at the later of sale or installation. Revenues frepair or maintenance services are recognized apmpletion of services.

UGI Utilities’ revenues are recognized as natural gas and eigctie delivered and include estimated amount
distribution service and commaodities rendered laithilled at the end of each month. We reflectithpact of Gas Utility an
Electric Utility rate increases or decreases atithe they become effective.

We present revenuelated taxes collected from customers and remitbethxing authorities, principally sales and
taxes, on a net basis. Electric Utility gross rptsetaxes are included in total revenues in acem&avith regulatory practice.

LPG Delivery Expenses

Expenses associated with the delivery of LPG tdatosrs of the Partnership and our Internationap&ne operatior
(including expenses of delivery personnel, vehigpair and maintenance and general liability expghsire classified
operating and administrative expenses on the Cioladetl Statements of Income. Depreciation expessec#ted with tt
Partnership and International Propane deliveryatekiis classified in depreciation on the Constdidé&statements of Income.

Income Taxes

AmeriGas Partners and the Operating Partnershipsatr directly subject to federal income taxestdad, their taxab
income or loss is allocated to the individual partn We record income taxes on (1) our share ofPwnershis curren
taxable income or loss and (2) the differences eetwthe book and tax basis of our investment inRbgnership. Tt
Operating Partnerships have subsidiaries whichat@ean corporate form and are directly subjectedefal and state incol
taxes. Legislation in certain states allows foratan of partnershipshcome and the accompanying financial statemefitsct
state income taxes resulting from such legislation.

Gas Utility and Electric Utility record deferredcmme taxes in the Consolidated Statements of Inaesdting from th
use of accelerated tax depreciation methods baped amounts recognized for ratemaking purposesy Hiso record
deferred income tax liability for tax benefits thee flowed through to ratepayers when temporaffgrdinces originate al
record a regulatory income tax asset for the prigbmicrease in future revenues that will result witge temporary differenc
reverse.

We are amortizing deferred investment tax creditated to UGI Utilities’plant additions over the service lives of
related property. UGI Utilities reduces its defdriecome tax liability for the future tax benefitsat will occur when investme
tax credits, which are not taxable, are amortix§¥d. also reduce the regulatory income tax assethfoprobable reduction
future revenues that will result when such defeimedstment tax credits amortize.
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We record interest on tax deficiencies and incoaxepenalties in income taxes on the ConsolidatateBtents of Incom
For Fiscal 2009 and Fiscal 2008, $(0.4) and $@&pectively, of interest (income) expense was naéiced in income taxes
the Consolidated Statements of Income.

Earnings Per Common Share

Basic earnings per share reflect the weiglaeerage number of common shares outstanding. Dileéenings per she
include the effects of dilutive stock options anohtnon stock awards. In the following table, we praisshares used
computing basic and diluted earnings per shar€&ifaral 2009, Fiscal 2008 and Fiscal 2007:

2009 2008 2007
(Millions of shares’
Average common shares outstanding for basic cortipn! 108.52: 107.39¢ 106.45:
Incremental shares issuable for stock options anthwon stock awarc 0.81¢ 1.12¢ 1.49(
Average common shares outstanding for diluted cdatioun 109.33¢ 108.52: 107.94:

Comprehensive | ncome

Comprehensive income comprises net income and abewprehensive income (loss). Other comprehensigenie
(loss) principally results from gains and lossesdenivative instruments qualifying as cash flow f¢es| actuarial gains a
losses on postretirement benefit plans subsegog¢hetadoption of FASB guidance regarding empldyaesounting for define
benefit pension and postretirement plans effe@eptember 30, 2007, and foreign currency transladjustments. Fiscal 20
other comprehensive income also includes an #dtecharge of $11.2 associated with the initialgidm of the new guidan
for employers accounting for defined benefit pensiad postretirement plans (see “Accounting Chdngesw).

The components of AOCI at September 30, 2009 af8 &fllow:

Foreign
Derivative Currency
Postretiremetl Instruments Ne Translation
Benefit Plan: Losses Adjustment Total
Balance, September 30, 20 $ 815 $ (53.€) $ 96.z $ (38.9
Balance, September 30, 20 $ (399 $ (425 % 66.7 $ (15.2)

Cash and Cash Equivalents
All highly liquid investments with maturities ofe months or less when purchased are classifiedshsequivalents.
Restricted Cash

Restricted cash represents those cash balances inommodityfutures brokerage accounts which are restricteth
withdrawal.

Inventories

Our inventories are stated at the lower of cogharket. We determine cost using an average costaudor natural gz
propane and other LPG; specific identificationdppliances; and the first-in, first-out (“FIFOf)ethod for all other inventorie
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Property, Plant and Equipment and Related Depreciation

We record property, plant and equipment at origic@dt. The amounts assigned to property, plantendpment c¢
acquired businesses are based upon estimatedifa@ at date of acquisition.

We record depreciation expense on non-utility ptard equipment on a straigime basis over estimated economic us
lives generally ranging from 15 to 40 years forldhnigs and improvements; 7 to 40 years for storage customer tanks a
cylinders; and 2 to 12 years for vehicles, equipmnand office furniture and fixtures. Costs to alkPartnership and Antargaz-
owned tanks, net of amounts billed to customers, Gapitalized and amortized over the estimatedogedf benefit nc
exceeding ten years.

We record depreciation expense for Utilities’ plamd equipment on a straigiie method over the estimated avel
remaining lives of the various classes of its dejptde property. Depreciation expense as a pergernté the related avere
depreciable base for Gas Utility was 2.4% in Fi09 and Fiscal 2008, and 2.7% in Fiscal 2007.r&@ation expense a:
percentage of the related average depreciablefba&tectric Utility was 2.9% in Fiscal 2009, 2.6%Fiscal 2008 and 2.7%
Fiscal 2007. When Utilities retire depreciableitytiplant and equipment, we charge the originak,cost of removal costs a
salvage value, to accumulated depreciation fonfifel accounting purposes.

We include in property, plant and equipment costoaiated with computer software we develop orinldtar use in oL
businesses. We amortize computer software cosgssiraightiine basis over expected periods of benefit noeeging fiftee
years once the installed software is ready foniesnded use

No depreciation expense is included in cost ofssaéhe Consolidated Statements of Income.
Goodwill and I ntangible Assets

In accordance with GAAP relating to goodwill andhét intangibles, we amortize intangible assets ¢eir estimate
useful lives unless we determine their lives toirmefinite. Goodwill and other intangible assetshnindefinite lives are n
amortized but are subject to tests for impairmeétegast annually. We perform impairment tests nforquently than annually
events or circumstances indicate that the valugoofiwill or intangible assets with indefinite livesight be impaired. Whe
performing our impairment tests, we use quoted etgpkices or, in the absence of quoted market gridiscounted estimates
future cash flows. No provisions for goodwill ohet intangible asset impairments were recordedhdufiscal 2009, Fisc
2008 or Fiscal 2007.

No amortization expense is included in cost ofsalehe Consolidated Statements of Income.
I mpairment of Long-Lived Assets

We evaluate the impairment of lotiged assets whenever events or changes in ciramnoss indicate that the carry
amount of such assets may not be recoverable. \Alaate recoverability based upon undiscounted éutaish flows expect
to be generated by such assets. No provisionsiipairments were recorded during Fiscal 2009, Fi2@@B or Fiscal 2007.

Refundable Tank and Cylinder Deposits

Included in “Other noncurrent liabilitiesdn our Consolidated Balance Sheets are customdr degiosits on Antarg
owned tanks and cylinders of $230.3 and $223.4eate®nber 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively. Depasésrefundable
customers when the tanks or cylinders are retuimadcordance with contract terms.

Environmental Matters
We are subject to environmental laws and regulatiotended to mitigate or remove the effect of pgstrations ar

improve or maintain the quality of the environmehtese laws and regulations require the removatimedy of the effect «
the environment of the disposal or release of oespecified hazardous substances at current orefiooperating sites.
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Environmental reserves are accrued when assessinditiate that it is probable that a liability Hasen incurred and
amount can reasonably be estimated. Amounts redaadesnvironmental liabilities on the balance sheepresent our be
estimate of costs expected to be incurred or, ibest estimate can be made, the minimum liabiliyoaiated with a range
expected environmental investigation and remediatimsts. Our estimated liability for environmentahtamination is reduc
to reflect anticipated participation of other resgible parties but is not reduced for possible veppfrom insurance carriers.
those instances for which the amount and timingash payments associated with environmental irgegt&tin and cleanup ¢
reliably determinable, we discount such liabilittesreflect the time value of money. We intend twsue recovery of incurr
costs through all appropriate means, including letguy relief. UGI Gas is permitted to amortizeramoval costs sitepecific
environmental investigation and remediation casts,of related thirgearty payments, associated with Pennsylvania dit€d
Gas is currently permitted to include in ratesptiyh future base rate proceedings, a figar average of such prudel
incurred remediation costs. CPG Gas and PNG Gas ba® revenues include amounts for estimated @mwiente
investigation and remediation costs. For furthésrimation, see Note 15.

Employee Retirement Plans

We use a market-related value of plan assets amxk@ected londerm rate of return to determine the expected metw
assets of our pension and other postretiremenspieime marketelated value of plan assets, other than equitgstnaents,
based upon market prices. The market-related vafuequity investments is calculated by rolling fang the prior-yeaf
marketrelated value with contributions, disbursements #rel expected return on plan assets. One thirchefdifferenc
between the expected and the actual value is ttiéedato or subtracted from the expected value teraéne the new market-
related value (see Note 7).

Equity-Based Compensation

All of our equity-based compensation, principallgnrising UGI stock options, grants of UGI stdwksed equit
instruments and grants of AmeriGas Partners edustyuments (together with UGI stock-based equistruments, “Units”)js
measured at fair value on the grant date, date affifination or end of the period, as applicable m@ensation expense
recognized on a straiglite basis over the requisite service period. Ddpenupon the settlement terms of the awards,rad
portion of the fair value of equitipased awards may be presented as a liability egaiy in our Consolidated Balance She
Equity-based compensation costs associated with the patitynit awards classified as equity are measbwaeskd upon the
estimated fair value on the date of grant or modtfon. Equitybased compensation costs associated with the parfitJni
awards classified as liabilities are measured bagped their estimated fair value at the grant daig remeasured as of the
of each period.

We have calculated a tax windfall pool using thergtut method. We record deferred tax assets fardsvthat we expe
will result in deductions on our income tax retyrbased on the amount of compensation cost recedj@ind the statutory t
rate in the jurisdiction in which we will receivedaduction. Differences between the deferred tagtagecognized for financ
reporting purposes and the actual tax benefit vededn the income tax return are recorded in Com8touok (if the tax bene
exceeds the deferred tax asset) or in the Consetlddtatements of Income (if the deferred tax asesteds the tax benefit ¢
no tax windfall pool exists from previous awards).

For additional information on our equity-based cemgation plans and related disclosures, see Note 13
Subsequent Events

Management has evaluated the impact of subsequentsethrough November 20, 2009, the date the €iafustatemen
were filed with the U.S. Securities and Exchangen@dission, and the effects of such evaluation haenlreflected in tt

financial statements and related disclosures.

Note 3— Accounting Changes

Adoption of New Accounting Standards

FASB Accounting Standards Codification. In June 2009, the FASB issued guidance identifyirggsources of accounti
principles and the framework for selecting prinegplsed in the preparation of financial statemieyptsongovernmental entiti
in accordance with GAAP. The guidance has estadfisthe FASB Accounting Standards Codification (“@iodtion”) as th
source of such authoritative accounting principléee identification of the Codification as the smupf authoritative accounti
principles does not change existing GAAP. The Gadlifon is effective for all financial statemenssued after September
20009.
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Subsequent Events. On June 30, 2009, we adopted accounting guidascedsby the FASB in May 2009 on accoun
and disclosure of subsequent events. The adopfitiisoguidance did not change our prior accounpingctice other than
disclose the date through which subsequent eveets evaluated and the basis for that date. Otleer this new disclosul
adoption of this guidance did not have a signifiGgerpact on our consolidated financial statements.

Other-Than-Temporary Impairments. On June 30, 2009, we adopted accounting guidarsgeds by the FASB
April 2009 on the recognition and presentation fecthan temporary impairments. Under this guidanceastess whether
other-thantemporary impairment exists for a debt security,eatity must (1) evaluate the likelihood of liquithgy the dek
security prior to recovering its cost basis andd@grmine if any impairment of the debt securitydlated to credit losses.
addition, the guidance requires enhanced disclesoif®ther-thartemporary impairments on debt and equity securitiethe
financial statements. Recognition and measuremeigiagce for other-thatemporary impairments of equity securities is
amended by this guidance. Adoption of this guidatidenot have a material impact on our consolidéiteghcial statements.

Disclosures about Derivative I nstruments and Hedging Activities. Effective with our disclosures for the quarter ed
March 31, 2009, we adopted accounting guidancedsy the FASB in March 2008 on enhanced discl@sab®ut derivatiy
instruments and hedging activities. The enhancedlaiures provide greater transparency by requiemtties to provid
qualitative disclosures about their objectives atrdtegies for using derivative instruments andntjtative disclosures th
detail the fair value amounts of, and gains anddeson, derivative instruments. Disclosures abmditrisk+elated continge
features of derivative instruments are also requize Note 17 for disclosures required by the gieiadlance.

Fair Value Measurements. On October 1, 2008, we adopted new guidance issydde FASB in September 2006 on
value measurements. The new guidance defines &irey establishes a framework for measuring faluevan generall
accepted accounting principles, and expands disdesabout fair value measurements. In Februar§,20@ FASB issued tv
amendments to this guidance to exclude leases thhemmew fair value guidance and to delay the effealate of the new fe
value guidance until fiscal years beginning aftewd&imber 15, 2008 (Fiscal 2010) for nfimancial assets and liabilities that
recognized or disclosed at fair value in the finahstatements on a nareurring basis. The adoption of the initial phas¢he
fair value guidance did not have a material effattour financial statements and we do not antieiplaat the adoption of t
remainder of the fair value guidance will have aaral effect on our consolidated financial statateeln October 2008, t
FASB issued two additional amendments to the falue guidance which clarify the application of fa@ value measureme
guidance to financial assets in a market that isantive and when the volume and level of actifitythe asset or liability ha
significantly decreased. These further amendmddtaat have an impact on our results of operatmminancial condition. S¢
Notes 2 and 16 for further information on fair v@lmeasurements in accordance with the new guid

Offsetting of Amounts Related to Certain Contracts . On October 1, 2008, we adopted accounting guidéssted by th
FASB in April 2007 which permits companies to offfar value amounts recognized for the right tolaen cash collateral
receivable) or the obligation to return cash celal (a payable) against fair value amounts re@eghfor derivative instrumer
executed with the same counterparty under a masténg agreement. In addition, upon the adopti@mmpanies are permitt
to change their accounting policy to offset or offset fair value amounts recognized for derivaiivetruments under mas
netting arrangements. The new guidance requiresspective application for all periods presente@. hve elected to contir
our policy of reflecting derivative asset or liatyilpositions, as well as cash collateral, on asgrbasis in our Consolida
Balance Sheets. Accordingly, the adoption of the gaidance did not impact our financial statements.

Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Liabilities. On October 1, 2008, we adopted accounting guelégsued b
the FASB in February 2007 by which we may eleatfoort individual financial instruments and certi@ms at fair value wit
changes in fair value reported in earnings. Oncdemthis election is irrevocable for those itemise Bidoption of this guidan
did not impact our financial statements.

Uncertainty in Income Taxes. Effective October 1, 2007, we adopted new intenpeeguidance issued by the FASB
accounting for uncertainty related to income taxdse new guidance provides a comprehensive modethf recognitior
measurement and disclosure in financial statenwniacertain income tax positions that a comparg/thken or expects to te
on a tax return. The cumulative effect from themaim of the new guidance was recorded as a $keedse to the Octobel
2007 retained earnings balance.
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Pension and Postretirement Plans . Effective September 30, 2007, we adopted newwattdw@ guidance issued by
FASB relating to employersiccounting for pension and postretirement benédito The new guidance requires recognitic
an asset or liability in the statement of finangiasition reflecting the funded status of pensiond postretirement benefit pla
such as retiree health and life, with current y&eanges recognized in shareholdeguity. The new guidance did not cha
the existing criteria for measurement of periodenéfit costs, plan assets or benefit obligatiorse hcremental effect of t
initial adoption of the new guidance reduced stot#ters’ equity at September 30, 2007 by $11.2.

New Accounting Standards Not Yet Implemented

Transfers of Financial Assets. In June 2009, the FASB issued new guidance reggaatinounting for transfers of financ
assets. Among other things, the new guidance diteinthe concept of Qualified Special Purpose IEst{{'QSPES”).It alsc
amends previous derecognition guidance. The nedegae is effective for financial asset transfersuotng after the beginnit
of an entitys fiscal year that begins after November 15, 20®8cél 2011). We are currently evaluating the psiovis of th
new guidance.

Enhanced Disclosures of Postretirement Plan Assets. In December 2008, the FASB issued new guidanceiniegunore
detailed disclosures about employers’ postretirdrplam assets, including employensvestment strategies, major categorie
plan assets, concentrations of risk within plaresssand valuation techniques used to measuratheaiue of plan assets. 1
provisions of this guidance are effective for fisgaars ending after December 15, 2009 (Fiscal ROB@cause this ne
guidance relates to disclosure only, it will nopmet the financial statements.

Intangible Asset Useful Lives. In April 2008, the FASB issued new guidance whicheads the factors that should
considered in developing renewal or extension aptions used to determine the useful life of a redmed intangible ass
under GAAP. The intent of the new guidance is tprove the consistency between the useful life cd@gnized intangib
asset under GAAP relating to intangible asset attiog and the period of expected cash flows useddasure the fair value
the asset under GAAP relating to business comioinsitiand other applicable accounting literature. k@ guidance
effective for financial statements issued for flsg@ars beginning after December 15, 2008 (Fis€4dl02 and must be appli
prospectively to intangible assets acquired afterdffective date. We do not believe the new guidanill have a significal
impact on our financial statements.

Business Combinations. In December 2007, the FASB issued new guidancéeratcounting for business combinati
The new guidance applies to all transactions oero#vents in which an entity obtains control of @nemore businesses. 1
new guidance establishes, among other things, iplascand requirements for how the acquirer (19geizes and measures
its financial statements the identifiable assetsuaed, the liabilities assumed, and any noncoliiglinterest in the acquire
(2) recognizes and measures the goodwill acquireda ibusiness combination or gain from a bargainchase; an
(3) determines what information with respect to wsibess combination should be disclosed. The neidagoe applie
prospectively to business combinations for whiahdkquisition date is on or after the first anmeabrting period beginning
or after December 15, 2008 (Fiscal 2010). Amongntioee significant changes in accounting for acdjoiss are (1) transacti
costs will generally be expensed (rather than beinlyded as costs of the acquisition); (2) corgimgies, including continge
consideration, will generally be recorded at faaue with subsequent adjustments recognized inatipes (rather than
adjustments to the purchase price); and (3) deeseasvaluation allowances on acquired deferrecatsets will be recogniz
in operations (rather than decreases in goodv@inerally, the effects of the new guidance willg®gon future acquisitions.

Noncontrolling Interests. Also in December 2007, the FASB issued guidancardigg the accounting for and presente
of noncontrolling interests in consolidated finatcstatements. The guidance is effective for usOatober 1, 2009 (Fisc
2010). The new guidance will significantly chande taccounting and reporting relating to noncoritrgllinterests in
consolidated subsidiary. After adoption, noncoflitigl interests ($225.4 and $159.2 at SeptemberZ®®9 and 200
respectively) will be classified as stockholdeegjuity, a change from its current classificationwsen liabilities an
stockholders®equity. Earnings attributable to noncontrollingeirgsts ($123.5, $89.8 and $106.9 in Fiscal 20G&aF2008 ar
Fiscal 2007, respectively) will be included in metome, although such income will continue to bdudted to measure earni
per share. In addition, changes in a pasemtivnership interest while retaining control wile kaccounted for as eqt
transactions and any retained noncontrolling equitgstments in a former subsidiary will be inityaneasured at fair value.
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Note 4— Acquisitions & Dispositions

On October 1, 2008, UGI Utilities acquired all betoutstanding stock of PPL Gas Utilities Corpamtinow CPG), tt
natural gas distribution utility of PPL Corporati¢tPPL") for cash consideration of $267.6 plus estimatedkimgrcapital o
$35.4 (the “CPG Acquisition”). Immediately afteretitlosing of the CPG Acquisition, CPGwholly owned subsidiary Pe
Fuel Propane, LLC (now named UGI Central Penn RrepalC, “CPP"),its retail propane distributor, sold its asset
AmeriGas OLP for cash consideration of $32 pludnested working capital of $1.6. CPG distributes unat gas t
approximately 76,000 customers in eastern and aemennsylvania, and also distributes natural gaseveral hundre
customers in portions of one Maryland county. CBld propane to customers principally in easternnBglvania. UGI Utilitie:
funded the CPG Acquisition at closing with a conaltion of $120 cash contributed by UGI on Septen®5er2008, procee
from the issuance on October 1, 2008 of $108 pradcamount of 6.375% Senior Notes due 2013 andoappately $75.0 ¢
borrowings under UGI UtilitiesRevolving Credit Agreement. AmeriGas OLP fundedaitgjuisition of the assets of CPP \
borrowings under the AmeriGas Credit Agreement, d@d Utilities used the $33.6 of cash proceeds ftbmsale of the ass
of CPP to AmeriGas OLP to reduce its revolving @ragreement borrowings.

The assets and liabilities resulting from the CP&gjuisition which reflect the final purchase prideation are include
in our Consolidated Balance Sheet at Septembe2(B1). Pursuant to the CPG Acquisition purchaseeageat, the purcha
price was subject to adjustment for the differebetveen the estimated working capital of $35.4 thedactual working capit
as of the closing date agreed to by both UGI #8itand PPL. During Fiscal 2009, UGI Utilities dPEL reached an agreem
on the working capital adjustment pursuant to wHtL paid UGI Utilities $9.7 in cash, includingengst. Also during Fisc
2009, UGI Utilities and AmeriGas OLP reached areagrent on the working capital adjustment associaiddUGI Utilities’
sale of the assets of CPP to AmeriGas OLP purdgoamhich UGI Utilities reimbursed AmeriGas OLP $1.4

The purchase price of the CPG Acquisition, inclgdinansaction fees and expenses and incurred itiebiltotaling
approximately $2.9, has been allocated to the sissejuired and liabilities assumed as follows:

Current assets less current liabilit $ 227
Property, plant and equipme 236.1
Goodwill 36.¢&
Utility regulatory asset 22.t
Other asset 12.t
Noncurrent liabilities (34.9
Total $ 296.2

The goodwill above is primarily the result of sygies between the acquired businesses and oumexigility and propar
businesses. Substantially all of the goodwill idwigible for income tax purposes over a fifteenrymriod.

The operating results of CPG and CPP are includexli consolidated results beginning October 1820Me following
table presents pro forma income statement and basidiluted per share data for Fiscal 2008 akef@PG Acquisition h¢
occurred as of October 1, 2007:

2008
(pro forma)
Revenue: $ 6,867.¢
Net income $ 224.¢
Earnings per shar
Basic $ 2.0¢
Diluted $ 2.07
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The pro forma results of operations reflect CPGid &PP5 historical operating results after giving effextadjustmen
directly attributable to the transaction that axpexted to have a continuing effect. The pro foammunts are not necesss
indicative of the operating results that would haeeurred had the CPG Acquisition been completedfdbe date indicate
nor are they necessarily indicative of future opiegaresults.

On November 13, 2008, AmeriGas OLP sold its 600 0@0el refrigerated abowvground LPG storage facility located
leased property in California. The Partnership rded a $39.9 pre-tax gain on the sale which am@umicluded in Othel
income, net'in the Fiscal 2009 Consolidated Statement of Incofhe gain increased Fiscal 2009 net income by4580$0.1f
per diluted share.

In July 2007, AmeriGas OLP sold its 3.5 million k&rliquefied petroleum gas storage terminal lodatear Phoeni
Arizona to Plains LPG Services, L.P. The Partngrsbcorded a pre-tax gain of $46.1 which amourihétuded in ‘Othel
income, net'in the Fiscal 2007 Consolidated Statement of Incofhe gain increased Fiscal 2007 net income by3582$0.1.
per diluted share.

During Fiscal 2009, in addition to the acquisitiohthe assets of CPP described above, AmeriGas &Rired sever
retail propane distribution businesses for totahceonsideration of $17.9. During Fiscal 2008, Aidas OLP acquired seve
retail propane distribution businesses for totahceonsideration of $2.5. During Fiscal 2007, AiBas OLP acquired seve
retail propane distribution businesses, including tetail distribution businesses of All Star Gawpgoration and Shell G
(LPG) USA and several cylinder refurbishing busseess for total cash consideration of $79.6 andiskeance of 166,2!
Common Units to the General Partner having a faluer of $5.7. Also during Fiscal 2007, UGI Utilgieeceived a $23
working capital adjustment payment associated w#hFiscal 2006 acquisition of Southern Union Compa PG Energ
Division, a natural gas distribution utility locdtén northeastern Pennsylvania (now PNG Gas).
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Note 5— Debt

Long-term debt comprises the following at Septendfer

2009 2008

AmeriGas Propane:
AmeriGas Partners Senior Not

8.875%, due May 201 $ 14.7 $ 14.7

7.25%, due May 201 415.C 415.(

7.125%, due May 201 350.( 350.(
AmeriGas OLP First Mortgage Note

Series D, 7.11%, due March 20 — 70.2

Series E, 8.50%, due July 20 80.C 80.1

Other 5.6 34
Total AmeriGas Propar 865.¢ 933.4
International Propane:
Antargaz Senior Facilities term loan, due March®2 556.1 534.¢
Flaga term loan, due through September 2 43.¢ 50.7
Flaga term loan, due through June 2 10.z —
Other 3.€ 3.9
Total International Propar 613.¢ 589.5
UGI Utilities:
Senior Notes

6.375% Notes, due September 2! 108.( —

5.75% Notes, due October 20 175.C 175.C

6.21% Notes, due October 20 100.( 100.(
Mediumr-Term Notes

5.53% Notes, due September 2( 40.C 40.C

5.37% Notes, due August 20 25.C 25.C

5.16% Notes, due May 20: 20.C 20.C

7.37% Notes, due October 20 22.C 22.C

5.64% Notes, due December 2( 50.C 50.C

6.17% Notes, due June 20 20.C 20.C

7.25% Notes, due November 2C 20.C 20.C

5.67% Notes, due January 2C 20.C 20.C

6.50% Notes, due August 20 20.C 20.C

6.13% Notes, due October 20 20.C 20.C
Total UGI Utilities 640.( 532.(
Other 13.7 14.2
Total lon¢-term debt 2,133.: 2,069.:
Less current maturitie (94.5) (81.8)
Total lon¢-term debt due after one ye $ 2,038.¢ $ 1,987.

Scheduled principal repayments of long-term deletiduiscal years 2010 to 2014 follow:
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

AmeriGas Propan $ 82.2 $ 15.¢ $ 1.C $ 0.¢ $ 0.5
UGI Utilities — — 40.C 133.( —
International Propane and Ot 12.2 594.7 3.C 2.7 2.6
Total $ 94.t $ 610.f $ 44.C $ 136.¢ $ 3.1
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AmeriGas Propane

AmeriGas Partners Senior NotesThe 8.875% Senior Notes may be redeemed at owropthe 7.25% and 7.125% Sel
Notes generally cannot be redeemed at our option fr May 20, 2010 and 2011, respectively. Ames@artners may, unc
certain circumstances involving excess sales posfem the disposition of assets not reinvestetiénbusiness or a changt
control, be required to offer to prepay its 7.2586 &@.125% Senior Notes.

AmeriGas OLP First Mortgage Notes.The General Partner is @iligor of the Series E First Mortgage Notes. AiGais OLF
may prepay the Series E First Mortgage Notes, imlevtor in part. These prepayments include a makelevpremiun
AmeriGas OLP may, under certain circumstances innglexcess sales proceeds from the dispositi@sséts not reinvestec
the business or a change of control, be requiredféo to prepay the Series E First Mortgage Natesshole or in part.

AmeriGas OLP Credit Agreements. AmeriGas OLP has a credit agreement (“AmeriGas iCriggreement”)consisting ¢
(1) a Revolving Credit Facility and (2) an Acquisit Facility. The General Partner and Petrolaneiparated, a wholly ownq
subsidiary of the General Partner, are guaranfomsounts outstanding under the AmeriGas CredieAgrent.

Under the Revolving Credit Facility, AmeriGas OLRyrborrow up to $125 (including a $100 sublimit ketters of credi
which is subject to restrictions in the AmeriGasPFOEirst Mortgage Notes and the Senior Notes indest(see Restrictive
Covenants’below). The Revolving Credit Facility may be usedworking capital and general purposes of AmeriGa®. The
Revolving Credit Facility expires on October 15120but may be extended for additional grear periods with the consent
the participating banks representing at least 80@%he commitments thereunder. There were no borrggvoutstanding unc
AmeriGas OLPs Revolving Credit Facility at September 30, 200@ 2008. Issued and outstanding letters of crediich
reduce available borrowings under the AmeriGas ®eRolving Credit Facility, totaled $37.0 and $4at%September 30, 20
and 2008, respectively. The Acquisition Facilityoyides AmeriGas OLP with the ability to borrow up $75 to finance tt
purchase of propane businesses or propane busiessts or, to the extent it is not so used, forkingrcapital and genel
purposes, subject to restrictions in the AmeriGa® Girst Mortgage Notes and the Senior Notes ingdest The Acquisitic
Facility operates as a revolving facility througbt@ber 15, 2011, at which time amounts then oudstanwill be immediatel
due and payable. There were no amounts outstaundithey the Acquisition Facility at September 30,2@6d 2008.

The Revolving Credit Facility and the Acquisitiomdility permit AmeriGas OLP to borrow at prevailingerest rate
including the base rate, defined as the highehefRederal Funds rate plus 0.50% or the agent bankhe rate (3.25%
September 30, 2009), or at a two-week, one-, ttvwee-, or sixnonth Eurodollar Rate, as defined in the AmeriGasdd
Agreement, plus a margin. The margin on Euroddfate borrowings (which ranges from 1.00% to 1.7%%g the AmeriGe
Credit Agreement facility fee rate (which rangesnir0.25% to 0.375%) are dependent upon AmeriGas ©taio of funde
debt to earnings before interest expense, incomestadepreciation and amortization (“EBITDABach as defined in t
AmeriGas Credit Agreement.

In order to provide for increased liquidity, on A7, 2009, AmeriGas OLP entered into a $75 unsstuevolving cred
facility (“2009 AmeriGas Supplemental Credit Agresmii’) with three major banks. The 2009 AmeriGas Suppleateéredi
Agreement expires on July 1, 2010 and permits AGesiOLP to borrow up to $75 for working capital ayeheral purpos
subject to restrictive covenants in the AmeriGasPOEirst Mortgage Notes and the Senior Notes indestuThe 20C
AmeriGas Supplemental Credit Agreement permits AGes OLP to borrow at prevailing interest rates|uding the base re
equal to the higher of the Federal Funds rate @/ti8%, the agent barkprime rate (3.25% at September 30, 2009), dra
market index rate (0.25% at September 30, 2009 P, or at a one-week, two-week or enenth Eurodollar rate, as defir
in the AmeriGas Supplemental Credit Agreement, plusargin. The margin on base rate loans is 2.2b86tlae margin c
Eurodollar loans is 3.25%.

Restrictive Covenants.The 7.25% and 7.125% Senior Notes of AmeriGas Begtrestrict the ability of the Partnership
AmeriGas OLP to, among other things, incur addalondebtedness, make investments, incur liensgiggseferred interes
prepay subordinated indebtedness, and effect ngrgensolidations and sales of assets. Under #&4/and 7.125% Sen
Note Indentures, AmeriGas Partners is generallynfitrd to make cash distributions equal to avadlatdsh, as defined, as
the end of the immediately preceding quarter, itaie conditions are met. At September 30, 2008s¢hrestrictions did n
limit the amount of Available Cash AmeriGas Partneould distribute pursuant to the Fourth Amendedi Restated Agreeme¢
of Limited Partnership of AmeriGas Partners, L:Paftnership Agreement”) (see Note 14).
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The AmeriGas OLP credit agreements and First Mgedsotes restrict the incurrence of additional btddness and al
restrict certain liens, guarantees, investmentandoand advances, payments, mergers, consolidatass®t transfel
transactions with affiliates, sales of assets, &itipns and other transactions. The AmeriGas OtdRlit agreements and F
Mortgage Notes require that AmeriGas OLP maintaimsaximum ratio of total indebtedness to EBITDAdadined. In additior
the AmeriGas OLP credit agreements require thati#®as OLP maintain a minimum ratio of EBITDA to énést expense,
defined, and minimum EBITDA. Generally, as longnasdefault exists or would result, the Partnerstiig AmeriGas OLP a
permitted to make cash distributions not more fegdly than quarterly in an amount not to exceedlabie cash, as defined,"
the immediately preceding calendar quarter.

International Propane

Antargaz has a five-year, floating rate Senior Fés Agreement with a bank group comprising a86 8erm loan and &
50 revolving credit facility. The Senior Faciliti?sgreement also provides Antargaz &@& letter of credit guarantee facili
Antargaz’ term loan and revolving credit facilitgdr interest at one-, two-, three- or sionth euribor or libor, plus a margin,
defined by the Senior Facilities Agreement. Antarpas executed interest rate swap agreements withnaber of the sar
bank group to fix the underlying euribor or libate& of interest on the term loan at approximateds% for the duration of tl
loan (see Note 17). The effective interest ratédatargaz’term loan at September 30, 2009 and 2008 was 3&#961.40%
respectively. Antargaz’ revolving credit facilityepnits Antargaz to borrow up to3D for working capital or general corpotr
purposes. Borrowings under its revolving creditifgcare classified as bank loans on the ConstdideBalance Sheets. 1
margin on the term loan and revolving credit fagilborrowings (which ranges from 0.70% to 1.15%)e&pendent upc
Antargaz’ratio of total net debt (excluding bank loans) BIEDA, each as defined by the Senior Facilities dgmnent. The!
were no revolving credit facility borrowings outsting at September 30, 2009. In order to minimiEeihterest margin it pa
on its Senior Facilities Agreement borrowings, ep&mber 2008 Antargaz borrowe®d& ($70.4), the total amount avails
under its revolving credit facility at a weightedesage interest rate of 6.0%. This amount was depaiOctober 27, 2008. T
Senior Facilities Agreement debt is collateralibgdsubstantially all of Antargazhares in its subsidiaries and by substan
all of its accounts receivable.

Flaga has two euro-based variable-rate term |oEms.principal outstanding on the first term loarswa30 ($43.9) and
36 ($50.7) at September 30, 2009 and 2008, respéctiThis first term loan bears interest at ometwelvemonth euribor rate
(as chosen by Flaga from time to time) plus a nmarghe margin on such borrowings ranges from 0.5@%45%. Generall
semi-annual principal payments of3€én this term loan are due on March 31 and SepeBD each year through Fiscal 2
with final payments totaling € 3.0, € 6.4 and4£6 in March, August and September 2011, respaygti¥laga has effective
fixed the euribor component of its interest ratetlnis term loan through September 2011 at 3.91%riigring into an intere
rate swap agreement. The effective interest ratethis term loan at September 30, 2009 and 200& wWe28% and 4.80¢
respectively. Flaga may prepay this term loan, iole or in part, without incurring any penalty.

The second euro-based variable-rate term loan,uee@dn August 2009, had an outstanding principhfice of €7
($10.2) on September 30, 2009. This term loan reatim June 2014 and bears interest at thresth euribor rates plus
margin. The margin on such borrowings ranges frof2%% to 3.50%. Semi-annual principal payments 6fZ&on this ter
loan are due on December 31 and June 30 eachhyeagh June 2014. Flaga has effectively fixed tw#er component of tt
interest rate on this term loan at 2.16% by eng¢elito an interest rate swap agreement. The effedtiterest rate on this te
loan at September 30, 2009 was 5.03%.

Flaga has two working capital facilities totaling2d. Flaga has a multdrrency working capital facility curren
scheduled to expire in June 2010 that provideséorowings and issuances of guarantees totaling &f Wwhich €2.1 ($3.0
was outstanding at September 30, 2009. Flaga als@ih € 8 eurdenominated working capital facility currently sdoéed tc
expire in June 2010 of which £1 ($6.1) was outstanding at September 30, 268%et and outstanding guarantees, v
reduce available borrowings under the working edgécilities, totaled € 2.7 ($3.9) at September3m09 and 0.7 ($1.0) ¢
September 30, 2008. Amounts outstanding under trkimg capital facilities are classified as banare. Borrowings under t
working capital facilities generally bear interestmarket rates (a daily euro-based rate or threeth euribor rates) plus
margin. The weighted-average interest rates onaFdagorking capital loans were 4.94% at Septembe2809 and 4.52%
September 30, 2008.
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Restrictive Covenants and GuaranteesThe Senior Facilities Agreement restricts the bitif Antargaz, to, among ott
things, incur additional indebtedness, make invests) incur liens, and effect mergers, consolidatiand sales of assets. Ur
this agreement, Antargaz is generally permittedngike restricted payments, such as dividends, ifréti@ of net debt 1
EBITDA on a French generally accepted accountirgishas defined in the agreement, is less thant8.750 and if no eve
of default exists or would exist upon payment aftstestricted payment.

The Flaga term loans and working capital facilites guaranteed by UGI. In addition, under certainditions regardir
changes in certain financial ratios of UGI, thedieiy banks may accelerate repayment of the debt.

UGI Utilities

Revolving Credit Agreement.UGI Utilities has a revolving credit agreement (“UGtilities Revolving Credit Agreemeny”
with a group of banks providing for borrowings g to $350 which expires in August 2011. Under ti&l Ultilities Revolving
Credit Agreement, UGI Utilities may borrow at varfoprevailing interest rates, including LIBOR ahé banks’prime rate
UGI Utilities had borrowings outstanding under thglities Revolving Credit Agreement, which we d#g as bank loan
totaling $154 at September 30, 2009 and $57 ateSeyr 30, 2008. The weighted-average interest @edlGl Utilities’
Revolving Credit Agreement borrowings at Septendfgr2009 and 2008 were 0.59% and 5.0%, respectilrelgonjunctiol
with the October 1, 2008, CPG Acquisition, UGI mad$120 cash contribution to UGI Utilities on Sepber 30, 2008. Th
cash contribution was used by UGI Utilities to reellborrowings under the UGI Utilities Revolving @iteAgreement. O
October 1, 2008, UGI Utilities borrowed under th&IWtilities Revolving Credit Agreement to fund arfion of the CP¢
Acquisition.

Restrictive Covenants.UGI Utilities Revolving Credit Agreement requiresGU Utilities to maintain a maximum ratio
Consolidated Debt to Consolidated Total Capitatjefined, of 0.65 to 1.00.

Restricted Net Assets

At September 30, 2009, the amount of net assdikSdfs consolidated subsidiaries that was restrictem fransfer to UC
under debt agreements, subsidiary partnership mgmes and regulatory requirements under foreigrs kmtaled approximate
$1,200.

Note 6— Income Taxes

Income before income taxes comprises the following:

2009 2008 2007
Domestic $ 308.2 $ 290.% $ 278.4
Foreign 109.¢ 59.: 52.€
Total income before income tax $ 417.¢ $ 350.( $ 331.(
The provisions for income taxes consist of theofwlhg:
2009 2008 2007
Current expense¢
Federal $ 69.€ $ 92.4 $ 65.€
State 21.¢ 26.1 17.4
Foreign 41.1 16.€ 16.€
Total current expens 132.C 135. 99.¢
Deferred (benefit) expens
Federal 27.€ (1.6) 24.¢
State (1.2 (3.0 1.9
Foreign 0.7 4.1 0.8
Investment tax credit amortizatic (0.9 (0.9 (0.9
Total deferred expense (bene 26.¢ (0.9 27.1
Total income tax expen: $ 159.1 $ 134.t $ 126.7

Federal income taxes for Fiscal 2009, Fiscal 20@8 Riscal 2007 are net of foreign tax credits 0o4.93%$4.3 and $14.
respectively.
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A reconciliation from the statutory federal taxerdb our effective tax rate (presented as a pemgentf pretax incon
excluding minority interests principally in Ameri&®&artners) is as follows:

2009 2008 2007

Statutory federal tax ra 35.(% 35.(% 35.(%
Difference in tax rate due t

State income taxes, net of federal ber 3.4 4.4 3.8

Effects of international operatiol (0.9 (1.9 (1.9

Other, ne 0.1 0.4 0.¢
Effective tax rate 38.1% 38.4% 38.2%

Deferred tax liabilities (assets) comprise thedwihg at September 30:
2009 2008

Excess book basis over tax basis of property, @adtequipmer $ 366.2 $ 313.C
Investment in AmeriGas Partne 172.t 172.¢
Intangible assets and goodw 51.C 49.1
Utility regulatory asset 51.€ 34.C
Foreign currency translation adjustm 21.4 13.C
Other 9.5 14.7
Gross deferred tax liabilitie 672.2 596.4
Pension plan liabilitie (60.9) (21.7)
Employet-related benefit (37.6) (31.7)
Operating loss carryforwart (25.5) (22.7)
Foreign tax credit carryforwar (69.€) (43.6)
Utility regulatory liabilities (16.€) (3.7
Derivative financial instrumen (30.9) (33.¢)
Other (49.0 (33.0)
Gross deferred tax ass! (289.6) (189.9)
Deferred tax assets valuation allowal 87.¢ 56.5
Net deferred tax liabilitie $ 470.4 $ 463.t

At September 30, 2009, foreign net operating laasytorwards principally relating to Flaga and edmtoperations «
Antargaz totaled $36.8 and $7.6, respectively, wilexpiration dates. We have state net operatisg darryforwards primari
relating to four noreperating subsidiaries which approximate $119.8 expire through 2029. We also have operating
carryforwards of $6.5 for certain operations of Ai@as Propane that expire through 2029. At Septerd®e2009, deferred t
assets relating to operating loss carryforwardiide $8.2 for Flaga, $2.6 for Antargaz, $1.0 forlU@ernational (BV), $2.
for AmeriGas Propane and $11.4 for certain othbsisliaries. A valuation allowance of $14.6 has heewvided for all deferre
tax assets related to state net operating losgfoamards and other state deferred tax assetsrtdinesubsidiaries because, ¢
state reportable basis, it is more likely than thait these assets will expire unused. A valuatitowance of $3.6 was al
provided for deferred tax assets related to certgerations of Antargaz and UGI International Hofgl, B.V. Operatin
activities and tax deductions related to the eserdf nonqualified stock options contributed to the staté oy@erating losst
disclosed above. We first recognize the utilizatibistate net operating losses from operationsdiwbhiclude the impact of t
deductions for exercises of nguoralified stock options) to reduce income tax exeehen, to the extent state net operating
carryforwards, if realized, relate to non-qualifigick option deductions, the resulting benefit beé credited to stockholders’
equity.
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We have foreign tax credit carryforwards of appneaiely $69.6 expiring through 2020 resulting frohe tactual ar
planned repatriation of Antargaatcumulated earnings since acquisition includablg.5. taxable income. Because we ex
that these credits will expire unused, a valuattiowance has been provided for the entire foreagn credit carryforwatr
amount. The valuation allowance for all deferreddasets increased by $31.3 in Fiscal 2009, dueapily to an increase in t
foreign tax credit carryforward of $26.0.

We conduct business and file tax returns in the ,Lh@merous states, local jurisdictions and in Eeaand certain cent
and eastern European countries. Our U.S. fedetalme tax returns are settled through the 2006 ¢éax wnd our French t
returns are settled through the 2005 tax year.Abstrian tax returns are settled through 2007 amndother central and east
European tax returns are effectively settled forots years from 2001 to 2006. UGI Corporat®féderal income tax return
Fiscal 2007 is currently under audit. Althoughstriot possible to predict with certainty the timiofythe conclusion of tt
pending U.S. federal tax audit in progress, wecigrdie that the Internal Revenue Sengcaudit of our Fiscal 2007 U.S. fed:e
income tax return will likely be completed durings€al 2010. State and other income tax returnhénUW.S. are genera
subject to examination for a period of three tcefiwears after the filing of the respective returfiBe state impact of a
amended U.S. federal income tax return remainsestihp examination by various states for a peribdmto one year aft
formal notification to the states of such U.S. fedléax return amendments.

As of September 30, 2009, we have unrecognizedhiectax benefits totaling $2.3 including relatedraed interest ¢
$0.2. If these unrecognized tax benefits were sylesatly recognized, $2.2 would be recorded as &fiien income taxes ¢
the consolidated statement of income and, therefooeld impact the reported effective tax rate. &afly, a net reduction
unrecognized tax benefits could occur becausee&ipiration of the statute of limitations in cértaurisdictions or as a res
of settlements with tax authorities. The amounteafsonably possible changes in unrecognized tagfiteand related intere
in the next twelve months is a net reduction ofrapjmately $0.9.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amesurftunrecognized tax benefits is as follows:

Balance at October 1, 20 $ 4.3
Additions for tax positions of the current ye 0.7
Additions for tax positions of prior yea 0.7
Settlements with tax authoriti (0.9
Balance at September 30, 2( 4.9
Additions for tax positions of the current y¢ 0.5
Additions for tax positions of prior yea 0.3
Reductions as a result of tax positions taken iior pears 1.2
Settlements with tax authoriti (2.2
Balance at September 30, 2( $ 2.3

Note 7— Employee Retirement Plans

Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Bhs. In the U.S., we sponsor two defined benefit pengitams fo
employees hired prior to January 1, 2009 of UGI,| Wdlities, PNG, CPG and certain of UGl'other domestic wholly own
subsidiaries (“Pension Plans\Ve also provide postretirement health care bentditsertain retirees and postretirement
insurance benefits to nearly all domestic active gtired employees. In addition, Antargaz emplesyae covered by cert:
defined benefit pension and postretirement pladthafigh the disclosures in the tables below incladeunts related to t
Antargaz plans, such amounts are not material.

Effective December 31, 2008, we merged two of ammestic defined benefit pension plans. As a rasfulthe merger, w
were required under GAAP to remeasure the combiaals assets and benefit obligations as of Decembe2(®18 and w
recorded an afteiax charge to AOCI of $38.7 to reflect the undeded position of the merged plan at December 313248 ¢
result of the remeasurement, Fiscal 2009 pensigerese increased approximately $4.2 in the peridsbeqquent to tt
measurement principally as a result of the amditinaof actuarial losses.

F-25




WPD-6

Table of Contents Screening Data
Page 2014 of 2401

UGI Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Millions of dollars and euros, except per shar@ants and where indicated otherwise)

The following table provides a reconciliation oktprojected benefit obligations (“PBOg3j the Pension Plans and
Antargaz pension plans, the accumulated benefigatobns (“ABOs”)of our other postretirement benefit plans, plaresan
the funded status of the pension and other pastnetint plans as of September 30, 2009 and 2008. iaBit® present value
benefits earned to date with benefits based upaemiucompensation levels. PBO is ABO increasecttiect estimated futu

compensation.
Pensior Other Postretiremet
Benefits Benefits
2009 2008 2009 2008

Change in benefit obligations:

Benefit obligation— beginning of yea $ 310.¢ $ 310.¢ $ 15.€ $ 20.1

Service cos 7.1 6.1 0.2 0.5

Interest cos 23.c 19.€ 1.2 1.2

Actuarial loss (gain 67.C (20.0 2.2 (2.5)

Acquisitions 44.t — 3.4 —

Plan amendmen 0.1 — — (0.4

Plan settlement or curtailme (5.7 — — (2.2

Foreign currenc! . (0.2 0.1 —

Benefits paic (18.4) (15.7) (1.9 (1.7)

Benefit obligations— end of yea $ 428.¢ $ 310.¢ $ 21./ $ 15.€
Change in plan assets

Fair value of plan asse— beginning of yea $ 2445 $ 294.( $ 10.C $ 122

Actual gain (loss) on plan assi 15.C (34.7) — (1.8)

Acquisitions 38.4 — — —

Foreign currenc 0.1 — — —

Employer contribution: 5.7 0.t 11 0.7

Settlement paymen (5.7 — — —

Benefits paic (18.9) (15.7) (1.4 (1.0

Fair value of plan asse— end of yea $ 279.¢ $ 244.] $ 9.7 $ 10.C
Funded status of the plan— end of year $ (149.) $ (66.2) $ (119 8 (5.6)
Assets (liabilities) recorded in the balance shee

Prepaid assets (included in Other ass $ — $ 1.1 $ — $ 0.7

Unfunded liabilities (included in Other noncurrent

liabilities) (149.7) (67.9) (11.9) (6.9

Net amount recognize $ (149.) $ (66.20 $ 1179 8 (5.6)
Amounts recorded in stockholder’ equity:

Net actuarial loss (gair $ 133.2 $ 64.€ $ 0.6) $ (1.2

Prior service (credit) co: (0.2 (0.2 0.1 —
Total $ 133.C $ 64.4 $ 05 ¢ 1.2

In Fiscal 2010, we estimate that we will amortiZe8of net actuarial losses from stockholdeguity into retiree bene
cost.

Actuarial assumptions for our domestic plans arsecdieed below. Assumptions for the Antargaz plares leased upc
market conditions in France. The discount rateSegitember 30 are used to measure the gmrarbenefit obligations and 1
earnings effects for the subsequent year. The digomte is based upon marlaiserved yields for high quality fixed inco
securities with maturities that correlate to thécpated payment of benefits. The expected rateiifrn on assets assumptio
based on the current and expected asset allocattowell as historical and expected returns orouarcategories of plan asst

Pension Plan Other Postretirement Benef
2009 2008 2007 2006 2009 2008 2007 2006

Weightec-average assumptiol

Discount rate 5.5% 6.8% 6.4% 6.C% 5.5% 6.8% 6.4% 6.C%
Expected return on plan ass 8.5% 8.5% 8.5% 8.5% 5.5% 5.5% 5.5% 5.6%
Rate of increase in salary lev 3.8% 3.8% 3.8% 3.£% 3.8% 3.8% 3.8% 3.8%
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The ABO for the Pension Plans was $377.7 and $2¥2¢f September 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

Net periodic pension expense and other postretinetrenefit costs include the following components:

Pension Benefit Postretirement Benefi
2009 2008 2007 2009 2008 2007

Service cos $ 7.1 $ 6.1 $ 6.5 $ 0.2 $ 0.5 $ 0.5
Interest cos 23.2 19.¢ 18.¢ 1.2 1.2 1.2
Expected return on asst (25.7) (24.5) (23.5) (0.6) (0.7) (0.€)
Curtailment gair — — — — (2.2 —
Settlement los 1.8 — — — — —
Amortization of:

Transition obligatior — — — 0.2 0.2 0.2

Prior service cost (benefi — — 0.2 (0.9 (0.9 0.3

Actuarial loss (gain 3.8 0.1 1.1 (0.7) (0.7) —
Net benefit cost (income 10.z 1.3 3.1 0.€ (1.5 1.0
Change in associated regulatory

liabilities — — — 3.3 3.4 3.1
Net benefit cost after change

regulatory liabilities $ 10.5 $ 1.3 $ 3.1 $ 3.¢ $ 1.¢ $ 4.1

Pension Plansassets are held in trust. It is our general palacyund amounts for pension benefits equal to astleh
minimum required contribution set forth in appli@employee benefit laws. From time to time we matypur discretiol
contribute additional amounts. We did not make aogtributions to the Pension Plans in Fiscal 2@&8¢al 2008 or Fisc
2007. In conjunction with the settlement of obligas under a subsidiary retirement benefit plantafgaz made a settlem
payment of approximately £.1 ($5.7) during Fiscal 2009. We believe that wi# be required to make contributions to
Pension Plans in Fiscal 2010 but such amountsatrexpected to be material.

UGI Utilities has established a Voluntary EmployeRsneficiary Association (“VEBA”)trust to pay retiree health ¢
and life insurance benefits by depositing into Y¥eBA the annual amount of postretirement benefitst€ determined unc
GAAP. The difference between such amounts and atadanluded in UGI Gas’ and Electric Utility'rates is deferred 1
future recovery from, or refund to, ratepayers. Téguired contributions to the VEBA during Fisclll® are not expected to
material.

Expected payments for pension benefits and forrgibstretirement welfare benefits are as follows:

Other

Pensior Postretiremel

Benefits Benefits
Fiscal 201( $ 19.2 $ 2.C
Fiscal 2011 19.5 2.C
Fiscal 2012 20.¢ 2.C
Fiscal 201° 21.7 1.€
Fiscal 201¢ 23.1 1.¢
Fiscal 2015— 2019 137.C 9.5
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In accordance with our investment strategy to obl@igterm growth, our target asset allocations are tmta@ a mix o
65% equities and the remainder in fixed income fuodcash equivalents in the Pension Plans. Thhetsaand actual allocatic
for the Pension Plans’ and VEBA trust assets ate®aiper 30 are as follows:

Target Pension Plai VEBA
Pension Pls VEBA 2009 2008 2009 2008
Equities 65% 65% 68% 63% 64% 57%
Fixed income fund 35% 35% 32% 37% 30% 34%
Cash equivalent N/A 0% N/A N/A 6% 9%

UGI Common Stock comprised approximately 8% and &%ension Plansassets at September 30, 2009 and :
respectively.

The assumed domestic health care cost trend rege8.@% for Fiscal 2010, decreasing to 5.0% in &i2016. A on
percentage point change in the assumed healthcoatetrend rate would increase (decrease) the IF22® postretireme
benefit cost and obligation as follows:

1% Increas 1% Decreas
Service and interest costs in Fiscal 2! $ 0.1 $ (0.7
ABO at September 30, 20! $ 1.C $ (0.8

We also sponsor unfunded and rqpralified supplemental executive retirement plaktsSeptember 30, 2009 and 2C
the PBOs of these plans were $20.7 and $17.5,ctsply. We recorded net costs for these plans3of $n Fiscal 2009, $3.0
Fiscal 2008 and $2.4 in Fiscal 2007. These costsiarincluded in the tables above. Amounts reabidestockholdersequity
for these plans include aftéax losses of $4.2 and $2.6 at September 30, 2002008, respectively, principally represen
unrecognized actuarial losses. We expect to anecafiproximately $0.4 million of pre-tax actuariaéses in Fiscal 2010.

Defined Contribution Plans. We sponsor 401(k) savings plans for eligible emeésyof UGI and certain of UGI'domesti
subsidiaries. Generally, participants in these plaay contribute a portion of their compensatioreitiner a beforgéax basis, ¢
on both a before-tax and aftex basis. These plans also provide for employdchireg contributions at various rates. The
of benefits under the savings plans totaled $I0Riscal 2009, $9.4 in Fiscal 2008 and $9.2 in&ig2007.

Note 8— Utility Regulatory Assets and Liabilities and Reguatory Matters

The following regulatory assets and liabilitiesasated with Utilities are included in our accompiauig balance sheets
September 30:

2009 2008

Regulatory asset

Income taxes recoverak $ 79.F $ 73.7

Postretirement benefi 2.5 4.3

CPG Gas pension and postretirement p 8.5 —

Environmental cost 26.¢ 9.C

Deferred fuel cost 19.€ 16.C

Other 4.5 4.4
Total regulatory asse $ 141.% $ 107.
Regulatory liabilities

Postretirement benefi $ 9.3 $ 8.9

Environmental overcollectior 8.7 —

Deferred fuel refund 30.€ —
Total regulatory liabilities $ 48.¢ $ 8.9

Income taxes recoverable . This regulatory asset is the result of recordinteited tax liabilities pertaining to temporary
differences principally as a result of the passulh to ratepayers of accelerated tax deprecifiostate income tax purpos
and the flow through of accelerated tax depreaiafir federal income tax purposes for certain ygaisr to 1981. The:
deferred taxes have been reduced by deferred wetsapertaining to utility deferred investment tedits. Utilities ha
recorded regulatory income tax assets relatedetsetdeferred tax liabilities representing futurergies recoverable through
ratemaking process over the average remaining diepte lives of the associated property rangingnfrb to approximate
50 years
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Postretirement benefits . The PUC has authorized UGI Utilities to recovertain early retirement benefit costs as well &l
postretirement benefit costs incurred prior to sagtounts being reflected in tariff rates. Thesdsasge reflected as regulat
assets in the table above. At September 30, 20@, Wilities expects to recover these costs oveaiopgs ranging from 1
approximately 10 years.

Gas Utility and Electric Utility are also recoveginngoing postretirement benefit costs at amouatmitted by the PUC
prior base rate proceedings. With respect to UG &wal Electric Utility, the difference between #raounts recovered throt
rates and the actual costs incurred in accordatitbeaacounting for postretirement benefits are baleferred for future reful
to or recovery from ratepayers. Such amounts dlected in regulatory liabilities in the table afovn addition, in accordan
with GAAP relating to pension and postretiremeratngl, UGI Utilities’postretirement regulatory liability is adjusted aalty tc
reflect changes in the funded status of UGI Gad’ Blectric Utility’s postretirement benefit plan.

CPG Gas pension and postretirement plans. This regulatory asset represents the portion afr@@rvice cost and net actua
losses associated with CPG Gas pension and postnetit plans that will be recovered through futtaes based up
established regulatory practices. These reguladssets are adjusted annually or more frequenthgruoértain circumstanc
when the funded status of the plans is recordeataordance with GAAP relating to pension and ptistreent plans. The
costs are amortized over the average remaininglfectancy of the plan participants. These regujaissets are reflected
of associated deferred income taxes.

Environmental costs . Environmental costs represents amounts actuallgtdpe UGI Gas to clean up sites in Pennsylvan
well as the portion of estimated probable futureimmmental remediation and investigation costs @RG Gas and PNG C
expect to incur in conjunction with remediation sent orders and agreements with the Pennsylvaniarbeent c
Environmental Protection (see Note 15). UGI Gaauigently permitted to include in rates, througtufe base rate proceedir
a fiveyear average of such prudently incurred remediatasts. PNG Gas and CPG Gas are currently recavard expect
continue to recover these costs in base rate regeit September 30, 2009, the period over whicleRbas and CPG G
expect to recover these costs will depend uporrduemediation activity.

Deferred fuel costs and refunds. Gas Utility’s tariffs contain clauses which permit recoveryceftain purchased gas cc
through the application of purchased gas cost (“BG&tes. The clauses provide for periodic adjustmen®GC rates for ti
difference between the total amount of purchased agets collected from customers and the recoveredsts incurred.
accordance with GAAP relating to rategulated entities, we defer the difference betwa@ounts recognized in revenues
the applicable gas costs incurred until they atesequently billed or refunded to customers. Neteucwllected gas costs .
classified as a regulatory asset and net overdmtecare classified as a regulatory liability. G#gity uses derivative financi
instruments to reduce volatility in the cost of dapurchases for firm- residential, commercial andustrial (“retail core-
market”) customers. Realized and unrealized gains or logeesatural gas derivative financial instruments im@uded it
deferred fuel refunds or costs. Unrealized lossesuth contracts at September 30, 2008 were $2Be8e were no such ga
or losses at September 30, 2009. UGI Utilities etgpéo recover or refund deferred fuel costs gdlyeoaer a period of 1 1
2 years.

Environmental overcollections. This regulatory liability represents the differerdmween amounts recovered in rates and ¢
costs incurred (net of insurance proceeds) assaciaith the terms of a consent order agreement deetwCPG and tl
Pennsylvania Department of Environmental Protediioremediate certain gas plant sites.

Other . Other regulatory assets comprise a number of it@eeiading, among others, deferred asset retirerests, deferre
rate case expenses, customer choice implementaifis and deferred software development costseptetnber 30, 2009, U
Utilities expects to recover these costs over pisrimf approximately 1 to 5 years.

UGI Utilities’ regulatory liabilities relating to postretiremergrigfits and environmental overcollections are idetl ir
“Other noncurrent liabilities"on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. UGI Utilitiegsdnot recover a rate of return or
regulatory assets.
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Other Regulatory Matters

PNG and CPG Base Rate Filings . On January 28, 2009, PNG and CPG filed sepaegjgests with the PUC to increase |
operating revenues by $38.1 annually for PNG an@.6shnnually for CPG to fund system improvementd aperation
necessary to maintain safe and reliable naturalsgagce and energy assistance for low income met® as well as ener
conservation programs for all customers. On Julgd)9, PNG and CPG each filed joint settlementtipas with the PU!
based on agreements with the opposing partiesdiegathe requested base operating revenue incre@se8ugust 27, 200
the PUC approved the settlement agreements whicttee in a $19.8 base operating revenue increadeNG Gas and a $1(
base operating revenue increase for CPG Gas. Theases became effective August 28, 2009 and didlave a material effe
on Fiscal 2009 results.

Electric Utility . As a result of Pennsylvan&’Electricity Generation Customer Choice and Coitipet Act that becan
effective January 1, 1997, all of Electric Utilisycustomers are permitted to acquire their elegtrfoom entities other the
Electric Utility. Electric Utility remains the prader of last resort (‘POLR”jor its customers that are not served by an alte
electric generation provider. The terms and cood#iunder which Electric Utility provides POLR ser; and rules governil
the rates that may be charged for such servicaigfrdecember 31, 2009, were established in a sefi€dJC approve
settlements (collectively, the “POLR Settlementhe latest of which became effective June 23, 2006.

In accordance with the POLR Settlement, Electriditytmay increase its POLR rates up to certainiténthrougi
December 31, 2009. Consistent with the terms of REBELR Settlement, Electric Utility increased its I[FOrates effectiv
January 1, 2009, which increased the average ocastrésidential heating customer by approximateb¥dlover such costs
effect during calendar year 2008. Effective Jandar008, Electric Utility increased its POLR ratekich increased tl
average cost to a residential heating customerppyoaimately 5.5% over such costs in effect durgadendar year 20C
Effective January 1, 2007, Electric Utility increalsthe average cost to a residential heating custdy approximately 35
over such costs in effect during calendar year 2006

On July 17, 2008, the PUC approved Electric Utiitdefault service procurement, implementation amdingency plan
as modified by the terms of a May 2, 2008 settlemed in accordance with the PUCdefault service regulations. Th
plans do not affect Electric Utilitg’ existing POLR settlement effective through Decein8i, 2009. The approved plans spe
how Electric Utility will solicit and acquire defttuservice supplies for residential customers fog period January 1, 2C
through May 31, 2014, and for commercial and indaiscustomers for the period January 1, 2010 thhoay 31, 201
(collectively, the “Settlement Term”JGI Utilities filed a rate plan on August 29, 20fa8 the Settlement Term. On January
2009, the PUC approved a settlement of the rateyfthat provides for Electric Utility to fully rewer its default service cos
On October 1, 2009, UGI Utilities filed a defaudirgice plan to establish procurement rules applicat the period after M:
31, 2011 for its commercial and industrial custasner

Note 9— Inventories

Inventories comprise the following at September 30:

2009 2008
Non-utility LPG and natural ga $ 118.( $ 199.¢
Gas Utility natural ga 189.% 155.¢
Materials, supplies and oth 55.t 45.1
Total inventories $ 363.2 $ 400.¢

At September 30, 2009 and 2008, UGI Utilities wapaaty to oneyear storage contract administrative agreen
(“SCAASs") expiring on October 31, 2009 and 2008, respectivielysuant to the SCAAs, UGI Utilities has, amottgeo things
released certain storage and transportation cdstfacthe terms of the SCAAs. UGI Utilities alsarisferred certain associa
storage inventories upon commencement of the SCilkreceive a transfer of storage inventoriesha end of the SCAA
and makes payments associated with refilling seiagentories during the term of the SCAAs. Thedrisal cost of natur.
gas storage inventories released under the SCAAschwrepresent a portion of Gas Utilisy'total natural gas store
inventories, and any exchange receivable (repriege@mounts of natural gas inventories used byadther parties to tt
agreement but not yet replenished), are includdadearcaption “Gas Utility natural gasf the table above. The carrying valu
gas storage inventories released under the SCAAsnaffiliates at September 30, 2009 and 2008 compuyi&iB billion cubi
feet (“bcf”) and 1.4 bcf of natural gas was $10.5 and $10.Berdively. Effective November 1, 2009, UGI Utilgientered int
three new SCAAs with terms ranging from one toehyears.
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